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THE EMBLEM OF THE UNIVERSITY 

 

 

The emblem of the University takes the form of a circle with three concentric circles placed close 

together on the periphery, all on a background of yellow.  In the center of this circle is a smaller 

concentric circle enclosing a full bloom lotus, Nelumbo nucifera, in abstract form, and consisting 

of two tiers of petals one underneath the other.  In the center of the circle, stylized stamens enclosed 

in two concentric circles surround the receptacle.  Between the outer set of concentric circles and 

the central lotus is a wide circular band carrying the motto of the University on the upper half of 

the band, while the name of the University appears in the lower half, both written in Sinhala 

characters.  The Motto, taken from an ancient Buddhist text, reads; 

‘Vijja Uppatatam Settha’ 

(‘among all that rise knowledge is greatest’) 

 

VISION STATEMENT 

 

Prosper lives through Education 

 

THE MISSION OF THE UNIVERSITY 

Develop globally competent citizens through our tradition of education for a sustainable future, drawing 

inspiration from cultural heritage and wisdom 
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MESSAGE FROM THE VICE-CHANCELLOR  

 

 

 

 

 

 

I take great pleasure in penning down these few thoughts for the Annual Report of 2021 of the 

University of Sri Jayewardenepura.  

The University has come a long way in the year 2021 while battling the Covid-19 pandemic. The 

sudden shift of activities from on site to online modes, both in academic and non-academic sectors 

proved to be challenging, and yet I believe that the University overcame that challenge successfully. 

By taking proactive steps such as organizing vaccination programmes for staff and students to 

mitigate the negative consequences of the Covid-19 pandemic, the University was able to easily 

adjust to the new normal conditions and was able to function efficiently.  

The University with its nine faculties provided an exceptional service to the country through 

extensive research in a multitude of subject areas. By establishing new faculties such as the Faculty 

of Dental Sciences, the University continued to expand its capacity in the year 2021. The notable 

increase in intake of students proves the dedication and the commitment of the University to provide 

the youth of Sri Lanka with the opportunity to pursue higher education. 

The 46th Convocation Ceremony of 2020, which was on hold due to the pandemic was held 

successfully in December 2021, where 3197 undergraduate, postgraduate students and doctoral 

candidates graduated from this ceremony. 

The year 2021 was a challenging, yet a rewarding year for the University of Sri Jayewardenepura 

full of many milestones and achievements. This Annual Report highlights the journey of the 

University throughout the year 2021 and the University will continue to stand as a pillar of strength 

to the Sri Lankan higher education system  

 

Senior Professor Sudantha Liyanage  
  BSc (Hons) (USJ), PhD (Cardiff), C Chem, FRSC, FIChem C, FPRISL 

Vice-Chancellor 
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THE UNIVERSITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The University of Sri Jayewardenepura situated in the heart of Colombo boasts of a long and 

glorious history. Having been established in the 1959 at Gangodawila, its roots can be traced 

back to the Vidyodaya Pirivena established in 1873 by Most Venerable Hikkaduwe Sri 

Sumangala Thero at Maligakanda.  Today the University pays homage to 62 years of history 

while paying tribute to journey of 148 years. 

 

The University of Sri Jayewardenepura, formerly known as Vidyodaya Pirivena was the 

essence of the revival of Sri Lankan Education. It is the second oldest University in Sri Lanka 

and the first University established in Independent Ceylon. 

Today the University stands strong with nine Faculties, Faculty of Humanities and Social 

Sciences, Faculty of Applied Sciences, Faculty of Management Studies and 

Commerce, Faculty of Medical Sciences, Faculty of Graduate Studies, Faculty of Technology, 

Faculty of Engineering, Faculty of  Allied Health Sciences and its latest addition Faculty of 

Dental Sciences. The University is home to over 14,500 Undergraduates and over 2500 

postgraduate students. It is considered the largest University in terms of student population in 

Sri Lanka. 

 

The University is also in the forefront of research and innovation with a research council of 

over 22 research centres and an Invention, Innovation and Venture Creation Council with over 

50 Entrepreneurs and stakeholders with over 15 patents. 

 

The University has also maintained cordial relationship with many international bodies of 

education and have signed over 60 Memoranda of Understanding (MoUs) with recognized 

internationally acclaimed universities; and over 60 MoUs with established international and 

local companies. The university strives to give its students an international experience, 

offering student exchange programmes and internships. 

Throughout the years the University of Sri Jayewardenepura has managed to develop in many 

areas by expanding its horizons. It will continue this journey of reaching many milestones 

which will ensure that the University will produce smart, efficient, skillful and professional 

individuals that will aid in the development of our mother nation. 

https://www.sjp.ac.lk/60-anniversary/
http://fhss.sjp.ac.lk/
http://fhss.sjp.ac.lk/
http://science.sjp.ac.lk/
http://mgt.sjp.ac.lk/
http://mgt.sjp.ac.lk/
http://medical.sjp.ac.lk/
http://www.graduate.sjp.ac.lk/
http://tech.sjp.ac.lk/
http://research.sjp.ac.lk/
http://innovation.sjp.ac.lk/
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VICE-CHANCELLOR’S OVERVIEW OF THE PROGRESS IN 
2021 

 

The year 2021 was indeed a fulfilling year for the University of Sri Jayewardenepura despite the 

challenges posed by the Covid-19 pandemic. As the country was battling through the 2nd wave 

of the Covid-19 pandemic in January 2021, the University commenced its activities for the New 

Year on 4th January with the annual New Year blessing ceremony held at the University premises. 

Throughout the year, the University managed to shine in the local as well as the international 

arena in many aspects such as academic and research and also in terms of expansion of the 

University.  

 

As at 31st December 2021, the composition of the University includes nine Faculties of Study 

namely; Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences (FHSS) (established in 1959), Faculty of 

Applied Sciences (FAS) (established first as Faculty of Science in 1961), Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce (FMSC) (established in 1972), Faculty of Medical Sciences (FMS) 

(established in 1993), the Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS) (established in 1996), Faculty of 

Technology (FoT) (established in 2016), Faculty of Engineering (FoE) (established in 2016), 

Faculty of Allied Health Sciences (FAHS) (established in 2019), and Faculty of Dental Sciences 

(FDS). The newest addition is the Faculty of Dental Sciences which was established by order of 

Gazette Extraordinary No. 2257/28 dated 8th December 2021. This is a great achievement for the 

University as it is the 2nd Dental Sciences Faculty in the country. The establishment of the Faculty 

of Urban and Aquatic Bioresources (FUAB) as the 10th Faculty of the university is also currently 

underway and the first batch of students of this Faculty will enter the University in March 2022. 

The University has also taken measures to establish a Faculty of Computing and the first intake 

of students will be taken in 2023.  

 

Apart from these Faculties, the University also has an affiliated institute named the Postgraduate 

Institute of Management (PIM) based in Colombo 8. Dr W G S Kelum from the Department of 

Accounting, FMSC was appointed as the new Director to PIM with effect from 8th May 2021.  

 

The External Degrees and Extension Courses Unit (EDECU) of the University also achieved two 

important milestones in the year 2021. The first one being the appointment of the Director of the 

Unit. Ven. (Prof.) Pinnawala Sangasumana Thero of the Department of Geography of FHSS was 

appointed as the Director with effect from 3rd May 2021. EDECU was also moved to the Ellawala 

Building on Highlevel Road and it was ceremonially declared open for official use on 4th January 

2021. This building which is rented from a private party fullfills the much needed infrastructure 

requirement of the EDECU.   
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The 110th Commemoration Ceremony of the Most Venerable Hikkaduwe Sri Sumangala Nayake 

Thero was held on 29th April 2021 at the University premises in order to honour the service 

rendered by him as the founder of the Vidyodaya Pirivena in the 1873. The Unveiling Ceremony 

of the statue of the Most Venerable Weliwitiye Sri Soratha Nayaka Thero (founder Vice-

Chancellor of the Vidyodaya University) was also held on 25th February 2021 at the Faculty of 

Technology premises at Pitipana. 

 

It is indeed a pleasure to note that during the 3rd quarter of 2021, the University became the 4th 

best university in Sri Lanka in the Webometrics Ranking (July 2021). This achievement was 

facilitated by the unwavering commitment of the academic staff and the improved research 

capacity of the University. The University is also the frontrunner in terms of conducting research 

on whole genomic sequencing of the SARS-CoV-2 variants in Sri Lanka carried out by the 

Allergy, Immunology and Cell Biology Unit (AICBU) of the University.  

 

I am happy to note that the University managed to curtail the spread of Covid-19 successfully by 

adhering to all health guidelines. The University reported only one Covid-19 related fatality 

throughout the pandemic period. With the accelerated vaccination of the Sri Lankan population 

against Covid-19, the University organised several vaccination programmes for its staff and 

students. The administering of the 1st dose for staff was held on 20th May 2021 followed by the 

2nd dose administration on 22nd June 2021. Additionally, two other vaccination programmes were 

carried out from 11th – 15th October 2021 and 12th and 15th November 2021 for staff and students.  

 

The year 2021 was a rewarding year for the University in terms of sports as well. The students 

of the university managed to secure awards and accolades in both national and international 

arenas in Weightlifting, Athletics, Football, Gymnastics, Karate and Taekwondo.  

 

Furthermore, understanding the importance of protecting the environment, the University 

embarked on the journey to become the first Carbon Neutral University in South Asia by 

implementing the Carbon Zero project during the 4th quarter of the year. The Centre for 

Sustainability in the Department of Forestry and Environmental Sciences of FAS have taken the 

initiative of voluntarily disclosing the greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions of the University starting 

from 2019 following the ISO standard 14064-1:2019 and had faced a third-party ISO 14064-1 

audit on its GHG emissions on 22nd and 23rd of November 2021. The University also initiated a 

landscaping and beautification project in collaboration with the Road Development Authority to 

truly bring out the splendour and magnificence of the main University premises.  

 

The most anticipated event of the University, which is the 46th Convocation Ceremony was held 

from 28th – 30th December 2021 at the Bandaranaike Memorial International Conference Hall 

(BMICH). Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the 46th Convocation, which was originally planned 
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to be held in 2020 was rescheduled. Following all health guidelines, 3197 undergraduate, 

postgraduate students and doctoral candidates graduated from this ceremony. 

 

In the year under review, the total undergraduate student number had increased to 14,762 which 

is an improvement from the 13,758 students entered to the University in 2020. This indicates the 

University’s commitment for expansion of provision of tertiary education to the youth of Sri 

Lanka. Additionally, there were 2867 postgraduate students enrolled at the University in the year 

2021.  

 

Furthermore, the University also witnessed an increase in the number of academic staff members 

by another 41 in 2021, bringing the total to 1102, from 1061 recorded in 2020. It should also be 

noted that the University was fortunate to have the services of more than 380 PhD holders in the 

academic sector of the University. The year 2021 also recorded 1159 non-academic staff 

members employed at the University. The increased staff numbers greatly contributed to carrying 

out the activities of the University seamlessly with the increased student numbers.  

 

As the country was steadily recovering from the financial crisis instigated by the Covid-19 

pandemic, the University also recorded an increased internal revenue of LKR 649,582,744 as at 

31st December 2021, which is a notable increase from LKR 609,926,178 recorded in 2020. 

 

The University and its community navigated through the year 2021 with much courage and 

determination despite the challenges posed by the 2nd and 3rd waves of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

The University was able to carry out its activities under new normal condition by swiftly adapting 

to the circumstances and will continue to prosper while facing all challenges in the future.   

 

 

Senior Professor Sudantha Liyanage  

  BSc (Hons) (USJ), PhD (Cardiff), C Chem, FRSC, FIChem C, FPRISL 

Vice-Chancellor 
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GENERAL MANAGEMENT 

 

OFFICERS OF THE UNIVERSITY IN YEAR 2021 

 

Chancellor  Ven. Dr. Eththapana Dhammalankara 

Maha Nayaka Thero 

Vice Chancellor   Senior Prof. S.S.L.W. Liyanage 

 

Deans   

Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences Prof. S.C.B.Heenkenda  

 

Faculty of Applied Science    Prof. L.Karunanayake  

 

Faculty of Management Studies and  Prof. P.D. Nimal  

Commerce  

 

Faculty of Medical Sciences                               Prof. A.A. Pathirana  

 

Faculty of Graduate Studies  Senior Prof. M.M. Pathmalal 

 

Faculty of Technology            Prof. (Mrs.) A.H.L.R. Nilmini 

 

Faculty of Engineering             Prof. K.M.C. Konthesinghe 

 

Faculty of Allied Health Sciences   Senior Prof. (Mrs.) D.M.S. Fernando 

 

Faculty of Dental Sciences           Senior Prof. (Mrs.) S.G. Yasawardena          

                                                                             (Acting) 

 

      

Registrar      Mr. W.M.R.W.A.B. Weliwita 

 

 

Librarian  Dr. (Mrs.) W.D.A.N.D.Wijayasundara  

(On sabbatical leave from 15.07.2021) 

 

Dr. (Mrs.) G.D.M.N. Samaradiwakara   

(Acting: 15.07.2021 - 14.07.2022) 

 

 

Bursar      Mrs. K.T.C.Priyangani  
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ORGANIZATION CHART - UNIVERSITY OF SRI 

JAYEWARDENEPURA 

 

 

 

 

PIM  - Postgraduate Institute of Management DR  - Deputy Registrar 

FHSS  -Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences SAR  -Senior Assistant Registrar 

FAS  - Faculty of Applied Sciences AR  - Assistant Registrar 

FMSC  -Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce DB  -Deputy Bursar 

FMS  -Faculty of Medical Sciences SAB  -Senior Assistant Bursar 

FGS  -Faculty of Graduate Studies SAL  -Senior Assistant Liberian 

FT  -Faculty of Technology AL  -Assistant Librarian 

FE  -Faculty of Engineering 

FAHS-Faculty of Allied Health Sciences 

M/F  - Male/Female 
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GOVERNING BODIES OF THE UNIVERSITY 

 

The Council 

 

Under paragraph 44 of section VII of the Universities Act No 16 of 1978 as amended by 

University Amendment Act No. 7 of 1985, the University Council comprised the following in 

year 2019; 

 

Ex-officio members 

Vice Chancellor (Chairman)         Snr.Prof. S.S.L.W. Liyanage  

Registrar (Secretary)   Mr. W.M.R.W.A.B. Weliwita 

   

 

Deans  

Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences   Prof.S.C.B.Heenkenda 

 

Faculty of Applied Science     Snr.Prof. L. Karunanayaka 

 

Faculty of Management Studies and     Prof. P.D. Nimal  

Commerce 

  

Faculty of Medical Science   Prof. A.A. Pathirana  

       

Faculty of Graduate Studies               Snr. Prof. M.M. Pathmalal 

 

Faculty of Technology            Prof. (Mrs.) A.H.L.R. Nilmini 

 

Faculty of Engineering    Prof. K.M.C. Konthesinghe  

 

Faculty of Allied Health Sciences            Snr. Prof. (Mrs.) D.M.S. Fernando 

 

Faculty of Dental Sciences    Snr. Prof. S.G. Yasawardane 

 

 

Senate representatives 

1. Snr. Prof H.H.D.N.Opatha  

2. Prof. Muditha Widanapathirana 
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Council Members appointed by the University Grants Commission  

1. Ven. Dr. Kirinde Assaji Thero 

2. Ven. Dr. Balangoda Sobhitha Thero 

3. Prof. Sunil Ariyaratne 

4. Dr. A.M. Mubarak 

5. Mr. Ashoka Hettigoda 

6. Mr. H.T. Kamal Pathmasiri 

7. Mr. Roland Munasinghe 

8. Mr. W.K.H. Wegapitiya 

9. Mr. Sujeewa Rajapakse 

10. Mr. A.A. Ariyaratne  

11. Mr. Siri Ranasinghe  

12. Mr. Mahinda Ranasinghe 

 

Sub Committees of the Council 

 (i)  University Finance Committee 

 (ii)  Leave and Awards Committee 

 (iii)Audit and Management Committee 

 (iv) Planning and Development Committee 

 

 

 

The Senate  

 

The Senate consisted of the appointed members under paragraph 46 of Universities Act No.16 

of 1978. 

 

Sub Committees of the Senate 

(i) External Degrees Committee 

(ii)  Research and Publications Committee 

(ii) Computing Committee 
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Meetings held in 2021 
 

The Council, Senate and other authorities including nominated committees have met as follows 

during the year 2021 

 

Number of Meetings 

Council      10 

Senate       13 

Financeand Committee    10 

Leave and Awards Committee   12 

Research Committee     10 

External Degrees Committee    07 

Planning and Development Committee     06 

Audit and Management Committees   04 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE UNIVERSITY OF 

SRI JAYAWARDENEPURA  

 

University is committed to having good governance practices in place and applying highest 

standards of all functions performed during the year of 2018.This enhance the compliance with 

relevant statutory provisions, improve transparency of transactions, accountability and 

responsibility for the government funds. 

 

1) Compliance with the universities act. No  16 1978 

 Composition of the Council, Senate and the faculty boards has been decided by 

the act accordingly all appointments to the governing bodies to the university have 

been made according to the provisions specified in the universities act. 

 

 The council of the university act as the executive and the governing authority of 

the university. General Administrative, academic and financial policy decisions 

are taken with recommendation of the Senate, finance committee and other sub 

committees of the university. 

 

 Senate is appointed and act as the academic authority of the university .Senate 

shell have the control and general direction of the instructions, education, research 

and examinations in the university. 

 

 Quorum of the council and senate, minimum no of meetings to be held, duration 

of the, council, scope of power and functions of the boards, also specified in the 

act. University has complied in specified requirements.  

 

 General administrations, academic administrations and finance administrations 

are performed according to the provisions of the act  

 

 Student’s intakes for all undergraduate programs were allocated through the 

university grants commission and curriculums of all degree programs were 

approved by the university grants commission. 

 

 Budget allocations where given by the university Grants Commission and 

expenses have been incurred as budget line specified in the annual budget. 

 

 

2) Compliance with Government financial regulations and government procedures. 

 

As a government institution mainly funded by the treasury of Sri Lanka, All   financial 

transactions of the university are conducted and reported in compliance with the financial 

regulations, treasury circulars and guild line and circulars issued by the university grants 

commission.  
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3) Compliance with Government Procurement Guidelines. 

 

All goods and services, works, constructions and consultancies have been acquired during 

the year of 2018 in accordance with the procurement guideline of Sri Lanka. Procurement 

committees are appointed by the ministry secretary with the recommendation of the vice 

chancellor. Technical evaluation committees are appointed with the recommendation of 

the procurement committees. Preparation of   bidding documents, bid opening, bid 

documentation, bid evaluation, composition of the procurement committees and the 

technical evaluation committees, payments to the committees are made as per the 

provisions of the procurement guidelines.  

 

   04)  Compliance with establishment code and Scheme of recruitments. 

All staff matters including salaries, appointments, promotions, increments, leaves, 

disciplinary actions have been governed by the provisions in the university establishment 

code and scheme of recruitments. If any matter is not covered by the university 

establishment code, it refers to the government establishment code in Sri lank. Amount 

of the salaries and allowances are decided by the circulars issued by the treasury and 

adopted by the university grants commission.   

 

  5)  Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLPSAS), Lanka accounting Standards (LKAS) 

international financial reporting standards (IFRS) 

Financial Statements of the university are prepared and presented in accordance with 

public sector accounting standards. Lanka Accounting standards and International 

financial reporting standards are applies for reporting the transaction where the public 

sector transactions are not been introduced. 

 

06) Internal policies and procedures have been adopted with approval of the council for the 

matters which is not covered by other statutory provisions and within the scope specify 

by the statutory provisions. Eg. Segregation of duties, approval, authorization and 

certification limits etc. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND MITIGATION STRATEGIES 

OF UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA 

 

Facts and events that affect the smooth operation and sustainability of the university are identified 

as risk factors of the university. University of Sri Jayewardenepura has been adopting their own 

cultures and adoptive cultures in the operations of the university. The survival and growth in 

higher education sector is challenging and planning for uncertainties are essential. The 

educational sector dynamics are observed vigilantly, evaluated and prudent measures are applied 

to face the challenges. 

 

Approach to risk mitigation 

 

Risk management is done continuously in order to reduce the risk volatility and improve returns. 

Higher education sector is exposed to high risk both internally and externally. Being a 

government university, the University of Sri Jayewardenepura focus on providing sustainable 

value to our stakeholders by identifying the risk. Probable impact and taking practicable 

precautions and prompt actions to mitigate them. 

Assessment of such risk and related responses are set out below. 

 

a. Internal Risk  

 

Operational Risk and Management 

Operational risk associated with the day to day operation of the university. This affects efficiency 

and effectiveness of the human resources integrity of the internal control system, process and 

external factors which affect the day to day operations. It also includes execution risk unfavorable 

regulatory changes, customer dependency, safety and health, fire and environment risk inherent 

with core operations of the university. 

 

Impact 

Failure to adopt this risk promptly and prudently will have negative impact on operation and 

going concern of the university. 

 

Response  

Composition of the council and their capacity is a significant fact in respect of the operational 

risk. The council of the university is composed well to be helpful to operate with least risk. As 

internal driven operational risk measure, accounting control are done in more efficient and 

transparent manner to evaluate and monitor the operation of the university.   The university use 

communication channels to inform and empower department heads and line management to carry 
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out the operational activities under the budgetary provision while communicating performance 

and discrepancies with the higher management. Functional matters have been discussed in 

academic and administrative officers meeting and finance matters are discussed and 

recommended to the council. Such working culture helps to make the operation free from risk on 

monitoring or accounting controls. 

Recruitment of the university is carried out in more efficient manner selecting the correct 

candidate with the right qualification and skills without any biases. Therefore the university 

benefited with stable and competent workforce. Staff training and development has been 

considered as important tool to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of the human resource.

  

Risk of fire and potential damages are mitigated by taking protective measures such as 

identifying potential fire risks, installation of fire control equipment, employee training and 

systematic monitoring and control measures. In addition to that risk mitigation actions are 

supported by risk transfer mechanism such as insurance. 

Since operational risk can never be entirely eliminated and the cost of elimination may overweigh 

the potential benefits, Preventive management approach is taken with continuous monitoring and 

upgrading. 

 

Technological Risk and Management 

Success of institution depend on the existence of modern information technology and 

information generation through efficient management information system.   

 

Impact 

Any disruption of failures in the system infrastructures and application may have negative impact 

to the organization. Delays in processing transitions, lack of reliability of transitions. Frauds and 

errors may occur leading to future financial losses 

 

Response  

Centre for IT Services (CITS) has been established to manage the IT infrastructures. Internet and 

email facilities server administration maintain e service and applications while providing IT 

technical support and solution for the University students and staff, sufficient funds have been 

allocated for technological advancement especially for establishment of e learning facilities for 

the University students. 

 

b. External Risk 

 

Product Risk Management 

University is engaged in providing undergraduate, post graduate education and research to the 

nation. Risk is associate with the employability and the recognitions for the degrees offered by 
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the University and international recognition for the University. Further MOUs have been signed 

for the international collaboration to enhance foreign exposures for graduates. Actions have been 

taken to obtain accreditation certain faculties.  

 

Impact 

 

Failure to address this risk may affect sustainability of certain degree program due to un-

employability of the degree holders. 

 

Response  

Curriculum of degree programs update regularly to enhance the employability of the degree 

holders. Various programs have been introduced to improve research and soft kills of the 

students. Industry training is compulsory for certain degree program to shape the undergraduate 

for employments.  

 

Financial Risk Management 

The University’s activities are exposed to various finance risk such as Credit RISK, Liquidity 

risk and market risk. Risk management programs to be focus to minimize the potential adverse 

impact on the financial performance of the University. 

 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that at a future date the other party to financial transaction may cause 

financial loss to the entity by failure to discharge an obligation. 

Key reasons where the University exposed to credit risk as a part of its operations. 

 Sudden budget cuts due to country situation 

 Delays in receiving funds from the treasury 

 Receivables on post graduate fee levy course 

Impact 

Credit risk mainly impact on the reliability about the entity for suppliers and constructors, delays 

in completion of works. Quality of the work may reduce, loss of good customers for future 

engagements and bad impact on continuation of the certain courses. 

 

Response 

Risk associate with treasury fund can’t be eliminated. However, through good working capital 

management, the risk can be reduced E.g. giving priorities for urgent payment, cost cutting on 

unnecessary things. Temporary utilization of earned funds of the university and postpone certain 

payments. In addition to that continues monitoring of receivables on fee levy courses also may 

reduce the credit risk. 
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Liquidity Risk  

Liquidity risk is the funding risk that an entity can encounter in meeting obligation associate with 

financial liabilities. 

 

Impact 

Liquidity risk badly affects in financing day to day operations of the University. 

 

Response   

Liquidity can manage through continuous reconciling and monitoring of cash flows from assets 

and liabilities and maintain mismatches in prudent level. Cash low forecast are prepared and 

review regularly to identify the liquidity requirements. Further current accounts balances are 

transferred to overnight bank deposits and earn inters income on temporary excess cash.  

 

Market Risk 

The market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments due to 

changes in the market price. Objective of market risk management is to manage and control the 

market risk expose within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return on risks. Market 

risk comprises two risks currency risk and interest rate risk.  

  

Currency Risk  

Currency risk is the risk that the value of the financial instruments will fluctuate due to the 

changes in the foreign exchange rates. As protection against the currency risk the university 

backs its most commitments in local currency. The university has not invested or borrowed in 

foreign currencies. The currency risk attached to the financial instrument is minimal as it 

represents local currency. 

 

Interest Rate Risk 

The interest rate risk is the risk to an entity’s earnings and economic value of equity (EVE) 

arising from the adverse movement in interest rates. University’s short term deposits are at fixed 

interest rate. Rates are called from government banks and reinvested in a bank offered highest 

interest rate. 
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DETAILS OF RESOURCES & STUDENTS 

 DETAILS OF LOCAL STUDENTS  

 

Details of local students    

    

Degree Programme/ Faculty 

New 

Registration

s 

Total No. of 

students 

Registered 

Graduates 

Internal Undergraduates       

Humanities & Social Sciences 984 3565 835 

Applied Sciences 875 2678 631 

Management Studies & Commerce 1348 4966 1185 

Medical Sciences 193 1174 154 

Technology 491 1438 289 

Faculty 
No. of 

Departments 

Total 

Undergradua

tes (Internal) 

Total Academic Staff Total Non-

Academic 

Staff Permanent Contract 

Faculty of Humanities & 

Social Sciences 
16 3568 140 58 58 

Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 
11 2678 154 125 131 

Faculty of Management 

Studies & Commerce 
12 4966 188 49 92 

Faculty of Medical 

Sciences 
17 1177 115 12 147 

Faculty of Technology 5 1438 66 54 67 

Faculty of Engineering 5 540 23 50 48 

Faculty of Allied Health 

Sciences 
4 395 36 10 32 

Faculty of Dental 

Sciences * 
9 - - - - 

      
Note:  * Gazette notification for the establishment of the faculty was issued in December 2021 
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Engineering 186 540 103 

Allied Health Sciences 155 395 76 

Total Internal Undergraduates 4232 14756 3273 

External Undergraduates       

Bachelor of Arts (General) External Degree 2778 69536 - 

Bachelor of Humanities and Social Science             

(General) External Degree 
- 6550 - 

Bachelor of Social Science (General) External 

Degree in Environmental and Development 

Studies 

- 637 - 

Bachelor of Arts in English (General) External 

Degree 
- 2906 20 

B.Sc. Business Administration  (General) 

External Degree 
- 8616 290 

B.Sc. Management (Public) (General) External 

Degree 
- 9503 - 

B.com (General) External Degree - 12909 - 

B.Sc. Business Studies (General) External 

Degee 
422 422 - 

External Undergraduates Total 3200 111079 310 

Postgraduates       

PG. Certificates 15 57 8 

PG. Diploma 45 199 120 

Master Degrees 402 2200 245 

M.Phil. Degrees 19 197 17 

Doctoral Degrees 58 210 28 

Total Postgraduates 539 2863 418 

Total number of students 7971 128698 4001 
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DETAILS OF FOREIGN STUDENTS 

 

 FOREIGN UNDERGRADUATE STUDENT ENROLMENT - 2021 

  

(Students selected under foreign category) 

Faculy 
Programme of 

Study 

Year of 

Study 

Year of 

Intake 

Student enrolment (No. 

of registered students)t 

Male Female Total 

Humanities & 

Social Sciences 

B. A(General) 

Degree 
3rd Year 2017/2018 3 0 3 

Medical 

Science 
MBBS 

2st Year 2018/2019 1   1 

3rd Year 2017/2018 1 1 2 

Total 5 1 6 

 
 

FOREIGN POSTGRADUATE STUDENT ENROLMENT - 2021 

 

Programme of Study Country 

Student enrolment (Total No. of registered 

students) 

Male Female Total 

MPhil in Buddhist 

Philosophy 

India 1  - 1 

Myanmar 1  -  1 

China 1  -  1 

MPhil in Pali Myanmar 1  - 1 

Total 4 0 4 
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REGISTRATION OF STUDENT 

DETAILS OF NEW REGISTRATIONS RELEVANT TO 2019/2020 UGC 

INTAKE (INTERNAL UNDERGRADUATES) 

 

Faculty Agreed Intake No. Registered 

Date of 

Commencement of 

the Academic Year 

Faculty of Humanities & Social 

Sciences 
700 984 01.03.2021 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 785 875 14.06.2021 

Faculty of Management Studies & 

Commerce 
1352 1348 22.03.2021 

Faculty of Medical Sciences 184 193 15.02.2021 

Faculty of Technology 361 491 04.10.2021 

Faculty of Engineering 170 186 15.03.2021 

Faculty of Allied Health Sciences 180 155 21.06.2021 

Total 3732 4232   

 

DETAILS OF INTERNAL UNDERGRADUATES NEW REGISTRATIONS IN 

LAST FIVE YEARS 

 

Intake Year 

Faculty 

Total 
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2015/2016 837 628 1215 221 321 121 3343 

2016/2017 877 698 1213 231 321 120 3460 

2017/2018 942 743 1223 235 318 121 3582 

2018/2019 939 781 1216 248 323 120 3627 

2019/2020 984 875 1348 348 491 186 4232 
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GRADUATE OUTPUT 

Graduate Output - 2021 

Faculty 
First 

Class 

Second 

Upper 

Second 

Lower 
Pass 

Total 

number 

graduated 

Humanities & Social Sciences 59 452 203 121 835 

Applied Sciences 49 204 123 255 631 

Management Studies & Commerce 151 273 282 479 1185 

Medical Sciences 7 33 53 61 154 

Technology 13 107 85 84 289 

Engineering 8 38 44 13 103 

Allied Health Sciences 6 19 18 33 76 

Total 293 1126 808 1046 3273 

 
Note:  Graduates shown under the Faculty of Allied Health Sciences have been awarded their degree by          

        the Faculty of Medical Sciences, since these students have been registered before the establishment   

       of the Faculty of Allied Health Sciences. 
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GRADUATE EMPLOYABILITY 

 

         Note:     

(1) Above figures are based on the Employability Survey conducted at the time of the 2020 

convocation. Please note that, due to COVID19 situation in the country 2020 convocation 

was held in December 2021. Therefore, most of the graduates got approximately 01 year time 

period to find a job before the convocation.  

 
 

(2) Category ‘Other’ includes graduates who are involved in higher studies and the graduates 

who are not seeking any jobs 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Faculty Employed Other Un Employed Total 

Humanities & Social Sciences 46.1% 4.4% 49.5% 100.0% 

Applied Sciences 91.4% 2.9% 5.7% 100.0% 

Management Studies & Commerce 94.3% 0.9% 4.8% 100.0% 

Medical Science 99.5% 0.0% 0.5% 100.0% 

Overall 
79.1% 2.3% 18.6% 100.0% 
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STUDENTS WELFARE FACILITIES 

MAHAPOLA SCHOLARSHIPS 

Actual Mahapola Scholarship Payments Up to December- 2021 

Academic 

Year 
2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019 

Total Payment 

(Rs.) 

Humanities & 

Social 

Sciences 

- - 441 617 630 44,930,550.00 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce 

- - 877 953 967 60,140,150.00 

Medical 

Sciences 
88 64 74 78 79 10,858,400.00 

Engineering - - 51 52 61 4,361,000.00 

Technology - - 211 232 246 12,149,550.00 

Applied 

Sciences 
- - 105 276 299 11,688,950.00 

Total  88 64 1759 2208 2282 132,439,650.00 
 

BURSARIES 

Payment of Bursaries during the year is shown below (by Academic Year and Faculties) 2021 

Academic 

Year 

Humanities 

& Social 

Sciences 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce 

Medical 

Sciences 
Engineering Technology 

Applied 

Sciences 

Annual 

Expenditure 

(Rs.) 

2014/2015 - - 6 - - - 

           

72,000.00  

2015/2016 - - 5 - - - 

       

1,492,000.00  

2016/2017 126 - 10 6 21 51 

     

12,056,000.00  

2017/2018 153 32 19 7 11 107 

     

12,020,000.00  

2018/2019 91 20 24 6 9 109 

       

9,260,000.00  

Total  370 52 64 19 41 267 

  

34,900,000.00  

Advance Payments 

2019/2020 575 705 102 63 219 273 

     

37,688,000.00  
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HOSTEL FACILITIES 

 

Provision of hostels for University students and details of accommodation provided for 

students are as follows: 

 

Faculty 
 

 

Female 
 

 

Male 
 

 

Total 
 

Humanities and Social Sciences 598 58 656 

Applied Sciences  194 97 291 

Management Studies and Commerce 152 83 235 

Medical Sciences 134 85 219 

Para Medical  231 64 295 

Technology  125 291 416 

Engineering  64 135 199 

Total  1498 813 2311 

 

 

University owned hostels 

Humanities 

and Social 

Sciences 

Applied 

Sciences 

Management 

Studies and 

Commerce 

Medical 

Sciences 

Para 

Medical 

Technology Engineering Total 

485 199 152 134 122 416 0 1508 

 

 

Rented Facilities 

Humanities 

and Social 

Sciences 

Applied 

Sciences 

Management 

Studies and 

Commerce 

Medical 

Sciences 

Para 

Medical 

Technology Engineering Total 

171 92 83 85 173 0 199 803 

 

 

 Most of the academic activities of the faculties were done through online in year 2021 due 

to Covd-19 pandemic situation. Hostels were provided temporary basis to conduct exams, 

trainings and practicals based on the request made by each faculty. 
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STAFF DETAILS 

STAFF SUMMARY BASED ON SERVICE CATEGORY (AS AT 31ST 

DECEMBER 2021 

Staff Summary based on service category (as at 31st December 

2021)   

     

Service Category Salary Code 
Approved 

Cadre 

Actual 

Cadre 
Vacancies 

 

1.   Primary Level 

Primary Grade – Unskilled U - PL 1 

571 

314 

67 Primary Grade - Semi Skilled U - PL 2 78 

Primary Grade – Skilled U - PL 3 112 

 

2    Secondary Level 

Management Assistant - non –   

Technical 
  

599 

269 

47 

Management Assistant - Technical U - MT  1 139 

Associate Officers - Segment 2 U - MN 2 8 

Associate Officers - Segment 1 U - MN 3 19 

Staff Assistant 
U - MN 4 117 

Supra & Senior Staff   

 

3   Tertiary Level 

Temporary Tutor/ Temp.  

Demonstrator 

Fixed 394 331 63 
Temp. Instructor/ Temp. Asst.  

Lecturer 

Temp. Research Asst./ Temporary  

Lecturer 

Academic Support - Segment 2 U -AS 1 41 21 20 

Junior Executive / Managers U -EX 1 34 28 6 

Academic Support - Segment 1 U -AS 2 39 29 10 

 

4.   Senior Level 

Medical Officer U -MO 1 9 7 2 

Chief Medical Officer U -MO 2 0 0 0 

Middle Level Executives U -EX 2 26 26 0 

Senior Executives U - EX 3 2 2 0 

Asst. Librarian/ Lecturer (Prob.) 

U - AC 3 

948 771 177 

Lecturer/ Lecturer (On Contract) 

Snr. Asst. Librarian 

Snr. Lecturer/ Snr. Lecturer (On  

Contract) 

Associate Professors/ Deputy  

Librarian 

Librarian U - AC 4 

Snr. Professor/Professor/Librarian U - AC 5 
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DETAILS OF ACADEMIC, ADMINISTRATIVE, ACADEMIC SUPPORT 

AND NON-ACADEMIC STAFF DURING THE YEAR 2021 

 

Details of academic, administrative, other executive & academic support staff 

         

  
Approve

d Cadre 

Exsisting Cadre  

Vacancies  Designation Permanent 
Contract/ 

Temporary 

  Male Female Total Male Female Total 

 

Academic Staff 

Senior Professor 

934 

24 17 41       

164 

Professor  73 53 126       

Associate Professor  3 6 9       

Senior Lecturer Gr.I  75 81 156       

Senior Lecturer Gr.II            114 125 239 6 3 9 

Lecturer 21 35 56 17 11 28 

Lecturer (Probationary) 41 54 95       

Temporary Lecturer       5 6 11 

Temp.Asst. Lecturer/ 

Tutor/ Demo./ Instructor  
380       75 239 314 66 

Librarian  1   1 1         

Deputy Librarian 1   1 1         

Senior Assistant 

Librarian Grade I  

12 

  3 3       

2 Senior Assistant 

Librarian Grade II 
1 2 3       

Assistant Librarian 1 3 4       

Temp.Research Assistant 14         6 6 8 

Academic Staff Total 1342 353 381 734 103 265 368 240 

 

Administrative Officers                 

Registrar 1 1   1         

Bursar 1   1 1         

Deputy Registrar 

23 

2 3 5   1 1 

0 
Senior Assistant  

Registrar 
1 4 5     0 

Assistant Registrar   12 12     0 

Deputy Bursar 

15 

  2 2       

1 Senior Assistant Bursar 3 4 7 1   1 

Assistant Bursar   4 4       

Deputy Internal Auditor 1 1   1         

Senior Assistant 

Registrar/  Legal Affairs 
1   1 1       

  

Assistant Registrar/ 

Library Services 
1   1 1         

Administrative total 43 8 32 40 1 1 2 1 
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Designation 
Approved 

Cadre 

Current Cadre  

Vacancies Permanent Permanent 

Male Male Male Male Male Male 

 

Other Executive Staff                  

IS Manager  1 1   1         

Director / Physical    

Education 
1   1 1         

Project Manager 1     0 1   1   

Chief Marshal 1     0       1 

Deputy Chief Marshal 1     0       1 

Chief Security Officer 1 1   1       0 

Works Engineer  1 1   1         

Workshop Engineer  3   1 1       2 

Curator 2 1   1 1   1 0 

Museum Curator  2 1 1 2         

Statistical Officer  2 1   1       1 

Other Executive Total   16 6 3 9 2 0 2 5 

 

Medical Officers                 

Senior Medical Officer / 

Medical Officer 
8   2 2 1 3 4 2 

Dental Surgeon 1   1 1         

Medical Officers total 9 0 3 3 1 3 4 2 

 

Academic Support                 

Instructor (Computer 

Technology) - Grade I 
21 

9   9       

6 
Instructor (Computer 

Technology) - Grade II 
4 2 6       

Asst. Statistician – Gr. I 1 1   1         

Asst. Network Manager 6 5   5     0 1 

Senior Instructor in 

Social Work 
1 1   1         

Career Guidance 

Councellors 
4 1 1 2       2 

Programmer cum 

Systems Analyst – Gr. II 
4 2 1 3       1 

Snr.Instructor in English 1   1 1         

Instructor in English 21 1 1 2       19 

Instructor in Physical 

Education - Grade I 
7 

    0       

0 
Instructor in Physical 

Education - Grade II 
4 1 5 2   2 

Instructor 3 2 1 3         

Gymnasium Instructor 2     0 1   1 1 

Computer Programmer 8 8   8     0 0 

Scientific Asst. Grade II 1 1   1       0 

Ac. Support total 80 39 8 47 3 0 3 30 

Total 1490 406 427 833 110 269 379 278 
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Details non academic staff 

 

 

Post 
Salary 

Code 

Approve

d Cadre 

Actual Cadre As at 31st December 2021 

Permanent 
Assignment/ 

Contract 
  

Male Female Total Male Female Total Vacancies 

Marshal  U-MN 3 7 7   7       0 

Sub Warden ( Full 

Time )  
U-MN 3 14 5 7 12       2 

Graduate Translator  U-MN 3 1     0       1 

Deputy Chief Security 

Officer 
U-MN 2 1     0       1 

Works Supirintendent U-MN 2 3     0       3 

Works Supirintendent 

(Civil) 
U-MN 2 6 3   3       3 

Works Supirintendent 

(Electrical) 
U-MN 2 1 1   1       0 

Works Supirintendent 

(Landscape) 
U-MN 2 1 1   1       0 

Audit Assistant U-MN 1 5 1 4 5       0 

Management Assistant U-MN 1 303 75 225 300     0 3 

Management Assistant 

(Book Keeping)  
U-MN 1 8 5 3 8       0 

Management Assistant 

(Shroff) 
U-MN 1 5 1 1 2       3 

Management Assistant 

(Store Keeping)  
U-MN 1 8 5   5       3 

Telephone Operator 

cum Receptionist  
U-MN 1 2   2 2       0 

Library Information 

Assistant 
U-MN 1 34 16 15 31   1 1 2 

Security Inspector U-MN 1 5 4   4       1 

Swimming Pool 

Supervisor 
U-MN 1 1     0       1 

Craft Demonstrator 

(Mechanical) 
U-MN 1 1 2   2       -1 

Craft Demonstrator 

(Fitting) 
U-MN 1 1     0       1 

Craft Demonstrator 

(Electrical) 
U-MN 1 1     0       1 

Works Supervisor 

(Civil) 
U-MT 1 5 5   5       0 

Works Supervisor 

(Electrical) 
U-MT 1 3 1   1       2 

Works Supervisor 

(Landscape) 
U-MT 1 1 1   1       0 

Audio Visual Technical 

Officer 
U-MT 1 5 1   1       4 

Dental Nursing Officer U-MT 1 1   1 1       0 

Draughtsman  U-MT 1 4 1 1 2       2 

Nursing Officer U-MT 1 11 1 5 6     0 5 

Pharmacist  U-MT 1 4 3 1 4       0 

Physiotherapist U-MT 1 1     0       1 
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Public Health Inspector  U-MT 1 2 2   2       0 

Technical Officer U-MT 1 124 54 53 107 6 4 10 7 

Technical Officer 

(ICT) 
U-MT 1 21 18 5 23     0 -2 

Technical Officer 

(Civil) 
U-MT 1 4   1 1       3 

Technical Officer 

(Electrical) 
U-MT 1 3 3   3       0 

Technical Officer 

(Mechanical) 
U-MT 1 4 3 1 4       0 

Technical Officer (X-

Ray/Dexa Scan) 
U-MT 1 1     0       1 

Driver  U-PL 3 41 38   38       3 

Book Binder  U-PL 3 2 2   2       0 

Electrician  U-PL 3 9 9   9       0 

Carpenter  U-PL 3 8 7   7       1 

Fitter U-PL 3 1     0       1 

Machinist U-PL 3 1     0       1 

Mason  U-PL 3 8 8   8       0 

Mechanic  U-PL 3 1 1   1       0 

Plumber U-PL 3 8 8   7 1   1 0 

Aluminium Fabricator U-PL 3 1     0       1 

Tinker Instead Welder U-PL 3 1     0       1 

Welder U-PL 3 2 1   1       1 

Tractor Operator  U-PL 2 1     0       1 

Two Wheel Tractor 

Operator  
U-PL 2 0     0       0 

Gas Plant Operator  U-PL 2 1     0       1 

Lab Attendant  U-PL 2 102 74 20 94     0 8 

Lab Attendant 

(Drawing) 
U-PL 2 1     0       1 

Attendant Health 

Service  
U-PL 2 2   1 1       1 

Gymnasium Attendant U-PL 2 2     0 1   1 1 

Lathe Machine 

Operator 
U-PL 2 1     0       1 

Painter U-PL 2 3 2   2       1 

Polisher  U-PL 2 2 2   2       0 

Pump Operator  U-PL 2 1 1   1       0 

Engine Cume Pump 

Operator 
U-PL 2 1 1   1       0 

Specimen Collector  U-PL 2 2 1   1     0 1 

Care Taker U-PL 2 2 1   1       1 

Gardner U-PL 1 2 1   1       1 

Groundsman U-PL 1 1 1   1       0 

Health Service 

Labourer 
U-PL 1 18 11   11       7 

Works Aid U-PL 1 220 200 16 216     0 4 

Post-mortem Labourer U-PL 1 2 1   1       1 

Office Machine 

Operator  
U-PL 1 6 6   6       0 

Library Attendant  U-PL 1 24 10 5 15     0 9 

Lorry Cleaner  U-PL 1 1 1   1       0 
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PERMANANET ACADEMIC STAFF BY FACULTY - 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Lowan Mower 

Operator 
U-PL 1 1     0       1 

Security Guard  U-PL 1 88 54   54 17   17 17 

Storeman U-PL 1 2 1   1       1 

Swimming Pool 

Attendent 
U-PL 1 2 2   2       0 

 

Total   1173 663 367 1029 25 5 30 

 

114 

 

Faculty 

S
en

io
r
 P

ro
fe

ss
o
rs

 

P
ro

fe
ss

o
rs

 

A
ss

o
ci

a
te

 

P
ro

fe
ss

o
rs

 

S
en

io
r
 L

ec
tu

re
r 

G
r.

 I
 

S
en

io
r
 L

ec
tu

re
r 

G
r.

 I
I 

L
ec

tu
re

r 

L
ec

tu
re

r 

P
ro

b
a
ti

o
n

 

T
o
ta

l 

Humanities & Social 

Sciences 
7 28 4 47 27 8 19 140 

Applied Sciences 11 31   27 56 12 17 154 

Management Studies & 

Commerce 
12 35 2 46 51 18 24 188 

Medical Sciences 11 29 3 22 24 10 16 115 

Technology   1   6 45 5 9 66 

Engineering       3 19 1   23 

Allied Health Sciences   2   5 17 2 10 36 

Total 41 126 9 156 239 56 95 

 

722 
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ACADEMIC STAFF QUALIFICATIONS OF THE UNIVERSITY:  2018 - 2021 
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Designation wise Academic Staff : 2018 - 2021

Senior Professors Professors Associate Professors Snr. Lecturer Lecturer/ Lecturer (Prob.)

Year 

First 

Degrees & 

PG Dip. 

Masters  M.Phil MD/MS 
Doctoral 

Degrees 
Total 

2018 74 147 42 61 296 620 

2019 87 147 42 56 309 641 

2020 73 149 43 63 361 689 

2021 72 156 41 65 400 734 
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KEY INITIATIVES AND PROJECTS                                  

- COVID-19 PANDEMIC RESPONSE  

 

The University of Sri Jayewardenepura responded at the very onset of the COVID-19 outbreak 

and initiated PCR testing by the Allergy Immunology and Cell Biology Unit from 28th February 

2020, for the identification of SARS-CoV2 as it was of national importance to do so.  

We were able to recognize the first local COVID 19 patient on the 10th of March 2020 through 

testing. We have continued this operation continuously during the year. 

Our dedicated team of scientists have been working all seven days, late into the night, in order 

to provide such a service on a 24-hour basis, even though we are not obliged to provide 

diagnostic services to the MOH. The team was led by Prof Neelika Malavige and Prof Chandima 

Jeewandara  

 

DIAGNOSTIC AND OTHER SERVICES RENDERED TO THE MINISTRY OF HEALTH  

 

1. PCR – Number of Tests done – 220,764 

We have updated the Ministry of Health and the data is already given with laboratory 

references. Total operation cost estimated for this operation as per the MOH standard 

rates was Rs 1,103,820,000.00  

2. SARS CoV2 Sequencing – Number of tests done – 3,032 

This data is real-time updated and is accessible with the following link 

https://nextstrain.org/community/aicbu/ncov/srilanka 

3. Number of Sequence PCR tests done – 24,000 (selected 600 samples into 40 runs) 

 

4. Number of Antibody tests done – 9,640 

 

5. Number of Variant PCR tests done on request of Secretary/MOH – 15,000 

 

The consumables and reagents were purchased by the University of Sri Jayewardenepura for 

which the expenses were reimbursed by the Ministry of Health accordingly. The above 

mentioned diagnostics and services were carried out by the Allergy, Immunology, and Cell 

Biology Unit during the period of 28th February 2020 to 30th April 2022. 

 

This service was rendered on an entirely voluntary basis without any benefits to any 

member in the team. 
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WORKING HOURS AND CONTRIBUTION FROM THE STAFF 

 

The lab was functional 24 hours continuously for PCR testing. The staff was contributing to this 

national need even during the long curfew period spending their personal money for transport 

and obtaining curfew passes with utmost difficulty.  The work included complete lockdown days 

of the country when all other staff was adopting to work from home. All the services rendered 

on a voluntary basis. The laboratory was supervised by Prof Neelika Malavige and Prof 

Chandima Jeewandara from 8am-4pm normal working hours and alternating two shifts of 4pm 

to 12 mid-night (8 hours) / 12 mid-night to 8 am (8 hours) which was shared between them for 

the entire work duration. 

 
 

RESEARCH OUTPUT  

 

Year 2021 

1. Jeewandara, C., Jayathilaka, D., Gomes, L. et al. SARS-CoV-2 neutralizing antibodies 

in patients with varying severity of acute COVID-19 illness. Sci Rep 11, 2062 (2021). 

https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-021-81629-2 

2. Jeewandara, C., Kamaladasa, A., Pushpakumara, P.D. et al. Immune responses to a single 

dose of the AZD1222/Covishield vaccine in health care workers. Nat Commun 12, 4617 

(2021). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41467-021-24579-7 

3. Kamaladasa A, Gunasekara B, Jeewandara C, et al. Comparison of two assays to detect 

IgG antibodies to the receptor binding domain of SARS-CoV-2 as a surrogate marker for 

assessing neutralizing antibodies in COVID-19 patients. Int J Infect Dis. 2021;109:85-

89. doi:10.1016/j.ijid.2021.06.031 

4. Jeewandara C, Jayathilaka D, Ranasinghe D, et al. Genomic and Epidemiological 

Analysis of SARS-CoV-2 Viruses in Sri Lanka [published correction appears in Front 

Microbiol. 2022 Apr 11;13:898684]. Front Microbiol. 2021;12:722838. Published 2021 

Sep 16. doi:10.3389/fmicb.2021.722838 

5. Malavige GN, Jeewandara C, Ghouse A, Somathilake G, Tissera H. Changing 

epidemiology of dengue in Sri Lanka-Challenges for the future. PLoS Negl Trop Dis. 

2021;15(8):e0009624. Published 2021 Aug 19. doi:10.1371/journal.pntd.0009624 

6. Jeewandara C, Guruge D, Abyrathna IS, et al. Seroprevalence of SARS-CoV-2 Infection 

in the Colombo Municipality Region, Sri Lanka. Front Public Health. 2021;9:724398. 

Published 2021 Nov 12. doi:10.3389/fpubh.2021.724398 

7. Pushpakumara PD, Madhusanka D, Dhanasekara S, Jeewandara C, Ogg GS, Malavige 

GN. Identification of Novel Candidate CD8+ T Cell Epitopes of the SARS-CoV2 with 

https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-021-81629-2
https://doi.org/10.1038/s41467-021-24579-7
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Homology to Other Seasonal Coronaviruses. Viruses. 2021;13(6):972. Published 2021 

May 24. doi:10.3390/v13060972 

8. Silva T, Jeewandara C, Gomes L, et al. Urinary leukotrienes and histamine in patients 

with varying severity of acute dengue. PLoS One. 2021;16(2):e0245926. Published 2021 

Feb 5. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0245926 

9. Jayathilaka D, Jeewandara C, Gomes L, et al. Kinetics of immune responses to SARS-

CoV-2 proteins in individuals with varying severity of infection and following a single 

dose of the AZD1222 [published online ahead of print, 2022 Jan 27]. Clin Exp Immunol. 

2022;uxac009. doi:10.1093/cei/uxac009 

10. Jeewandara C, Guruge D, Pushpakumara PD, et al. Immune Responses to a Single Dose 

of the AZD1222/Covishield Vaccine at 16 Weeks in Individuals in Sri Lanka. J Immunol. 

2021;207(11):2681-2687. doi:10.4049/jimmunol.2100762 

11. Jeewandara C, Guruge D, Jayathilaka D, et al. Transmission dynamics, clinical 

characteristics and sero-surveillance in the COVID-19 outbreak in a population dense 

area of Colombo, Sri Lanka April- May 2020. PLoS One. 2021;16(11):e0257548. 

Published 2021 Nov 8. doi:10.1371/journal.pone.0257548 

12. Jayadas TTP, Kumanan T, Gomes L, et al. Regional Variation in Dengue Virus Serotypes 

in Sri Lanka and Its Clinical and Epidemiological Relevance. Diagnostics (Basel). 

2021;11(11):2084. Published 2021 Nov 10. doi:10.3390/diagnostics11112084 

13. Bandara S, Bhaumik S, Sriram V, et al. Stronger together: a new pandemic agenda for 

South Asia. BMJ Glob Health. 2021;6(8):e006776. doi:10.1136/bmjgh-2021-006776 

14. Jeewandara C, Fernando S, Pushpakumara PD, et al. Immune responses following the 

first dose of the Sputnik V (Gam-COVID-Vac). Sci Rep. 2022;12(1):1727. Published 

2022 Feb 2. doi:10.1038/s41598-022-05788-6 

15. de Silva, T.I. and Malavige, G.N., 2021. Expansion of SARS-CoV-2 sequencing capacity 

globally is vital for future control of the COVID-19 pandemic. Sri Lanka Journal of 

Medicine, 30(1), pp.4–8. DOI: http://doi.org/10.4038/sljm.v30i1.273 

16. COVID-19 Pandemic: lessons learnt and the way forward 

https://journals.sjp.ac.lk/index.php/vjs/article/view/5403 

 

 

 

HEALTH EDUCATION 

 

Talks delivered by Prof Neelika Malavige and Prof Chandima Jeewandara at professional 

colleges and organizations. This service rendered by Prof Chandima Jeewandara and Prof 

Neelika Malavige on an honorary basis. 

 

 

https://journals.sjp.ac.lk/index.php/vjs/article/view/5403
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International 

 Commemorating 2021 ASEAN Dengue Day & Advocacy for World Dengue Day. 

Dengue Immunopathogenesis. July 2021 

 Climate change and global expansion of viral haemorrhagic fever: Royal College of 

Physicians Edinburgh, Symposium on infectious diseases, June 2021 

 Immunopathogenesis of dengue-lessons for COVID-19: Guest lecture, University of 

Gdańsk, Poland. March 12th 2021 

 

National 

 Omicron variant and how Sri Lanka is preparing for a surge: Sri Lanka Foundation, 

symposium on Omicron. 19th December 2021 

 Vaccines: End game for COVID-19: C.G. Uragoda Memorial Oration, College of 

Pulmonologists, 28th November 2021 

 Vaccines for the next pandemic: Colombo Medical Congress 2021, 27th November 

 Sri Lanka College of Internal Medicine, November 2021 

 Why is research important for development: School Science Day, National Science 

Foundation: 16th November 2021 

 Investigating immune responses to COVID-19: in natural infection and vaccination: 

Preconference workshop organised by the Centre for Immunology and Molecular 

Biology, University of Colombo, 21st November 2021 

 Risk factors, immunopathogenesis of COVID-19 and vaccines: Good intern program 

organised by the GMOA, October 2021 

 COVID-19 vaccines and the immune response, Annual congress of the Sri Lanka College 

of Microbiologists, August 2021 

 COVID-19 vaccines and variants, National Science and Technology Commission, 

August 2021 

 Vaccines in COVID-19: Sri Lanka Medical Association, Therapeutic update June 2021 

 COVID-19 the global pandemic: iPURSE, University of Peradeniya, April 2021 

 Winning the fight with COVID-19 vaccines-is it a reality? Keynote address, Medico 

Legal Society of Sri Lanka. March 6th 2021 

 COVID-19 vaccines-magic bullets to end the pandemic? Sri Lanka Society of 

Microbiology, guest lecture. 25th February 2021 

 Prevention and control of COVID-19: Kothalawala Defence University, Guest Lecture, 

February 2021 

 COVID-19 vaccines-what every doctor needs to know: North Colombo Clinical Society, 

Guest lecture, February 2021 

 COVID-19 vaccines: Ceylon College of Physicians. Symposium on vaccines in 

collaboration with the College of Internal Medicine. 29th January 2021 

 Molecular and epidemiological research in the COVID-19 Pandemic: COVID-19 

conference of the National Science Foundation. 27th January 2021 
 

Health education activities conducted by Prof. Chandima Jeewandara are as follows. 
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Newspaper articles and media interviews  

 2021/05/05 Dinamina newspaper feature article on Viral Variants 

 2021/05/09 Surfing the third wave: How to battle the Covid-19 third wave in Sri Lanka 

– The Sunday morning 

 2021/03/28 Variants of SARS-COV-2: Do we need alterations to current preventive 

strategies?  

 01/05/2021 Silumina Feature article on Vaccination 

 02/05/2021 Sunday Observer Feature article Indian Variant  

 24 Delta Variant Lankadeepa “Suwasewana” 

 18/07/2021 Lambda Variant Lamkadeepa “Suwasewana” 

 Panel discussion on COVID 19, “Salakuna” by the Hiru TV Television Channel in 

10/5/2021 

 Panel discussion on COVID 19, “Thiranaya” ITN the National Television Channel in 

2021. 

 Interview on variants of SARS COV 2 virus ; “Big Focus” by Derana TV 28/4/2021 

 Interview on COVID 19 variants “Pathikada” by Sirasa TV in 2021 

 

Public lectures and discussions 

 SLMA Public lecture on Vaccination 8/1/2021 

 SLMA Public lecture on new Variants of OCVID 19 and implication for public 

health05th January 2021 

 Public lecture on “Is the COVID 19 Vaccine Safe” – Faculty of Graduate studies USJ 

23/3/2021 

 Against COVID-19 Phase 1.0 – Department of Decision Science, University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura 20/5/2021 

 YGSLC webinar on Covid-19 Vaccination 6/6/2021 

 

 

 

EVALUATION OF TEST KITS 

 

USJ has helped the NMRA in evaluating PCR kits, RNA extraction kits as well as the rapid 

antibody test kits in response to COVID 19. This service rendered by Prof Chandima Jeewandara 

and Prof Neelika Malavige on an honorary basis. 

 

TRAINING OF MLTS 

USJ laboratory is the most experienced laboratory in terms of PCR testing in Sri Lanka as we 

have been doing real time PCR since 2013. We have trained several MLTs from hospitals and 
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Universities and helped several virologists to establish laboratories in their respective institutions 

including IDH and Sri Jayewardenepura hospital. Apart from training our positive samples were 

shared with other labs including the IDH, TH Ragama, SJGH and private hospital laboratories 

to validate PCR testing in the country. 

 

In early October 2021, AICBU and the Dept. of Immunology and Molecular Medicine was 

requested to provide training to the Medical Laboratory Science Graduate Interns who were 

attached to the Ministry of Health and posted at the government hospitals. Participants were split 

into groups and each group underwent 2 weeks of lectures, demonstrations and hands on 

laboratory training in PCR, swabbing, phlebotomy, sequencing and other molecular diagnostic 

techniques. 

 

This service rendered by Prof Chandima Jeewandara and Prof Neelika Malavige on an honorary 

basis along with the laboratory research staff. 

 

 

SEQUENCING WORK 

 

Since mid-March 2020, Allergy, Immunology, and Cell Biology Unit (AICBU) have conducted 

around 40 SARS-CoV-2 sequencing runs up to December 2021 generating and uploading more 

than 3000 genome sequences into the international databases. Even though the majority of the 

samples were sequenced using Oxford Nanopore (ONT) platform, 23.2% of the sequencing data 

were generated using Illumina. Delta lineage (AY.28 and AY.104) accounts for the highest 

cumulative number of genomes sequenced by us followed by Omicron (BA.2) and Alpha (Q.8). 

Sri Lanka experienced 4 major outbreaks since the identification of patient zero in March 2020. 

The first large outbreak, which occurred from October 2020 to January 2021 was driven by 

B.1.411 which 

peaked at 800 

cases/day until it was 

completely replaced 

by B.1.1.7 (alpha) in 

mid-April. The 

outbreak due to the 

alpha variant, which 

began in April 2021 

to June 2021, with the 

reported number of 
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daily cases as high as 9,950. During this time period (October 2020 to June 2021), apart from 9 

imported B.1.351 (Beta) and B.1.525 (Eta) cases which were identified in overseas visitors in 

quarantine facilities, Sri Lanka did not experience any outbreaks due to other VOCs.  

 

The largest Sri Lankan SARS-CoV-2 outbreak was due to the delta variant and its sub lineages 

from July to the end of October 2021. During the peak of this ‘delta wave’, the PCR positivity 

rates rose above 30% with case fatality rates reaching 6.35%. Apart from the delta parental 

lineage B.1.617.2, two other delta sub lineages AY.28 and AY.104 were the predominant 

variants observed during this time period. The AY.28 and AY.104 were assigned as Sri Lanka 

delta sub-lineages as they were found to originate in Sri Lanka and to be transmitted to all 

continents in the world. Currently, Sri Lanka is going through the declining phase of its 4th wave 

driven by Omicron variant which was first identified in the last week of November 2021. This 

service rendered by Prof Chandima Jeewandara and Prof Neelika Malavige on an honorary 

basis along with the lab staff. 

 

 

CONSULTANCY AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

 

Expert advice provided by Prof Neelika Malavige and Prof Chandima Jeewandara representing 

the university on an honorary basis in the following committees.  

 1. Expert working group of COVID-19 vaccines: Ministry of Health 

2. National coordinating committee for COVID vaccine: Ministry of Health 

3. Technical Subcommittee on for prioritization, targeting, and surveillance for COVID 19 

vaccine: Ministry of Health 

5. Committee to conduct a scientific study on Ayurvedic / Traditional Medicine and other herbal 

preparations made in Sri Lanka against COVID-19 infection: Ministry of Health 

6. Member of advisory panel to advice the NMRA on COVID vaccines: State Ministry  

7. Advisory assistance of COVID-19 related vaccines and technology transfers, MOH 

8. Technical committee to formulate health criteria for tourism during the COVID-19 pandemic 

9. SLMA expert committee to address COVID-19 issues in Sri Lanka: SLMA 

10. Contribution to the COVID-19 strategies: National Operation Centre for prevention of 

COVID-19  

11. Independent expert panel to review the COVID-19 strategies: National Operation Centre for 

prevention of COVID-19  
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12. Member of the Advisory Committee on Communicable Diseases: MOH 

 

 

INNOVATIONS 

The Sri Lanka Institute of Nanotechnology along with AICBU has successfully demonstrated 

the proof of concept and initial validation of a locally assembled LAMP-PCR kit. With this 

intervention, Sri Lanka is expected to save nearly Rs. 150 million a month on COVID-19 testing. 

 

 

 

FACULTIES OF THE UNIVERSITY 

 

The University consists of the following nine faculties. 
 

1. Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences (FHSS) 

2. Faculty of Applied Science (FAS) 

3. Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce(FMSC) 

4. Faculty of Medical Sciences (FMS) 

5. Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS) 

6. Faculty of Technology (FT) 

7. Faculty of  Engineering (FE) 

8. Faculty of Allied Health Science (FAHS) 

9. Faculty of Dental Sciences (FDS) 
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FACULTY OF HUMANITIES AND SOCIAL SCIENCES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Faculty of Arts was established with the commencement of the Vidyodaya University on 1st 

January 1959 at the Vidyodaya Pirivena at Malligakanda. Later the faculty was shifted to the 

present premises at Gangodawila. In 1979, Vidyodaya Pirivena was converted as the University 

of Sri Jayewardenepura going a step further in disseminating knowledge to a wider community.  

By this time, the Faculty of Arts was renamed as the Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences.  

The Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences is committed to its vision committed to the 

development of the community and the nation at large through the dissemination and 

enhancement of knowledge enriched with the country's cultural heritage. 

Around 1000 students are admitted annually and academic activities are conducted in 29 degree 

programmes leading to B.Sc Honours Degree, B.A. Degree and B.A. Honours Degrees. The 

faculty consists of sixteen academic Departments.  

    

Dean                                                                                    Prof. S.C.B. Heenkenda 

 

Department                    Head of Department 

1. Department of Sinhala and Mass Communication Dr. (Mrs.) Kusumalatha 

Lankamullage 

2.   Department of History and Archaeology   Prof. K.M.Alexander  

3. Department of Geography Dr. M.A.S.Wijesinghe  

4. Department of Sociology  Prof. W.A.S.Wijekoon                  
       (From 09.07.2021)  

 Senior Prof. M.T.Samarakoon   

 (Up to 08.07.2021) 
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5. Department of Anthropology Prof.A.P.N. De S.Abhayasundara 
   (From 31.08.2021) 
   Prof. (Mrs.) C.A.D.Nahallage 
  (From 15.02.2021 - up to 30.08.2021) 

    

   Prof. (Mrs.) H.D.Y.D.Jayathilake  
   (Up to 14.02.2021)  

6.  Department of Languages, Cultural studies  Dr. W.B.A.Witharana  

        and Performing Arts 

  

7.   Department of Economics     Dr. (Mrs.) B.W.R.Damayanthi 

            

8. Department of Social Statistics Dr. (Mrs.) H.P.T.N.Silva           
   (From 01.07.2021) 

  Mrs. D.P.K. Manel  
  (Up to 30.06.2021) 

 

9.   Department of English  Dr. H.A.G.Sujeewa   

  (From 01.07.2021) 

  Dr. (Mrs.) R.M.C.Jayathilake  
  (Up to 30.06.2021) 

 

10.  Department of Pali and Buddhist studies   Prof. M.D.D.I.Gunathilake 

     

11.  Department of Philosophy & Phycology Prof.W.M.Yaparathna  
  (From 02.03.2021) 

  Senior Prof. W.A.G.Perera 
  (Up to 01.03.2021) 

 

   12. Department of Political Science    Mrs. V.S.Sooriyabandara  

 

   13. Department of Criminology and Criminal Justice Dr. R.N.Sunil  

 

   14. Department of English Language Teaching  Mr. D.L.S.Ananda   
         (From 01.07.2021) 
         Mr.P.B.S.L.Pushpakumara  

         (Up to 30.06.2021) 

 

   15. Department of Music & Creative Technology  Prof. Pradeep Rathnayake 

 

   16. Department of Information & Communication  Dr.(Mrs.) B.W.R.Damayanthi 

 Technology      (cover up duties) 
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Degrees and Diplomas awarded by the faculty- 2021 

 

Degrees 

01. B.A. Degree 

02. A. Honours Degree in Anthropology 

03. B.A. Honours Degree in Criminology & Criminal Justice 

04. B.A. Honours Degree in Economics 

05. B.A. Honours Degree in English 

06. B.A. Honours Degree  in Teaching English as a Second  language 

07. B.A. Honours Degree  in Geography 

08. B.Sc. Honours Degree in Geo-Spatial Technologies 

09. B.A. Honours Degree in History 

10. B.A. Honours Degree in Archaeology 

11. B.Sc. Honours Degree in Information Communication Technology  

12. B.A. Honours Degree in Dance & Cultural Studies  

13. B.A. Honours Degree in Sanskrit 

14. B.A. Honours Degree in Hindi 

15. B.A. Honours Degree in Music 

16. B.A. Honours Degree in Creative Music Technology and Production 

17. B.A. Honours Degree in Pali 

18. B.A. Honours Degree in Buddhist Civilization 

19. B.A. Honours Degree in Buddhist Philosophy  

20. B.A. Honours Degree in Buddhist Heritage & Tourism 

21. B.A. Honours Degree in Philosophy 

22. B.A. Honours Degree in Psychology. 

23. B.A. Honours Degree in Political Science 

24. B.A. Honours Degree in Sinhala 

25. B.A. Honours Degree in Mass Communication 

26. B.A. Honours Degree in Sociology 

27. B.A. Honours Degree in Social Work 

28. B.A. Honours Degree in Social Statistics 

29. B.A. Honours Degree in Business Statistics 
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Certificate Programmes: 
 

1. Certificate in Angampora          

2. Certificate in Tourism 

3. Certificate in Criminology and Criminal Justice 

4. Advanced Certificate in Criminology and Criminal Justice 

5. Certificate in English 

6. Advanced Certificate Course in Data Analysis for Social Scientists 

 

Diploma Programmes: 
 

1. Diploma in Criminology 

2. Diploma in Legal Education for Crime Prevention and Control 

3. Diploma in Criminal Investigation and Modern Technology 

4. Diploma in Criminal Psychology and Counseling 

5. Diploma in Development Policy Analysis 

6. Diploma in English 

7. Diploma in Geographic Information Systems & Remote Sensing 

8. Diploma in Rural Development 

9. Diploma in History 

10. Diploma in Buddhist Studies 

11. Diploma in Buddhist Counselling 

12. Diploma in Buddhist Early childhood Development 

13. Diploma in Chinese Language 

14. Advance Diploma in Dham Guru 

15. Diploma in Addiction Psychology & Rehabilitation (DAPR) 

16. Diploma in Writership and Communication 

17. Diploma in Applied Tamil Language 

18. Diploma in Sociology 

19. Diploma in Social works 
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EDUCATION AND EMPLOYABILITY SKILLS DEVELOPMENT  

 

 New degree programme proposals submitted to the Quality Assurance Council of 

the UGC 

 Bachelor of Arts Honours in Chinese  

 Bachelor of Arts Honours in French  

 Bachelor of Arts Honours in Japanese  

 Bachelor of Laws Honours 

 

 

 Curriculum Revision of all the subjects in degree courses 

 

Syllabuses of the degrees programmes were revised to integrate socio-emotional 

skills to the learning experience along with the soft skills needed for the work  

 

 Official Launch of the FHSS App 

 

Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences of the University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura officially launched its new FHSS APP. It has been designed to 

facilitate quick access to various features including examination results, 

attendance details, feedback, notice board etc. for both students and the academic 

staff of the faculty. 

 

 Improving English Language competencies with the DELT Speech Star 

Competition  

 

DELT Speech Star 2021 is an oratorical competition organized by the Department 

of English Language Teaching aimed at developing public speaking skills in 

English of the first-year students of the FHSS.  Prepared speeches and impromptu 

speeches were often used in order to develop the public speaking skills of 

students.  

 

 Launch of the Basha Buddies Project 

The Basha Buddy system is run by the Alumni of the English Language Society 

(ELS) of the Department of English Language Teaching of the University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura. It is a platform to practice English communication skills 

through texts and writing to the buddy in English on WhatsApp or Facebook 

messenger.  

 

 Announcing Winners of the MIC – Multiple Intelligence Challenge organized by 

Center for Digital Education and Professional Development (CDEPD) 
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The final round of MIC 2021 conducted by the Center for Digital Education and 

Professional development of Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences was held 

on 20th of October 2021. 

 

 Brilliant Minds: Subasha Competition to test the knowledge of Sinhala Language 

Competencies 

 

‘Subasha’ is a competition organized to uplift the knowledge of Sinhala language 

among the students of the Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences. The MCQ 

paper which consists of 50 questions tests the ability and understanding of the 

student to use these language skills. The practice tests and lectures that are 

conducted prior to the competition also provide an opportunity for the students to 

work on broadening language practice before taking part in the competition.  

 

 Organizing IQ Star of the Week 

 

"IQ Star of the Week" is a weekly program conducted by the CDEPD with the 

view of developing multiple intelligence of the FHSS students. Each student of 

the faculty will be given an opportunity to sit for a practice test every week. Tests 

will be conducted through the online platform which is open from 8:00 AM to 

12:00 AM on all five days of the week throughout the semester. 

 

 Launching Diploma in English and Diploma in Applied Tamil Language.    

       

The undergraduates of the faculty have the opportunity to further strengthen their 

language skills by following these diplomas that are offered free of charge.  

 

 The Dean’s Award for the Community Leader of the Year  

 

The Dean’s Award for the Community Leader intends to recognize the leadership 

qualities of the undergraduates in the faculty. This competition aims to draw 

students’ attention to increase their engagement with the community development 

activities. Several workshops are conducted as a preparation method for those 

who are taking part in the competition. The workshops will be focusing on several 

themes including leadership and community engagement that will help develop 

decision-making skills, portfolio preparations, and facing interviews. Since the 

topic employability of the students is widely discussed at present, the 

implementation of community development projects is expected to benefit the 

students to test their inherent soft skills too. 

 

Two workshops were held under the topics of ‘how to manage a successful 

community service project’ and ‘how can I prepare a portfolio.’  
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 Dean’s Honour List Award  

 

Presented to the students who demonstrated the highest level of academic 

excellence.  

 

 Launching Vidumini Skills Development Programme for External 

Undergraduates  

 

The Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences together with the External 

Degrees and Extension Courses Unit (EDECU) of the University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura has opened a platform for the external BA undergraduates to 

refine much-needed skills when stepping into the world of work. 

 

“Vidumini” Skills Development Endeavour is the main component of the Skills 

and Employability Enhancing Programme for the External Graduates of the FHSS 

(SEEPEG) that opens avenues for the external undergraduates to identify their 

hidden talents while encouraging them to improve on creative skills, 

employability and entrepreneurial skills. Hoping to have better student 

participation all events of the programme will be conducted in both Sinhala and 

English. 

 

 Study Opportunities on Global Level  
 

A special workshop on higher studies opportunities in Japan was organized for 

all the undergraduates of the faculty.  

 

RESEARCH CONFERENCES  

 

 International Research Conference on Humanities and Social Sciences (IRCHSS) was 

held on March 18th (Thursday) and 19th (Friday), 2021 under the theme “Collaborate and 

Discover: Break the Barriers.” 

 

 National Action Research Conference Higher Education was held on the 16th September 

2021. The panel discussion of the conference was ‘Good practices in the teaching and 

learning process in higher education.’ 

 

 Vidyodaya Undergraduate Research Day (VURD 2021) was held on the 14, 15, 16 

December 2021. 

 

 3rd International Conference on Intangible Cultural Heritage – ICICH 2021 was held on 

22nd and 23rd December 2021. 
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SPECIAL EVENTS/WORKSHOPS ORGANIZED BY THE COMMITTEES OF FHSS 

 

Center for Digital Education and Professional Development (CDEPD) 

Under the Employability Skills Workshop Series, following sessions were conducted for the 

students  

 Personality Grooming Workshop on the 19th June 2021  

 Ethics in an Office Environment on the 23rd June 2021 

 Problem Solving in a Company Environment on the 26th June 2021  

Scholars from leading international universities join the faculty virtually to share their knowledge 

and expertise with the students in the faculty. Some of the workshops that have been carried out 

thus far are as follows:       

 Guest Lecture on 'Research Ethics in Social Sciences and Humanities Studies’ conducted 

by Prof. Lakshmi Lingam, Dean, The School of Media and Cultural Studies, Tata Institute 

of Social Sciences, Mumbai, India on 15th June 2021. 

 

 An online lecturer under the topic “What sort of person would do that? Agent-based virtue 

ethics and respect for nature” was conducted with the participation of the Resource 

Person: Prof. Dr. Robert Sparrow, Department of Philosophy, Centre for Human 

Bioethics, and Monash University, Australia on 11th June 2021. 

 

 Ethics of Human-Robot Interaction was the theme discussed in the online guest lecture 

conducted by Professor Dr. Sven Nyholm from the Faculty of Humanities, University of 

Utrecht, Netherlands. The workshop was conducted on the 14th June 2021. 

 

 A guest lecture on “Anthropology in Emergencies Revisited: The Role of 

Anthropologists during the COVID 19 Pandemic” organized by the Department of 

Anthropology of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura was held on 30th April 2021 

through Zoom. It was conducted by Dr. Inayat Ali, Medical Anthropologist/ Research 

Fellow, Department of Social and Cultural Anthropology, University of Vienna, Austria. 

Dr. Inayat has conducted various researches on COVID – 19 pandemic, much of that 

work already been published in renowned journals of anthropology.  

 

 A webinar was conducted bringing out the theme of “Internet Addiction; Psychological 

Perspective to Addiction on the 7th May 2021. Guest speaker of the webinar was Dr. 

Yuvaraj, Assistant Professor of Psychology Manonmaniam Sundaranar University, 

Tamil Nadu, India.  

 

In addition, following workshops were organized by the Department of Anthropology  

 International lecture series on historical development of Anthropology as a discipline in 

Asian Countries that included Sri Lanka, Malaysia, Japan, Bhutan, Korea took place in 

August and December 2021 
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 Intellectual discourse held under the theme of modern use of traditional technology held 

on 18th August 2021 

 3rd Anthropology Colloquium focusing on the theme of traditional indigenous food and 

the food with medicinal value held on 21st August 2021  

 Launching ceremony of the fifth volume ‘Maanawa Widya’ Magazine 

 Folk Art festival that shed light on environment, folk songs and indigenous knowledge 

of Sri Lanka was held on 19th November 2021. 

 2nd Folk Art Festival under the theme of ‘Andaharaya’ was held on 29th December 2021 

 

Equal Opportunity Cell (EOC) 

 Abilitree Motivational Programme Series ගීත සුභාවිතය’ – ගී රස වින්දනාත්මක පිළිසඳර 

 To mark the International Day of Persons with Disabilities a programme was organized 

with the participation of students with special needs. 

 The sub-committee of the Equal Opportunity Cell; the Center for Gender Equity and 

Equality opened a forum to discuss the timely topic of gender through the online 

discussion; අපිව දකිමු: පිරිමින් ගැන ගැහැණු කතා.  

 The online discussion on “Harassment against women; is it a fashionable topic to speak?” 

 Established the ‘Dream Scholarship’ for the students with visual impairments.  

 Publishing audio books for the students with visual impairments 

 

 

Green Hub 
 

Webinars and Awareness Programs on Green Dialogue 

 A virtual session series on “Changing the University Towards a Green Culture / හරිත 

සරසවි සංස්කෘතියක් කරා” organized by the Green Hub of the Faculty of Humanities and 

Social Sciences was held on 24th February 2021 from 10.00 am to 12.00 pm through 

Zoom.  

 As the second awareness program to inculcate green culture and eco- friendly practices 

in our university a webinar was held online  

 Webinar on “Water: Ecological Paradigms in Buddhism” 

 Webinar on under the theme of giving value to the waste materials for sustainable 

practices of waste management.  
 

Competitions 

 Winners of “Haritha Viru’’; a competition organized to inculcate values of sustainable 

eco-friendly practices among undergraduates. The winners were chosen from two 

categories; the most sustainable green activity, the most popular green activity.  

 Launching a project to distribute 10,000 plants (Kumbuk and Mee) among the 

community.   
 

 Initiated the ‘Act to Stop’ photography competition; a platform to share thought-

provoking images which reveal how humans threaten the natural environment.  
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Student Support Center  

 Workshop on Sharing Ideas on Inclusivity in Tertiary Education organized by the 

Academic Mentoring Committee of the Student Support Center.  

 Awareness session on Enhancing Mentoring skills in Handling Student Grievances 

 The Academic Mentoring Committee of the Student Support Center organized two 

workshops for the academic mentors of the FHSS.  

 The Academic Mentoring Committee of the Student Support Center organized 

03workshops for students of the FHSS to develop their soft skills.  

 

Workshops organized by the faculty for the continuous professional development of the 

staff.  

 Digital teaching and learning tools to engage with students in online learning activities  

 Workshop on Subject Benchmark Statement and Curriculum Development  

 Special Workshop on Standardization of Examination Marks  

 

INDUSTRY COLLABORATIONS 

 Promoting the Japanese Language at the FHSS; A Discussion with the JICA 

  

In keeping with the goal of promoting foreign languages, the Faculty of Humanities and 

Social Sciences had a discussion with the Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) 

on the 1st December 2021 at the Office of the Dean. Japanese Language Education is an 

aspect among many others to which the JICA volunteers contribute when promoting 

Sustainable Development Goals. 

 Orcam Donation to the Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences 

 

It has been a longstanding effort of the faculty to empower students with special needs 

and as a result the Equal Opportunity Cell was established in 2020. Numerous projects 

launched by the Cell thus far promote the idea of equality among all undergraduates 

despite individual differences. The Audio Book Project also facilitate the students with 

visual impairments, to make reading, an inclusive practice for all. 

Intending to uplift the welfare of the undergraduates with visual impairments, the Faculty 

of Humanities and Social Sciences received a donation from Orel IT (Pvt) Ltd. on the 

12th October 2021. This state-of-the-art wearable assistive device that was introduced to 

the market by Orel IT years ago is for empowering the visually impaired through its array 

of features such as face recognition, smart reading etc. 
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LIFELONG COMMUNITY AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY, AND NATIONAL 

CONTRIBUTION  

 FHSS Alumni Help 

FHSS Alumni Help enables faculty alumni to maintain a lifelong connection with each 

other, sharing experience and expertise. The mission of the faculty reminds us that the 

benefits of studying with the Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences continue long 

after you graduate. Various alumni offer including networking, vacancies, postgraduate 

opportunities, reading materials, full-scale IQ Tests are provided for those who get 

registered for the service. 

 ‘Sihinayata Athwalak 2021’ Tutorial Seminars conducted free of charge for the 

students sitting for the GCE A/L in Arts Stream 
  

At a time when school going children are compelled to overcome numerous obstacles, 

the lecturers of the Faculty of Humanities and Social volunteered to provide a helping 

hand for those who are sitting for the Advanced Level examination in Arts Stream in. 

More than 5000 students took part in the seminar that covered a range of subjects in the 

Arts Stream. The recordings of the videos are uploaded for public access on the YouTube 

channel CDEPD- FHSS.  

 Centenary Year Celebrations of Humanities and Social Sciences 

University education in humanities and social sciences in Sri Lanka reached the 100th 

year in 2021. University education in the Social Sciences and Humanities in Sri Lanka 

started in 1921 with the establishment of the Ceylon University College. Accordingly, 

the Standing Committee on Humanities and Social Sciences organized a program 

celebrating the centenary year of Humanities and Social Sciences education in Sri 

Lanka, and to discuss the prospects of these two fields in the Sri Lankan universities. 

 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Ministry of Buddhist Affairs  

Introduced a new advanced diploma ‘Daham Guru’ to the teachers of Sunday Schools 

upon signing a MOU the Ministry of Buddhist Affairs. 

 

COMPARISON OF 2020 AND 2021 RESULTS RELEASED 

 

Degree 

Programme 

First Class 
Second 

Upper 

Second 

Lower 
Pass Total Passed 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

B.A(Special) 49 54 384 389 180 129 62 63 675 635 

B.A.(General) 1 3 47 54 70 67 51 25 169 149 

B.A (General) 

Repeat 
            6 21 6 21 

B.A (Special) 

Repeat 
1 1 2 2 3   5 5 11 8 

BSc 

IT(Special) 
1 1 6 7 5 7 11 7 23 22 

Total 52 59 439 452 258 203 135 121 884 835 
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DETAILS OF RESOURCES & STUDENTS - 2021 

 

  

Department 

Enrolment - 2021 

Academic Staff 

Non 

Academic 

Staff 

1
st

  
 Y

ea
r 

General 

Degree Special Degree 

2
n

d
 Y

ea
r
 

3
r
d
 Y

ea
r
 

2
n

d
 Y

ea
r
 

3
r
d
 Y

ea
r
 

4
 th

 Y
ea

r
 

Permanent Temp. 

Sinhala & Mass 

Communication 

984 167 170 

60 56 68 14 

58 

2 

Histroy & Archaeology  48 55 59 12 3 

Geography 127 75 79 12 5 

Sociology 57 55 57 3 2 

Anthropology  57 44 37 8 3 

Languages, Cultural 

Studies & Performing 

Arts 

40 44 39 11 2 

Economics  56 65 54 13 3 

Social Statistics 33 54 50 10 2 

English & Linguistics 24 15 13 9 2 

Pali & Buddhist Studies 79 60 65 14 2 

Philosophy and 

Psychology 
62 78 75 5 2 

Political Science 34 34 51 7 2 

Criminology & Criminal 

Justice 
54 73 48 9 2 

English Language 

Teaching 
- - - 7 3 

Music & Creative 

Technology 
14 25 10 5 - 

Information and 

Communication 

Technology 

27 26 8 1 2 

Deans Office - - - - - - - - 21 

Total 984 167 170 772 759 713 140 58 58 
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DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF - 2021 

 

 

DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATIONS AND PUBLICATIONS - 2021 

 

  Publication Category 

Number 

Published  

Local 

Published  

Foreign 

1 No. of publications in refereed indexed Journals - 34 

2 No. of publications in refereed non-indexed Journals 20 7 

3 Conference Proceedings (Full Papers/ Abstracts) 45 9 

4 No. of Book Chapters published 12 1 

5 No. of Books/Text Books published 19 - 

 

Department 
Senior 

Professor 
Professor 

Assiocate 

Professor 

Senior 

Lecturer 

Lecturer

/ Lect. 

(Prob.) 

Total 

Department of Sinhala  &  

Mass Communication  
2 0 1 10 1 14 

History &v Archaeology 0 4 1 6 1 12 

Geography 0 3 0 6 3 12 

Sociology 1 1 0 1 0 3 

Anthropology 1 3 1 1 2 8 

Languages, Cultural 

Studies & Performing Arts 
1 0 0 7 3 11 

Economics 1 5 0 3 4 13 

Social Statistics 0 0 0 6 4 10 

English Linguistics 0 1 0 7 1 9 

Pali & Buddhist 0 8 0 5 1 14 

Philosophy & Psychology 1 1   2 1 5 

Political Sciences 0 0 0 7 0 7 

Criminology & Criminal 

Justice 
  1 1 6 1 9 

English Language 

Teaching 
0 0 0 4 3 7 

Music & Creative 

Technology 
  1   3 1 5 

Information 

Communication 

Technology 

      0 1 1 

Total 7 28 4 74 27 140 
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 FACULTY OF APPLIED SCIENCE  

 

Faculty of Applied Sciences of the university which was established in 1962 is one of the oldest 

among the Faculties of Science in Sri Lanka. Since inception it has grown much in intellectual 

capacity, teaching and research facilities, span of curricula and student numbers. At present it 

houses 11 academic departments with over 150 academic staff members, over 2500 

undergraduate students and close to 200 postgraduate students. 

The Faculty has been in the forefront of pursuing several challenging and pioneering 

developments in the science education in Sri Lankan universities, including teaching in science 

in Sinhala, emphasizing applied aspects of science such as fisheries biology, food science & 

technology, polymer science & technology, forestry and environmental science, computer 

science , statistics and management in the B.Sc. curricula.  

Faculty of Applied Sciences consists of eleven (11) Academic Departments as follows.  

Dean         Snr. Prof. Laleen Karunanayake 

Department   Head of Department 

1. Department of Botany      Prof.(Mrs.) P.K.N. Dassanayake 

2. Department of Chemistry    Prof.(Mrs.) M.N.S. Kottegoda 

3. Department of Computer Science    Prof. P.M. Jayaweera 

4. Department of Food Science and Technology  Prof. J.M.J.K. Jayasinghe  

5. Department of Forestry and  

          Environmental Science   Prof. S.M.C.U.P. Subasinghe 

6. Department of Mathematics   Mr. K.K.W.A.S. Kumara 

7. Department of Physics   Prof. A.R. Kumarasinghe 

8. Department of Statistics     Dr. W.N.N.K. Perera 



University of Sri Jayewardenepura 55 Annual Report 2021 
 

9. Department of Zoology   Prof. (Mrs.) W.A.D. Mahaulpatha 

10. Department of Sports Science   Dr.(Mrs.) S. Weerasinghe  

11. Department of Polymer Science   Prof. (Mrs.) K.M.T.D. Gunesekera  

 

DEGREES AND DIPLOMAS AWARDED BY THE FACULTY 

 

Degrees   

01. B.Sc. General Degree 

02. B.Sc. General Degree in Information & Communication Technology 

03. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Food Science and Technology 

04. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Chemistry 

05. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Polymer Chemistry 

06. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Industrial Chemistry 

07. B.Sc. (General)  Degree in Biology  

08. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Biology  

09. B.Sc. (General)  Degree in Plant Biotechnology  

10. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Plant Biotechnology  

11. B.Sc. (General)  Degree in Plant Biology 

12. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Plant Biology 

13. B.Sc. (General)  Degree in Microbiology  

14. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Microbiology  

15. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Genetics and Molecular Biology 

16. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Aquatic Resource Management  

17. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Zoology 

18. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Environmental Management & Forestry  

19. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Mathematics 

20. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Applied Mathematics 

21. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Computer Science 

22. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Physics 

23. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Statistics 

24. B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree in Sport Science & Management 

25. B.Sc. (Honors) Degree in Applied Sciences 
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EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT  

 Degree courses introduced in 2020 

 

 B.Sc. Honours (Computational Chemistry) Degree curriculum was introduced. 

The curriculum is currently at the stage of receiving the approval from the 

University Senate. 

 

 Postgraduate Study Programs in Industrial Organic Chemistry were submitted to 

the University Grant Commission for the approval. There are three postgraduate 

programs as follows; 

o M.Sc. in Industrial Organic Chemistry (with research component) 

o Master of Industrial Organic Chemistry (without the research component) 

o Postgraduate Diploma in Industrial Organic Chemistry 

 

 Curriculum Revision of all the subjects in degree courses 

Chemistry (CHE) and Industrial Chemistry (ICH) Degree 

 

 Molecular Genetics Workshop for Advanced Level Students 

STRENGTHENING EMPLOYABILITY SKILLS OF THE UNDERGRADUATES 

 

 Industrial Training for Aquatic Resource Management Students  

 Industrial training for Genetics and Molecular Biology third year students  

 Mini projects done by Genetics and Molecular Biology students  

 Career guidance discussions with students by Molecular Biology unit 

 Initiation of an e-newsletter by the Genetics and Molecular Biology Society 

SPECIAL PROGRAMS AND INITIATION CARRIED OUT AT FAS DURING THE 

PANDEMIC 

 

 Established Smart Class Room for Online Teaching  

 

 Established Two Online Exam Centers   

 

 Guest lectures were organized by the Genetics and Molecular Biology Society of the 

Unit via zoom in collaboration with SLASS 

 

 A game night was organized by the Genetics and Molecular Biology society via zoom 

for mental relaxation and improvement of mental health of students during the 

pandemic 

 An expression competition (Art and Essay) was organized by the Genetics and 

Molecular Biology Society 
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INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT  

 Establishment of the smart classroom for undergraduate students. 

 

 Commencement of the construction of the new undergraduate research lab on 16th 

September, 2021 by Chemistry department. 

 

 Establishment of the GL-5 research laboratory for material chemistry research 

development by Chemistry department. 

 

 Construction of the new Genetics and Molecular Biology Unit building complex 

 

COMPARISON OF 2020 AND 2021 RESULTS RELEASED 

 

Degree Programme 

First Class 
Second 

Upper 

Second 

Lower 
Pass 

Total 

Passed 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

B.Sc. (Honors) Aquatic 

Science 
- 2 5 4 -   -   5 6 

B.Sc. ((Honors)  

Chemistry 
5 7 19 16 2 2 1 1 27 26 

B.Sc. (Honors)  

Computer Science 
1 3 7 11 - 2 -   11 16 

B.Sc. (Honors) Food 

Science and 

Technology  

18 18 14 21 6 4 5 2 44 45 

B.Sc. (Honors) 

Environmental Mgt. & 

Forestry 

1 4 15 8 -   -   16 12 

B.Sc. (Honors) 

Mathematics 
2 1 8 10 1 2 -   11 13 

B.Sc. (Honors) Physics 2   11 5 1 6 - 2 14 13 

B.Sc. (Honors)  Plant 

Biotechnology 
2   2 3 - 1     4 4 

B.Sc. (Honors) 

Statistics 
3 3 7 6 1 2 -   11 11 

B.Sc. (Honors) 

Zoology 
1 2 6 12 -   -   7 14 
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DETAILS OF RESOURCES & STUDENTS 

 

Degree programme 

Student enrolment Academic staff Non 

academic 

staff 

1st 

Year 

2nd 

Year 

3rd 

Year 

4th 

Year 
Total  

Permanent Temporary 

Biology (General) 299 296 175   

770 

154 121 135 

Physical Science 

(General) 
317 294 198   

809 

Food Science and 

Technology 
79 62 52 47 

240 

Sports  Science & 

Management 
91 60 52 42 

245 

Physical Science - 

ICT   
86 70 65   

221 

B.Sc.(Honors) 

Degree in Applied 

Sciences 

      93 

93 

Other Honors 

Degrees 
    150 150 

300 
 

Total 
872 782 692 332 2678 154 121 135 

B.Sc. (Honors) 

Microbiology 
2 3 5 2 -   -   7 5 

B.Sc. (Honors) Sport 

Science and 

Management 

3 3 18 15 11 10 11 13 43 41 

B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree 

in Polymer Chemistry 
- 2 7 7 1   -   8 9 

B.Sc. (Honors)  Degree 

in Industrial Chemistry 
1   4 4 - 1 -   5 5 

B.Sc. (Honors) Applied 

Mathematics 
-     2   1       3 

B.Sc.(Honors) Degree 

in Applied Sciences 
3 1 50 55 42 32 2 6 97 94 

B.Sc. (General) -   5 23 40 60 189 231 234 314 

Total 44 49 183 204 109 123 208 255 544 631 
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DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF - 2021  

 

Department 
Senior 

Professor 
Professor 

Assiocate 

Professor 

Senior 

Lecturer 

Lecturer/ 

Lecturer 

(Prob.) 

Total 

Dean's Office and 

other Units * 
0 1 0 11 2 14 

Sports Science & 

Management 
0 0 0 1 6 7 

Mathematics 0 1 0 13 3 17 

Physics 0 3 0 8 4 15 

Chemistry 2 9 0 9 0 20 

Polymer Science 1 1 0 4 1 7 

Statistics 0 1 0 8 3 12 

Computer Science 

 
0 2 0 7 3 12 

Botany 3 1 0 7 1 12 

Deparment of 

Forestry & 

Environmantal 

science 

2 5 0 3 2 12 

Zoology 2 3 0 5 2 12 

Food Science & 

Technology 
1 4 0 7 2 14 

Total 11 31 0 83 29 154 
       

Note :    *  Includes four Senior Lecturers recruited for Faculty of Urban and Aquatic 

Bioresources using faculty cadres 

 

DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATIONS AND PUBLICATIONS - 2021 

 

  Publication Category 

Number 

Published  

Local 

Published  

Foreign 

1 No. of publications in refereed indexed Journals 4 211 

2 No. of publications in refereed non-indexed Journals 16 21 

3 Conference Proceedings (Full Papers/ Abstracts) 178 42 

4 No. of Book Chapters published 5 11 

5 No. of Books/Text Books published 2 1 
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FACULTY OF MANAGEMENT STUDIES AND 

COMMERCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce is the pioneering management faculty in Sri 

Lankan university system which is regarded as the Centre of Excellence in Management 

Education in Sri Lanka. Management education at University of Sri Jayewardenepura also has a 

history of more than 60 years.  

The first programmes of study commenced in 1959/60 with the introduction of two 

undergraduate degree programmes in Business Administration and Public Administration under 

the Department of Economics, Business and Public Administration of the Faculty of Arts. In 

1968, the Department was reconstituted as the Department of Management Studies under the 

Faculty of Arts. Under the reorganization of the university system, the Department of 

Management Studies was elevated to Faculty status and the Faculty of Management Studies and 

Commerce (FMSC) was established with two departments, namely, the Department of 

Management Studies and the Department of Commerce in 1972. 

Having been strengthened by twelve academic departments at present the faculty offers globally 

competitive degree programmes in the broad areas of Management and Commerce. Indeed, for 

the last five decades, the faculty has been the most popular faculty, particularly among the 

students who have excelled in Advanced Level in the Commerce Stream. Yet, the Faculty’s role 

in Sri Lankan higher education sector is not restricted to undergraduate education. The faculty is 

also committed to Continuous Professional Developments and Lifelong Learning of the leaders 

in the World of Work. Therefore, it also offers a range of highly recognized postgraduate 

programmes, including PhD, MBA, MPA and M.Sc. in Management. Further, by recognizing 

the need of wider Sri Lankan society for higher education, the faculty conducts a number of 

external/part-time degree, advanced diploma, diploma and Certificate programmes in the field 

of management. The faculty consists of tweleve academic Departments.  
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Dean Prof. P.D. Nimal  

 

Departments               Head of Department 

1. Department of Business Administration Dr. M.W. Kalyani 

 

2.Department of Public Administration Dr. (Mrs.) L.A.P. Maduwanthi  

 up to 30.06.2021 

 Dr. (Mrs.) R.P.C.K. Jayasinghe  

 from 01.07.2021 

 

3. Department of Commerce Senior Prof. E. Dayarathne   

 up to 28.02.2021 

 Dr. (Mrs.) E.A.G. Sumanasiri   

 from 01.03.2021 

   

4. Department of Estate Management and  Dr. T.G.U.P. Perera 

     Valuation    

 

5. Department of Accounting Prof. A.H.N. Kariyawasam   

 

 6. Department of Marketing Management Prof. (Mrs.) P.S.G.A. Jayaratne 

 

 7. Department of Human Resource Management  Dr. (Mrs.) G.D.N. Perera   

  up to 31.10.2021 

   Prof. N.W.K.D.K. Dayaratne   

  from 01.11.2021  

 

8. Department of Finance Dr. (Ms.) P.A.N.S. Anuradha 

  

9. Department of Business Economics Dr. D.R.J. Siriwardane   

  up to 30.05.2021 

  Prof. P.J. Kumarasinghe   

  from 31.05.2021 

  

10. Department of Information Technology  Dr. W.M.N. Fernando  

11. Department of Decision Sciences Prof. T.S.M. Amarasena 

 

12.  Department of Entrepreneurship Dr. M.V.S.S. Udayanga   

  up to 01.05.2021 

Dr. (Mrs.) R.G.K.S. Ranasinghe  

 From 02.05.2021 
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DEGREES AND DIPLOMAS AWARDED BY THE FACULTY 

 

Degrees 

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Accounting  

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Business Administration  

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Business Administration (Business Economics)  

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Estate Management and Valuation  

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Finance  

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Human Resource Management  

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Marketing Management  

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Management (Public)  

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Business Information Systems  

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Operations and Technology Management  

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Entrepreneurship  

 Bachelor of Commerce Honours 

 

Certificate Programmes  

 Certificate on Computer Based Data Analysis  

 Certificate in Entrepreneurial Business Management 

 Certificate in Academic Writing 

 Certificate in Professional Communication 

 Certificate Course on Management Leading to fulfill the Third Efficiency Bar 

Examination for the Officers in Grade 1 of Sri Lanka Technological Service  

 

Diploma Programmes 

 Diploma in Public Management 

 Diploma in Computer Based Accounting 

 Diploma in Marketing Management 

 Diploma in Entrepreneurial Business Management 

 Advanced Diploma in Computer Based Accounting 

 Advanced Diploma in Marketing Management 

 Advanced Diploma in Entrepreneurial Business Management 

 

Postgraduate Diploma 

 Postgraduate Diploma in Applied Finance 
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 Postgraduate Diploma in Marketing Management 

 Postgraduate Diploma in Real Estate Management and Valuation 

 Postgraduate Diploma in Entrepreneurship 

 Postgraduate Diploma in Business Economics 

 

Master Degree 

 MBA/MPM/MSc. in Management  

 MSc. in Applied Finance 

 MSc. in Real Estate Management and Valuation 

 Master of Entrepreneurship 

 Master of Professional Accounting 

 Master of Business Economics 

 Master of Science in Business Economics 

 Master of Public Management 

 MSc. in Public Policy and Management 

 Master of Commerce 

 

EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

 Following Degree Courses were introduced in 2021 

 

 Master of Science in Business Economics, and Postgraduate Diploma in Business 

Economics were introduced by the Department of Business Economics in the year 2021 

 

 The UGC has approved the proposal of the commencement of Master of Commerce 

Degree program submitted by the Department of Commerce  

 

 

 Establishment of the Postgraduate Centre for Business Studies (PCBS) and bringing all 

Postgraduate Taught Programmes under the purview of the faculty 

 

 Having considered the rationale of conducting the Postgraduate Taught Programmes by 

the Faculty, the Faculty established the Postgraduate Centre for Business Studies (PCBS) 

in 2021 as the operational centre and mechanism of the graduate studies of FMSC.   

 

 Establishment of an English Activity Room to strengthen English communication skills 

of Undergraduates  
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 Establishment of an Industry Liaison Office for facilitating practical training 

opportunities and career development of students 

 

 Purchase of NVIVO software, a qualitative data analysis system to be used by the 

undergraduates of the FMSC 

 

 

 Introducing a new specialized area to the B.Sc. Business Administration (Business 

Economics) (Special) degree programme 

 

 Introduced a new specialized area to the B.Sc. Business Administration (Business 

Economics) (Special) degree programme "International Economics and Business" 

 Conducting OBE LCT Sessions  

 

 The FMSC, under AHEAD grants, carried out two OBE LCT (Outcome based education 

and learner centered teaching and assessment) sessions to enhance the teaching quality 

of academics.  

 Curriculum revision of all internal first-degree programmes  

 

 The FMSC Curriculum review 2022-2026 commenced in the year 2021 to meet the 

curriculum review cycle of five years, taking into consideration the changes that have 

taken place within as well as outside the University.  

 

 Introducing the Dean's Honour List and FMSC Excellence Awards  

 

 The Dean's honour list will be awarded to a maximum of ten outstanding students from 

each batch of the faculty who have earned the highest GPA of or above 3.70 

 

 The Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce Excellence Awards (FMSC 

Excellence Awards) will be granted annually to the top 5% of the undergraduates from 

each batch who have achieved a GPA of 3.30 or higher and demonstrated exceptional 

performance in the areas including leadership, commitment to community service and 

good studentship, outstanding sportsmanship, exceptional aesthetic or technical skills, 

outstanding contribution to research or pursuing new knowledge. 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT  

 Renovation of 08 existing classrooms into smart classrooms  

 

 Establishment of a computer lab with 25 seating capacity for the Department of Decision 

Sciences, under AHEAD grants 

 

 Establishment of a lecture recording room at the ITRC (Information Technology Resource 

Centre) under AHEAD grants to facilitate lecture recordings  
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 Establishment of a Students’ Resource Centre, Incubator Center along with the Digital 

Library and English Language Centre funded by the AHEAD ELTA-ELSE Development 

Project of the Department of Marketing Management. 

 

RESEARCH AND CONFERENCES 

 

 18th Research Sessions of the Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce was held 

on 10th February 2021 in a hybrid mode  

 

 19th Research Sessions of the Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce was held 

on 11th August 2021 in a hybrid mode 

 

 2nd Annual Conference on Business Economics organized by the Research Center for 

Business Economics and Development Studies (RCBEDS) was held on 30th June 2021 

virtually via Zoom. 

 

 The inauguration ceremony Sri Lanka Forum of Entrepreneurship (SLFE) which is the 

first-ever platform in the entire university system was held on 23rd of April 2021  

 

 The 5th International Conference on Real Estate Management and Valuation (ICREMV 

2021) on 7th and 8th of October 2021 via Zoom as a virtual conference 

 

 Department of Accounting conducted the Young Accountants’ Research Conference 

(YARC) – 2021 on 10th May 2021 

 

 Undergraduate Research Day – 2021 of the Department of Business Administration 

themed, ‘Transformation of Work and Organizations: Managing Challenges and 

Organizing for the Future’, was held on 09th April 2021 

 

 The 3rd Commerce Research Symposium - 2021 of the Department of Commerce to 

encourage undergraduates’ active engagement on research was held in the third week of 

March 2022.  

 

 The 04th Operations and Technology Management Undergraduate Research Symposium 

– OTMURS 2021 of Department of Decision Sciences was held on 30th March 2021  

 

 The 4th Student Conference in Finance – 2021 organized by the Department of Finance 

held virtually via Zoom on 12th July 2021. 

 

 The 3rd Undergraduate Research Symposium 2021of the Department of Estate 

Management and Valuation was held on 5th April 2021 

 The 2nd Undergraduate Research Symposium of the Department of Human Resources 

Management was held on 16th July 2021. 
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 The 2nd Student Symposium on Business Information Systems organised by the 

Department of Information Technology was successfully conducted on the 19th of June 

2021  

 

 The 3rd Undergraduate Research Symposium of the Department of Marketing 

Management funded by AHEAD Project was held on 6th April 2021  

 

 The 5th Undergraduate Research Day (URD) of the Department of Public Administration 

for the year 2020 was held on the 23rd of March 2021. 

 

COMPARISON OF 2020 AND 2021 RESULTS RELEASED 

 

Degree Programme 

First Class 
Second 

Upper 

Second 

Lower 

General 

Pass 

Total 

Passed 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

B.Sc. Accounting 

(Special) 
44 39 76 64 29 49 49 48 198 200 

B.Sc. Business 

Administration 

(Business Economics) 

(Special) 

19 9 22 21 19 12 17 27 77 69 

B.Sc. Business 

Administration 

(Special) 

24 22 56 55 67 60 88 88 235 225 

B.Com (Special) 3 10 30 23 23 26 68 67 124 126 

B.Sc. Operations & 

Technology 

Management (Special) 

5 7 18 14 6 12 13 21 42 54 

B.Sc. Estate 

Management and 

Valuation (Special) 

1 7 20 15 12 16 27 16 60 54 

B.Sc. 

Entrepreneurship 

(Special) 

2 0 2 3 0 3 5 7 9 13 

B.Sc. Finance 

(Special) 
26 31 50 34 42 36 50 52 168 153 

B.Sc. Human 

Resource Management 

(Special) 

9 4 39 17 13 22 10 32 71 75 

B.Sc. Business 

Information Systems 

(Special) 

2 6 9 5 9 7 34 28 54 46 
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B.Sc. Marketing 

Management (Special) 
11 8 22 14 16 26 43 48 92 96 

B.Sc. Management 

(Public) (Special) 
2 8 10 8 18 13 40 45 70 74 

Total 148 151 354 273 254 282 444 479 1200 1185 

 

DETAILS OF LOCAL STUDENTS - 2021 

 

Degree Programmes (in English Medium) 

Year Student 

Total No. of 

Undergraduate

s 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 

Management Common Programme 940       940 

B.Sc. Accounting (Special)   204 205 204 613 

B.Sc. Business Administration (Business 

Economics) (Special) 
  71 82 82 235 

B.Sc. Business Administration (Special)   237 227 221 685 

B.Com (Special) 135 125 126 123 509 

B.Sc. Operations & Technology 

Management (Special) 
  49 56 52 157 

B.Sc. Estate Management and Valuation 

(Special) 
85 60 58 60 263 

B.Sc. Entrepreneurship (Special)   25 16 19 60 

B.Sc. Finance (Special)   153 157 159 469 

B.Sc. Human Resource Management 

(Special) 
  59 58 67 184 

B.Sc. Business Information Systems 

(Special) 
79 46 49 49 223 

B.Sc. Marketing Management (Special)   91 94 93 278 

B.Sc. Management (Public) (Special) 109 83 84 74 350 

Grand Total 1348 1203 1212 1203 

 

4966 
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DETAILS OF STAFF – 2021 

 

Academic 
Executive Academic Support 

Non Academic 

(Technical/ Clerical/ 

Primary Grades) Permanent Temporary 

188 49 4 11 77 

 

DETAILS OF PERMANENT ACADEMIC STAFF -2020 

 

Department/Unit 
S
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r 
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Business Administration 0 3 0 15 5 23 

Public Administration 1 1 0 6 4 12 

Commerce 1 0 0 4 3 8 

Estate Management and 

Valuation 
1 1 0 6 3 

11 

Accounting 2 7 0 10 3 22 

Marketing Management 2 2 1 6 1 12 

Human Resource Management 2 4 1 5 1 13 

Finance 1 5 0 5 4 15 

Business Economics 1 4 0 10 4 19 

Information Technology 0 4 0 8 6 18 

Decision Sciences 1 3 0 8 4 16 

Entrepreneurship 0 1 0 6 2 9 

Legal Studies Unit        2 2 4 

Business Communication Unit 0 0 0 6 0 6 

Total 12 35 2 97 42 188 
 

DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATIONS AND PUBLICATIONS - 2021 

 

  Publication Category 

Number 

Published  

Local 

Published  

Foreign 

1 No. of publications in refereed indexed Journals   75 

2 No. of publications in refereed non-indexed Journals 18 19 

3 Conference Proceedings (Full Papers/ Abstracts) 54 20 

4 No. of Book Chapters published 3 6 

5 No. of Books/Text Books published 8 1 
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FACULTY OF MEDICAL SCIENCES   

  

 

Faculty of Medical Sciences was established in 1993 as the fourth Faculty of the University of 

Sri Jayewardenepura. By the year 2022, the Faculty developed into a full-fledged Faculty 

consisting   of 17 Departments.   In 2020, a new Department of Immunology and Molecular 

Medicine was newly established as the 17th Department of the Faculty.  

   

Academic Departments in the Faculty of Medical Sciences and the Heads of the respective 

Departments during the year 2021 are as follows. 

Dean         Prof. A.A. Pathirana 

 

Departments         Heads of Department  

1. Department of Anatomy Dr.(Mrs.) V. Tennakoon 

 

2. Department of Physiology Dr. H. Waidyasekera 

        

3. Department of Biochemistry Prof. U.P.K Hettiarachchi (from 15.06.2021) 

 Prof. P.P.R. Perera (upto14.06.2021) 
     

4. Department of Parasitology Prof.(Mrs.) P.H.K.I.S. Ranasinghe 

 

5. Department of Microbiology Dr.(Mrs.) D.M.B.T.Dissanayake  

 (From 15.06.2021) 

Prof. (Mrs.) M.M. Weerasekera   

(upto14.06.2021) 

     

6. Department of Pathology Dr. (Mrs.)  H.W.C.K. Kulathilake  
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7. Department of Pharmacology Dr. G.V.N. Sandakumari (from 01.11.2021) 

 Prof. P.A.P.G.Jayewardene (upto 31.10.2021) 
 

8. Department of Community Medicine Dr. B.C.V. Senaratne 

 

9. Department of Forensic Medicine Dr. (Mrs.) Dhammika Ariyaratne 

 

10. Department of Medicine       Prof. J. Indrakumar  

 

11. Department of Obstetrics and  Dr. M.A.M.M. Jayawardena 

      Gynaecology 

       

12. Department of Paediatrics Dr. (Mrs.) Ruwanthi Perera  

 

13. Department of Surgery Prof. Deepaka Weerasekera 

 

14. Department of Psychiatry Dr. Y.M. Rohanachandra (from 01.11.2021) 

 Dr. Jayamal de Silva (upto 31.10.2021) 
 

15. Department of Family Medicine Dr. Hiranthini de Silva (from 01.08.2021) 

 Prof. (Mrs.) T.S.P. Samaranayake   

 (upto 30.07.2021) 

    

16. Department of Medical Education  Prof.. R.B. Marasinghe 

 

17. Department of Immunology and  Prof. (Mrs.) Neelika Malavige 

      Molecular Medicine    
 

DEGREES AND DIPLOMAS AWARDED BY THE FACULTY 

 

Degrees 

 

 Bachelor of Medicine & Bachelor of Surgery 

 Bachelor of Science Honours in Human Biology 

 Bachelor of Science in Human Biology 

 

Diplomas 

 Diploma in Counseling 

 Diploma in Forensic Medicine and Toxicology 

EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

 Short courses introduced in 2021 

As per the MOU signed between Sung Kyun Kwan University, South Korea and USJ, 

the Department of Immunology and Molecular Medicine got approval for three short 
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courses in Immunology as hybrid part time courses which will contribute to a national 

need. 

 

 Certificate Course in cell culture 

 Certificate course in Molecular Diagnostics 

 Certificate course in sequencing 
 

 MCQ bank 

MCQ bank was introduced to the Faculty to maintain MCQs as an electronic database.  

This would enable the departments to maintain the MCQs in a bank, which is secure.  

MCQs can be categorized according to the subjects and learning outcomes.  The results 

of the item analysis of the questions too can be incorporated in the bank.  This would be 

help to improve the quality of the MCQs of the faculty. 
 

 Mechanisms to complete assessments due to Covid Pandemic. 

Some assessment formats were changed in clinical appointments, clerkship programmes 

and decisions were taken to re-schedule the appointments for the students who were 

unable to attend due to covid conditions. 
 

 New methods of teaching 

New methods of teaching an d learning were introduced, during the pandemic when 

students had restricted access.  Clinical teaching was conducted in a hybrid manner, 

enabling participation of the entire group (half joining on line).  Several new online 

teaching activities were commenced in phase 3.  Interactive clinical case discussions 

involving participation from staff of phases 1 and 2 was one of them. 

 

 Curriculum Revision Subcommittee 

A subcommittee headed by Prof Kamani Wanigasuriya, was formed to take forward the 

curricumum revision process.  This was initiated to align the curricular content with the 

program learning outcomes.  However, content revision along with changes in timelines 

are being addressed currently.  This subcommittee is to report to the CDC (Curriculum 

Development Committee) 

 

 Student loan system  

People’s Bank, Sampath Bank and Hatton National Bank introduced a special loan 

scheme for the medical undergraduates, with loan facility up to Rs.500,000 for 

purchasing laptops, computers, equipment, devices and motorbikes during the stay at 

medical faculty giving a grace period and allowing a concessionary repayment period. 

 

 A mechanism to identify students who perform poorly at examinations 

 

Students who do not obtain pass marks for more than half the subjects are picked up at 

the results board by the examinations unit and are referred to the personal tutor for 
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evaluation, in order to find out the possible reasons for poor performance.  Accordingly, 

they are referred for supportive actions (language, psychology, financial and other) 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

 International Conference on Health Sciences 2021 

International Conference on Health Sciences 2021 was held on 15th October 2021 from 

5.00pm onwards as a virtual conference. The theme wass “Exploring challenges to make 

a difference”.  The Faculty of Medical Sciences oration was done by Prof. Kamani 

Wanigasuriya. 

 

 MOU between University of Sri Jayewardenepura and Apeksha Hospital. 

 

An MOU was signed between the Cancer Research Unit of the USJ, with the Apeksha 

Hospital.  This would enable the conduct of research on cancer in Sri Lanka 

 

 Prof. Neelika Malavige was ranked among the top 2% of the world’s best scientists in the 

2020 list of outstanding researchers prepared by Elsevier BV, Stanford University, USA. 

 

 Prof. GN. Malavige winning the Top 50 professional and Career Women Awards 2020. 

 

 The paper  titled “Ward-based clinical pharmacists and hospital readmission: a non-

randomized controlled  trial in Sri Lanka” published in the Bulletin of the World Health 

Organization in 2018  authored by Professor Nirmala Wijekoon received  Presidents Award 

for Scientific Research at the ceremony organized by National Research Council. 

 

 The paper  titled “Fixed Low-Dose Triple Combination Antihypertensive Medication vs Usual 

Care for Blood Pressure Control in Patients with Mild to Moderate Hypertension in Sri Lanka: 

a Randomized Clinical Trial” authored by Dr. Sanjeewa Wijekoon received  Presidents Award 

for Scientific Research at the ceremony organized by National Research Council. 

 Case report titled “Pediatric death due to influenza B meningitis” Autopsy diagnosis of a rare 

complication of influenza B Virus” prepared by Dr. S.R. Hulathduwa  had been awarded the 

2nd place  for the best case report at the Annual Academic Sessions of the College of Forensic 

Pathologists of Sri Lanka 

  

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 Phase II – building extension 

Laying of foundation stone of Phase II building extension funded by AHEAD project 

happened on 12th March 2022. 
 

 Ceremonial opening of the new Professorial Paediatric Unit Complex  of the Colombo 

South Teaching Hospital 
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Three floors of the eight-storied new millennium building of the Colombo South Teaching 

Hospital were completed and handed over on 26th August 2021. Construction of the project 

was undertaken by the State Engineering Cooperation.  Sri Lanka Army and the Army Seva 

Vanitha Unit were instrumental in the completion including the provision of furniture and 

equipment. The Sri Lanka Army Ordnance Corps factory in Dombagoda manufactured the 

250 iron beds to match with recommended ward specifications.The ASVU provided 

mattresses, bed sheets, pillowcases, pillows, bedside cupboards, and other pieces of furniture 

as well as accessories to the three floors, including the pediatric floor. 
 

 Facility Management System 

An online reservation system was introduced from 1st May 2021 to reserve lecture halls and 

tutorial rooms via online.  Access has been given to the Heads of Departments. 
 

 Refurbishment of Board room and the entrance: 

Proposal has been submitted to refurbishment of Board room and the entrance at the phase 

IV Building. 

 

 Development of student areas  

Few spaces identified in the Phase IV building were designated for the development of a 

common room, recreation room and a locker room for students. These were completed in 

2021 to be formally opened in 2022. The canteen of the Phase IV building was expanded 

to accommodate 150 students, by increasing the seating capacity around it, outdoors. 

LIFELONG COMMUNITY SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

 Contribution made by Allergy, Immunology and Cell Biology Unit (AICBU) and 

Department of Immunology and Molecular Medicine 

 

The Department of Immunology and Molecular Medicine is the latest addition to the Faculty 

of Medical Sciences which was established as a part of the Leading University Project for 

International Cooperation, funded by Ministry of Education, South Korea and is based on a 

MoU between University of Sri Jayewardenepura and SungKyunKwan University, South 

Korea. Although the department had only two academic staff and no permanent non-

academic staff since its inception, the workload carried out in the year 2021 was quite high, 

especially owing to the pandemic situation that prevailed worldwide. With the collaboration 

of the Allergy, Immunology and Cell Biology Unit (AICBU), the department made a 

substantial contribution to the national need of fighting against the corona virus by 

performing more than 300,000 PCR diagnostic tests (in 2021) for various government 

establishments including the Ministry of Health. Furthermore, as the major sequencing 

facility in Sri Lanka, the department and the unit were also the pioneers in sequencing and 

viral strain identification during each outbreak of COVID-19 in the country. In addition, 

many other research projects have been conducted related to areas concerning SARS-CoV-2 

virus, its vaccines and antibody responses and dengue viral infections. 

 

In October 2021, the department and the AICBU were selected by the Ministry of Health as 

one of the training centers to train Medical Laboratory Science (MLS) Graduate Interns in 

Immuno Diagnostic and Molecular Biology techniques. The batch consisted of more than 
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170 interns who underwent 2 weeks of hands-on training in groups of 10-20 each time. The 

department has also obtained necessary approval to start several short courses (Cell Culture, 

Molecular Diagnostics, and Sequencing) that are open to individuals with different levels of 

knowledge and skills in the subjects. Moreover, the department is at the final stage of 

obtaining approval on starting the Master’s course in Immunology and also expects to take 

part in the BSc in Human Biology course by offering a specialization in Immunology for 

selected students in the program. In addition, the head of the Department and the Director of 

the AICBU have been participating in a number of conferences, workshops and many public 

engagement programs in the form of media discussions and public lectures in order to share 

knowledge among stakeholders related to the industry and create awareness among the 

general public. 

 

 Provide assistance to establish new Medical Faculty at the Uva Wellassa University of 

Sri Lanka 

One senior academic staff member from each Department in Faculty of Medical Sciences 

was appointed to develop curricula, infrastructure requirements, equipment required for 

laboratories etc. 

 

 Conduct Examination to Register to Practise Medicine (ERPM) Examination 

Theory examination was coordinated by the Faculty in December 2020 by Dr.Thushari 

Dissanayake and Clinical part of the ERPM examination was held from 22nd March 2021 and 

Dr. M A M M Jayawardene (Department of Obstetrics & Gynaecology) coordinated it on 

behalf of the Faculty.  

 

 Contribute to National Operations Center for prevention of Covid (NOCPOC) 

NOCPOC has conducted a national operational service via 1904 SMS service to triangle the 

patients and reduce unnecessary hospital admissions. It is a 24 hour service running all 07 

days and medical students were permitted to work on volunteer basis. 

 

 Prof. Neelika Malavige has been appointed as a member of the 

o WHO Technical Advisory Group on the COVID-19 Technology Access Pool 

o Expert working group of COVID-19 vaccines : Ministry of Health 

o National coordinating committee for COVID vaccine – Ministry of Health 

o Technical Subcommittee  for prioritization, targeting and surveillance for COVID 19 

vaccine: Ministry of Health 

o Committee to conduct a scientific study on Ayurvedic /Traditional Medicine and other 

herbal preparations made in Sri Lanka against COVID- 19 Infection: Ministry of Health 

o Advisory panel to advice the NMRS on COVID vaccines: State Ministry 

o Advisory assistance of COVID-19 related vaccines and technology transfers, MOH 
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o Technical committee to formulate health criteria for tourism during the COVID-19 

pandemic 

o SLMA expert committee to address COVID-19 issues in Sri Lanka – SLMA 

o SLMA expert committee to address COVID-19 issues in Sri Lanka : SLMA 

o Contribution to the COVID-19 strategies: National Operation Centre for prevention of 

COVID-19 

o Independent expert panel to review the COVID-19 strategies: National Operation 

Centre for prevention of COVID-19 

o Advisory Committee on Communicable Diseases: MOH 

 

OUTSTANDING STUDENT EXPERIENCE AND STDENTS` ACHIEVEMENTS 

 

 Harith Wijeratne - ‘ The Voice Sri Lanka Competition’ 

 

Harith Wijeratne, a student from the 26th batch, won the  First place in ‘The Voice Sri Lanka” 

a reality TV singing competition organized by Sirasa TV. He won the admiration of many 

renowned music artists in Sri Lanka and was also recognized globally for his best 

performances by “The Voice Global”. 

 

COMPARISON OF 2020 AND 2021 RESULTS RELEASED 

           

Degree Courses  

First Class 
Second 

Upper 

Second 

Lower 
Pass 

Total 

Passed 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Year 

2020 

Year 

2021 

Degree of Bachelor of 

Medicine and Bachelor 

of Surgery 
7 7 31 33 45 53 61 58 144 151 

Degree of Bachelor of 

Science in Human 

Biology (General) 
              3   3 

Degree of Bachelor of 

Pharmacy Honours 
2 3 6 5 6 4 9 15 23 27 

Degree of  Bachelor of 

Science Honours in 

Nursing  
  0 3 5 4 6 13 11 20 22 

Degree of Bachelor of 

Science Honours in 

Medical Laboratory 

Sciences 

2 3 6 9 7 8 13 7 28 27 

           
Note:   Exams for the Allied Health Students who have registered before 2021 have been 

conducted by the Faculty of Medical Sciences 
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DETAILS OF RESOURCES & STUDENTS 

 

Course 
Total 

Students 

Total 

Academic 

Staff 

Total non-

Academic 

Staff 

Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of 

Surgery  
1167 

115 147 

Degree of B.Sc. Special  Human Biology                               7 

Total 1267 119 139 

 

DETAILS OF LOCAL STUDENTS - 2021 

 

Course 

Number of Students No of 

Graduate

s 
1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 

Bachelor of Medicine and  

Bachelor of Surgery   

187 

162 164 

  148 

151 + 159 + 

193   154 

Degree of B.Sc. Special  Human 

Biology            
  2 5     3 

Total 

 
380 164 169 159 302 154 

 

DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF – 2021 
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Anatomy 1 1 0 1 2 0 3 8 

Physiology 1 2 0 0 5 1 2 11 

Biochemistry 1 4 0 1 0 1 1 8 

Parasitology 1 1 1 0 0 0 3 6 

Microbiology 2 3 0 2 0 0 1 8 

Pathology 0 0 2 5 0 0 1 8 

Pharmacology 0 4 0 0 3 1 0 8 

Community 

Medicine 
0 2 0 1 1 3 0 7 

Forensic Medicine 0 1 0 4 0 1 0 6 

Medicine 1 0 0 2 3 0 0 6 
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Obstetrics and 

Gynaecology 
0 4 0 1 0 0 0 5 

Paediatrics 2 0 0 3 0 2 0 7 

Surgery 1 4 0 0 1 1 0 7 

Psychiatry 1 0 0 2 5 0 1 9 

Family Medicine 

 
0 1 0 0 2 0 1 4 

Medical Education  0 1 0 0 0 0 1 2 

Immunology and 

Molecular Medicine 
  1 0 0 2 0 0 3 

Other Centres & 

Units 
0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 

 

Total 

 

11 29 3 22 24 10 16 115 

 

DETAILS OF NON-ACADEMIC STAFF – 2020 

 

Executive Academic Support 
Clerical, Technical and 

Primary Grades 

4 3 140 

 

DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATIONS AND PUBLICATIONS - 2021 

  Publication Category 

Number 

Published  

Local 

Published  

Foreign 

1 No. of publications in refereed indexed Journals 9 106 

2 
No. of publications in refereed non-indexed 

Journals 
32 14 

3 
Conference Proceedings (Full Papers/ 

Abstracts) 
179 19 

4 No. of Book Chapters published - 4 

5 No. of Books/Text Books published - 22 
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FACULTY OF GRADUATE STUDIES 

 

 

The Faculty of Graduate Studies (FGS) was established in the University in January 1996 under 

Section 48A of the Universities Act No 16 of 1978. According to the Act, the Faculty is the main 

administrative centre for promoting research and providing courses of study leading to higher 

degrees and other academic distinctions. The Faculty’s vision is “to firmly establish itself as a 

centre of excellence for advanced learning, research and scholarship both within and outside the 

domain of the country”.  

The FGS is under the oversight of a Dean who guides the academic and administrative functions 

of the Faculty. An Assistant Registrar heads the operational division while a Senior Assistant 

Bursar heads the finance division.  

The academic programmes of the FGS are conducted through 9 Boards of Study, which are in 

close collaboration with other faculties and academic departments in the university. These 

Boards of Study are Humanities, Social Sciences, Life Sciences, Physical Sciences, Management 

Studies and Commerce, Medical Sciences, Multidisciplinary Studies, Engineering and Industrial 

Technology. The programmes offered by the Faculty include Certificate Courses, Post Graduate 

Diplomas, One year Masters Degrees, Masters Degrees by course work and research and Higher 

Degree Programmes by research only. All the programs are aligned along with the Sri Lanka 

Qualification Framework, which sets the benchmark of higher education in the country.  

Following are the SLQF levels for the courses offered by the FGS and their eligibility criteria for 

registration. 
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SLQF 

Level  
Qualification Awarded  

No of credits / 

Duration  
Eligibility  

7  Post Graduate Certificate  20  SLQF 5 or 6  

8  Post Graduate Diploma  25  SLQF 5 or 6  

9  Masters by Coursework (one year)  30  SLQF 5 or 6  

10  Masters by Course work and 

Research  

60  SLQF 5 or 6  

11  Master Degree by Research (MAR)  2 years full time  SLQF 5 or 6  

11  Master of Philosophy (M Phil)  2 years full time  SLQF 6 and above  

12  Doctor of Philosophy (PhD)  3 years full time  SLQF 6 and above  

 

All the courses offered by the FGS have been formulated to fit into the Sri Lanka Qualification 

Framework (SLQF – 2015). Four main domains of learning: Knowledge, Skills, Attitudes and 

mindset and Paradigm, are being characterized by the K-SAM model. All the courses have been 

formulated to achieve the pertaining learning outcomes of a study program. The core areas and 

the categories of learning outcomes are shown below; 

 

Core area  Categories of Learning Outcomes  

Knowledge  Subject / Theoretical Knowledge  

 Practical Knowledge and Application  

Skills  Communication  

 Teamwork and Leadership  

 Creativity and Problem Solving  

 Managerial and Entrepreneurship  

 Information Usage and Management  

 Networking and Social Skills  

 Adaptability and Flexibility  

Attitudes, Values, Professionalism and 

Vision for Life  

Attitudes, Values and Professionalism  

 Vision for Life  

Mind-set and Paradigm  Updating Self / Lifelong Learning  
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POSTGRADUATE STUDENT DATA 

 

Following table shows the number of students engaged in postgraduate programs at the Faculty 

of Graduate Studies in the year 2021. 

The study Programme 

No. of 

student 

Enrollment 

PG Certificate Courses 

PG Certificate in Corporate Environmental Sustainability 4 

PG Certificate in Applied Statistics 53 

PG Certificate Total 57 

Postgraduate Diplomas 

PG Dip in Writership & Mass Communication 10 

PG Dip in Criminology & Criminal Justice 62 

PG Dip in Marketing  Management 29 

PG Dip in Monitoring & Evaluation 23 

PG Dip in Applied Finance 58 

PG Dip in Sociology 5 

PG Dip in Social Statistics 12 

PG Diploma Total 199 

Master Degrees 

Master of Business Economics 40 

Master of Entrepreneurship (MEntr) 174 

Master of Professional Accounting (MPAcc) 101 

Master of Public Management 21 

MBA/MSc in Management 709 

MSc in Applied Statistics 51 

MSc in Computer Science 135 

Msc in Fisheries and Aquatic Resoures Management  5 

MSc in Food Science & Technology 32 

MSc in Forestry & Environmental Management 65 

MSc in Geographical Information System & Remote Sensing 214 

MSc in Industrial Analytical Chemistry 168 

MSc in Industrial Mathematics 14 
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MSc in Polymer Science & Technology  124 

MSc in Data Science & Artificial Intelligence 47 

MSc in Public Policy & Management 20 

MSc in Real Estate Management & Valuation 44 

MA in Teaching English as a Second Language 59 

PGD/MSc in Applied Finance 126 

MAR in Sinhala 1 

MAR in Cultural Studies 1 

MAR in Psycology 4 

MAR in Buddist Civilization 2 

MAR in Buddist Philosophy 1 

MAR in Philosophy 2 

MAR in Economics 1 

MAQ in Sociology 1 

MAT in Criminology 38 

Master Degree Total 2200 

MPhil’s 

MPhil  in Archaeology 4 

MPhil  in Mass Communication 2 

MPhil in Anatomy 5 

MPhil in Anthropology 2 

MPhil in Biochemistry 12 

MPhil in Botany 6 

MPhil in Buddist Civilization 2 

MPhil in Business Economics 20 

MPhil in Chemistry  21 

MPhil in Community Medicine 3 

MPhil in Computer Science 4 

MPhil in Criminology 3 

MPhil in Cultural studies 5 

MPhil in Economics 1 

MPhil in English 2 

MPhil in Food Science  7 
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MPhil in Forestry 4 

MPhil in Geography 4 

MPhil in Mathematics 8 

MPhil in Medical Education & Helth Science 8 

MPhil in Medical Laboratary Sciences 1 

MPhil in Microbiology 10 

MPhil in Multidisciplinary 12 

MPhil in Music 2 

MPhil in Pali 2 

MPhil in Parasitology 2 

MPhil in philosophy 12 

MPhil in Physics 6 

MPhil in Physiology 3 

MPhil in Sanskrit 3 

MPhil in Sinhala 6 

MPhil in Sociology 1 

MPhil in Statistics 4 

MPhil in Zoology  10 

MPhil Total 197 

Doctoral Degrees 

PhD in Botany 1 

PhD in Buddhist Philosophy 1 

PhD in Chemistry 1 

PhD in Community Medicine 1 

PhD in Computer Science 6 

PhD in English 1 

PhD in Food Sciences 11 

PhD in Forestry & Environmental Management 7 

PhD in Geography 3 

PhD in Management 150 

PhD in Mathematics 1 

PhD in Medical Education & Health Sciences 4 

PhD in Medical Laboratory Science 1 
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PhD in Microbiology  1 

PhD in Multidisciplinary 10 

PhD in Parasitology 1 

PhD in Physics 1 

PhD in Physiology 1 

PhD in Psycology 1 

PhD in Psychiatry 1 

PhD in Polymer Science 1 

PhD in Statistics 1 

PhD in Zoology 4 

PhD Total 210 

Grand Total  2863 

 

EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT 

 

New Postgraduate Courses 

Following courses were approved by the University Grants Commission in 2021. 

 MSc in Data Science & Artificial Intelligence 

 

Ethics Review Committee (ERC) of the Faculty of Graduate Studies  

On the recommendation of the Faculty Board of Graduate Studies, at the 368th Senate, 

held on 31st January 2019, respective senate members have accepted and recommended 

a proposal for the approval of an Ethical Review Committee (ERC) for non-medical 

research at the FGS.  

 ERC-AS (Animal studies) 

 ERC-HSS (Human studies in Social Sciences) 
 

RESEARCH AND CONFERENCES 

 

International Conference on Multidisciplinary Approaches – 2021 

On the 22nd and 23rd of December 2021, the International Conference on 

Multidisciplinary Approaches (iCMA) was conducted at the University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura. "Multidisciplinary Perspective for Re-emerging with Resilience, 

Perseverance, and Adaptability for a Sustainable Future" was the conference's theme. 

According to COVID-19 guidelines, an inaugural ceremony took place at the Seminar 
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Room 1, FGS, with limited participants. The Zoom platform was used to conduct the 

technical sessions. 

 

The chief guest was Senior Professor Sudantha Liyanage (Vice-Chancellor of the 

University of Sri Jayewardenepura). The 8th International Conference on 

Multidisciplinary Approaches was chaired by Senior Professor M. M. Pathmalal, Dean 

of the Faculty of Graduate Studies (iCMA). 

 

The 8th ICMA 2021 received 123 scientific abstracts, which the academic conference 

committee screened. Experts evaluated the abstracts, and 86 research papers were 

selected for publishing. The accepted papers are related to the six thematic study topics 

listed below.Engineering, Physical Sciences & Technological Innovation 
 

1. Environmental Pollution & Natural Resources Management 

2. Health Sciences & Nutrition 

3. Humanities, Social Sciences & Education 

4. Life Sciences & Agriculture 

5. Management, Commerce, Governance & Industry Development 
 

Prof. Dominic Roser of the University of Fribourg's Interdisciplinary Institute for Ethics 

and Human Rights delivered the keynote address, "Economic Growth and Population 

Growth: A Blessing or Curse for Sustainability?" 

 
International Journal of Multidisciplinary Studies  

IJMS provides a platform for researchers to share their multidisciplinary research 

findings. Until 2020, this was a biannual publication with two issues each year. Volume 

8 was published in 2021, and three issues were published in 2021. 
 

 

COMMUNITY SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Monthly Public Lectures 

The Faculty of Graduate Studies organized the following monthly public lectures in the 

year 2021.  

1. “Is the COVID-19 Vaccine Safe?” By Dr. Chandima Jeewandara (March 2021 - 

Zoom) 

2. “Worm Diseases, Consequences and Prevention of Infections” by Dr. Shalindra 

Ranasinghe (April 2021 - Zoom) 

3. “Alcoholic Liver Disease / මත්පැන් ආශ්්‍රිත අක්මා රරෝග” - Dr. Dulani Beneragama 

(May 2021 - Zoom) 

4. “Introduction to Cyber Crime” by Dr. Sunil Rajaneththi (July 2021 - Zoom) 

5. “Mindfulness as a tool for prevention of COVID 19” by Dr. Sanath Mahawithanage 

(Aug 2021 - Zoom) 

6. “Possible impacts of ship accidents on marine biodiversity & ecosystems of Sri Lanka” 

by Emeritus Snr. Prof. P.R.T. Cumaranatunga (Sep 2021 on Zoom) 
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7. “රසායනික රපාරහාර තහනම හා ශ්්‍රී ලාංකික කෘෂිකර්මාන්තරේ අනාගතය” by Prof. R. S. 

Dharmakeerthi (Oct 2021 on Zoom) 

8. “Sri Lanka’s Economy Gets Back on Track” by Prof. Shirantha Heenkenda (Nov 2021 

on Zoom) 

9. “Lilliputians to Lead the Next Industrial Revolution” by Prof. Nilwala Kottegoda (Dec 

2021 on Zoom) 

FACULTY OF TECHNOLOGY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In order to cater to the GCE Advanced Level Technology Stream introduced by the Government of Sri 

Lanka in the Year 2013, University of Sri Jayewardenepura was the first University to come forward in 

Establishing the Faculty of Technology in the Government University System. The proposed Technology 

curricula were then recommended to the University Council upon the approval of the University Senate 

on 23rd September, 2015. Followed by the recommendation of the University Council on 08th October 

2015, University Grants Commission approved the proposed Technology curricula for three degree 

programs including the 09 subject focus areas on 19th November, 2015. Fulfilling the immense efforts, 

dedication, and the vision of Prof. Sampath Amaratunge, Vice Chancellor, University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura and his teams, Ministry of Higher Education and Highways of Sri Lanka officially 

announced the establishment of the Faculty of Technology through the Gazette Extraordinary 

(No.1948/59 Order under Section 27(1), THE UNIVERSITIES ACT, No. 16 of 1978) that was published 

on 08th of January, 2016.  

 

At the initial stage the Faculty of Technology was established at a temporary premises in Nugegoda and 

then moved to permanent place in Techno Park, Pitipana. Fully fledged new faculty premises were 

declared opened by His Excellency Prime Minister Mahinda Rajapaksha on 8th June 2020. 

 

The Dean and Head of the five Departments during the year 2021 are as follows; 

 

        Dean       Prof. (Mrs.) A. H. L. R. Nilmini  
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        Department      Head of Department 

 

1. Department of Biosystems Technology   Dr. S. D. Udayanga 

2. Department of Information and Communication         Dr.B.N.S.Lankasena                                                  

Technology 

3. Department of Civil and Environmental Technology Dr. N. A. Weerasekara 

4. Department of Materials and Mechanical Technology Dr. Rajitha Gunaratne 

5. Department of Science for Technology   Dr. (Mrs.) K. P. C. Nilasha 

The Department of Biosystems Technology (BST) conducts the Bachelor of Biosystems Technology 

(BBST) Honours Degree programs. The BBST Honours Degree Programme will be accredited by the 

National Biotechnology Industry Association, Sri Lanka (NBIA).  The Biosystems Technology 

programme will produce skilled graduates in three focus areas namely Food Processing Technology, 

Agriculture and Environment Technology and Industrial Biosystems Technology. 

 

The Department of Information and Communication Technology conducts the Bachelor of 

Information and Communication Technology Honours degree programme.  This Degree programme will 

be accredited by the Computer Society of Sri Lanka (CSSL). The Information and Communication 

Technology programme will produce skilled graduates in the three focus areas namely Software 

Technology, Multimedia Technology and Network Technology. 

 

The Department of Civil and Environmental Technology was established in 2020 with a view to equip 

students with the knowledge and skills needed for world-class Civil and Environmental Technology 

practice. The department offers the Bachelor of Honours Degree Programme of Engineering Technology. 

The Engineering Technology programme will produce skilled graduates in the three focus areas namely 

Construction and Building Services Technology, Energy and Environmental Technology and 

Geotechnology. The curricula are guided by the Institute of Engineers Sri Lanka (IESL) Engineering 

Technology Degree Programme recognition manual. 

 

The Department of  Materials and Mechanical Technology was established in 2020. The department 

offers the Bachelor of Honours Degree Programme of Engineering Technology. The Engineering 

Technology programme will produce skilled graduates in the three focus areas namely Mechatronics 

Technology, Automobile Technology and Polymer Processing Technology. The curricula are guided by 

the Institute of Engineers Sri Lanka (IESL) Engineering Technology Degree Programme recognition 

manual. 

  

The Department of Science for Technology was established in 2020, focusing to conduct all the 

programmes relevant to first and second semesters of the three degree programs. The first two years of 
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the study mainly consist of Chemistry, Physics and Mathematics along with basic Computing skills, 

English and Management subjects. As per the guidelines in accreditation manuals, students have to 

engage in a mini project during their first year studies. In addition to conduct of Lectures, the Science for 

technology Department is responsible to conduct mini projects for first year students. 

DEGREES AND DIPLOMAS AWARDED BY THE FACULTY 

 

 

Degrees 

 

 Bachelor of Engineering Technology Honours Degree Program 

 Bachelor of Biosystems Technology Honours Degree Program 

 Bachelor of Information & Communication Technology Honours Degree Program 

 

Diploma 

 Diploma in Polymer Processing Technology and Process Analysis 

 Diploma in Cosmetic Technology 

 

EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT  

 

The Faculty has introduce two new Diploma programs namely Diploma in Polymer Processing 

Technology and Process Analysis from the Department of Materials and Mechanical Technology, and 

Diploma in Cosmetic Technology from the Department of Biosystems Technology. 

 

RESEARCH AND CONFERENCES 

 

In 2021, the first of technology research Conference, International Conference on Innovation and 

Emerging Technologies – ICIET 2021 was held on 25th and 26th November 2021. The two day 

conference was conducted mainly via online platforms with a physically conducted inaugural event which 

is open to a limited number of distinguished invitees. The several pre workshops in different technology 

disciplines along with the conference virtually.  

 

The research journal, Advances in Technology (Adv. Technol.), was initiated in 2021 by the Faculty 

of Technology, University of Sri Jayewardenepura. Advances in technology (ISSN 2773-7098) is an 

open-access, peer-reviewed journal that covers theoretical and experimental research pertaining to the 
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knowledge and applications of Technology in all aspects of Applied Sciences, Engineering, and 

Education. In 2021 Advances in Technology published three issues including articles, which showcase 

the role of technology research, from fundamental to apply. 

 

DETAILS OF THE RESULTS RELEASED FROM THE FACULTY FOR YEAR 2021   

 

Degree Programme 
First 

Class 

Second 

Upper 

Second 

Lower 
Pass 

Total 

Passed 

Bachelor of Biosystems 

Technology 
7 37 17 5 66 

Bachelor of Engineering 

Technology 
3 45 48 58 154 

Bachelor of Information and 

Communication Technology 
3 25 20 21 69 

Total 13 107 85 84 289 

 

DETAILS OF RESOURCES & STUDENTS 2021 

 

             Department 
Total 

Students 

Academic Staff Total Non 

Academic 

Staff Permanent Temporary 

Department of Biosystems Technology 254 20 

46 

11 

 Department  of Information and  

Communication Technology 
223 10 6 

Department of Civil and Environment 

Technology 
219 14 9 

Department of Material and Mechanical 

Technology 
251 15 12 

Department of Science for Technology 491 7 3 

Faculty Office -   21 

Total 1438 66 46 62 
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LOCAL STUDENT INFORMATION 

Course 
Student Enrolment Graduate 

Output 1st 2nd 3rd 4th Total 

Bachelor of Biosystems 

Technology 
142 86 82 86 396 66 

Bachelor of Information and 

Communication Technology 
159 76 75 72 382 69 

Department of Civil and 

Environment Technology 
190 161 153 156 660 99 

Total 491 323 310 314 1438 234 

 

DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF – 2021 

 

 DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATIONS AND PUBLICATIONS - 2021  

  Publication Category 

Number 

Published  

Local 

Published  

Foreign 

1 No. of publications in refereed indexed Journals   67 

2 No. of publications in refereed non-indexed Journals 6 4 

3 Conference Proceedings (Full Papers/ Abstracts) 48 11 

4 No. of Book Chapters published - 2 

5 No. of Books/Text Books published 2 3 
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Dept. of Biosystems Technology - - - 16 4 20 

Dept. of Information and 

Communication Technology 
- - 1 7 2 10 

Dept. of Civil and Environmental 

Technology 
- 1 - 9 5 15 

Dept. of Materials and Mechanical 

Technology 
- - 4 9 1 14 

Dept. of Science for Technology - - - 5 2 7 

Total 0 1 5 46 14 66 
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FACULTY OF ENGINEERING 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Faculty of Engineering, University of Sri Jayewardenepura, is the latest addition to the Faculties of 

Engineering in the state Universities coming under purview of the University Grants Commission. 

Established in January 2016, It consists of five Department of study with a mandate to offer study 

programme in Engineering leading to the award of the degree of the “Bachelor of the Science of 

Engineering Honours”. 

Faculty of Engineering consists of five (05) Academic Departments as follows.  

Dean        Prof. K.M.C. Konthesinghe   

Departments          Head of Department 

1. Department of Civil Engineering  Dr. (Ms) G.N. Samarasekara 

2. Department of Computer Engineering  Dr. D.M.R. Dinalankara  

3. Department of Electrical & Electronic Engineering     Dr. C. de Alwis  

4. Department of Mechanical Engineering  Dr. P.M.T. Bandara 

5. Department of Interdisciplinary Studies  Dr. (Ms) H. M. V. D. Y.  

  Mudunkotuwa 

DEGREES AWARDED BY THE FACULTY 

 

 Bachelor of the Science of Engineering Honours  

 

DETAILS OF THE RESULTS RELEASED FROM THE FACULTY FOR YEAR 2021   

Degree Programme First Class 
Second 

Upper 

Second 

Lower 
Pass 

Total 

Passed 

Bachelor of the Science of 

Engineering Honours 
8 38 44 13 103 
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DETAILS OF RESOURCES & STUDENTS 2021 

Degree Programme 
Total 

Students 

Academic Staff Total non-

Academic Staff Permanent Temporary 

Bachelor of the Science of 

Engineering Honours 
540 23 52 48 

 

LOCAL STUDENT INFORMATION 

Course 
Student Enrolment Graduate 

Output 1st 2nd 3rd 4th Total 

Bachelor of the Science of 

Engineering Honours 
186 120 117 117 540 103 

Total 186 120 117 117 540 103 

 

DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF – 2021 
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Civil Engineering - - 7 - 7 

Computer Engineering - 1 3 - 4 

Electrical & Electronic Engineering - 2 4 1 7 

Mechanical Engineering - - 4 - 4 

Interdisciplinary Studies - - 1 - 1 

Total 0 3 19 1 23 
 

DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATIONS AND PUBLICATIONS - 2021 

 

  Publication Category 

Number 

Published  

Local 

Published  

Foreign 

1 No. of publications in refereed indexed Journals - 16 

2 No. of publications in refereed non-indexed Journals - - 

3 Conference Proceedings (Full Papers/ Abstracts) 9 14 

4 No. of Book Chapters published - - 

5 No. of Books/Text Books published - 1 
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FACULTY OF ALLIED HEALTH SCIENCES - 2021 

 
 

The Faculty of Allied Health Sciences (FAHS), USJ was established in 2019 with the aim of 

expanding the health sciences education in order to meet the growing demand for allied health 

care professionals in the national health care delivery system and to meet the global markets.  

 

The current academic departments in the FAHS and the Heads of the respective Departments are 

as follows.  
 

Dean                  Senior Prof. D.M.S. Fernando 
 

Department        Head of Departments 
  

1. Department of Nursing & Midwifery    Dr. M.K.D.L. Meegoda 

2. Department of Pharmacy & Pharmaceutical Sciences  Prof. M.D.J. Wijayabandara 

3. Department of Medical Laboratory Sciences     Dr. G.U.S. Wijesekara 

4. Department of Basic Sciences     Dr. H.M.K. Akalanka   
 
 

DEGREES AWARDED BY THE FACULTY 

 

Degrees  

 B.Sc. (Honours) in Nursing 

 Bachelor of Pharmacy (Honours) 

 B.Sc. (Honours) in Medical Laboratory Sciences 
 

EDUCATION AND DEVELOPMENT  

 

 Approval has been obtained to introduce a new degree progrmme called B.Sc. (Honours) in 

Optometry from the UGC intake 2020/21. 

 



University of Sri Jayewardenepura 93 Annual Report 2021 
 

 Necessary arrangements have been made to obtain the approval for a new department called 

Department of Optometry, which is going to be the 5th Department in the faculty. 

 

 Dean’s list Awards introduced in 2021 
 

Dean’s list award/ distinction is offered to recognize the highest level of academic 

excellence demonstrated by the students.  

 

 Several webinars were conducted for the undergraduates of FAHS in collaboration of Sri 

Lanka Association for the Advancement of Science and Women Chemists Committee, Sri 

Lanka, including webinars on research proposal writing and ethics in research, scientific 

publishing and also an inspirational talk by a scientist to uplift the enthusiasm of the students 

 

 During online teaching, different strategies were applied with the aid of online tools to make 

the virtual teaching and learning interactive. Special online tools applied were used to make 

the classes synchronously and asynchronously active, involving a well-balanced 

communication between the students. The student feedback indicated that they have actively 

got involved in the learning process as the methods implemented were identified as very 

interactive and effective.  
 

 

RESEARCH AND CONFERENCES 

 

The International Conference in Health Sciences 2021 – The Inaugural Conference of the 

Faculty of Allied Health Sciences 
 

The International Conference in Health Sciences 2021 was hosted for the first time by the 

Faculty of Allied Health Sciences, USJ on 31st March 2021 through a hybrid mode. There 

was a wide range in participation with undergraduates and postgraduates of different 

disciplines both local and of foreign institutions and healthcare professionals working across 

the country making it a very successful conference. The Vice Chancellor, University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura. Snr Prof. S. Liyanage, together with Deans of all other Faculties, 

Registrar, Librarian, and many of members the Faculty of Medical Sciences both past and 

present graced the inauguration ceremony. The inauguration was also a platform to felicitate 

the members of the Faculty of Medical Sciences which was preceded by a tree planting 

programme, where two ‘Kaluwara’, four ‘Malmurutha’, four ‘Jakaranda’, one ‘Kohomba’, 

one ‘Beheth Asoka’ and a very rare plant ‘Rath handun’ were planted in the FMS premises. 

The trees were planted as a mark of gratitude towards the Faculty of Medical Sciences, 

where the allied health degrees were first commenced.   

 

The inauguration was followed by the scientific program including two important events. 

The first, was the panel discussion on “Challenges in Health Sciences with COVID-19.     
 

The next important item of the scientific program, ‘Stories of Young Innovators in Health 

Sciences’ was organized in keeping with the theme of the conference ‘Fostering healthcare 

needs through Research and Innovation’. The event was organized as a competition for 

‘Young Innovators Award in Health Sciences’.  
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Research Journal  

 

The Journal of Health Sciences and Innovative Research is the official research journal of 

the Faculty of Allied Health Sciences, University of Sri Jayewardenepura. It aims to 

promote and share innovative health-related research findings, which would benefit the 

health professionals in all disciplines of the healthcare system and the public. This is a peer-

reviewed journal that was initiated in 2020.  So far, two volumes of the journal have been 

issued, and from the year 2022, it will be published bi-annually.  

https://journals.sjp.ac.lk/index.php/jhsir/index  

 
 

LIFELONG COMMUNITY SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

 A webinar on micro plastics was organized (during the lockdown periods) to create 

awareness of the general public, on the health impacts of micro plastics.  

 

 MLS graduates and Technical officers assisted in the COVID - 19 PCR testing relieving the 

burden of the Family practice Centre, Faculty of Medical Sciences, USJ 

 

 Nursing graduates and staff assisted in the vaccination programme for the University student 

and the staff, University of Sri Jayewardenepura.   

 

 
 

DETAILS OF RESOURCES & STUDENTS 2021 

 

 

             Department 
Total 

Students 

Academic Staff Total Non 

Academic 

Staff Permanent Temporary 

Nursing and Midwifery 
80 14 

14 

5 

Pharmacy and Pharmaceutical Science 
81 11 8 

Medical Laboratory Science 
87 7 11 

Basic Sciences 
147 4 2 

Deans Office 
- - - 6 

Total 395 36 14 32 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://journals.sjp.ac.lk/index.php/jhsir/index
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LOCAL STUDENT INFORMATION 

 

Course Medium 
Student Enrolment Graduate 

Output 1st 2nd 3rd 4th Total 

B.Sc. Nursing 

English 

47 28 29 23 127 22 

B. Pharmacy 50 30 28 23 131 27 

B.Sc. MLS 50 30 26 31 137 27 

Total 147 88 83 77 395 76 

DETAILS OF ACADEMIC STAFF – 2021 

 

Department 

P
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r
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 I
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II
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r/
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b
.)

 

T
o
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Nursing and Midwifery   1 6 7 14 

Pharmacy and Pharmaceutical Science 1 3 5 2 11 

Medical Laboratory Science   1 3 3 7 

Basic Sciences 1   3   4 

Total 2 5 17 12 36 

 

DETAILS OF RESEARCH, INNOVATIONS AND PUBLICATIONS - 2021 

 

  Publication Category 

Number 

Published  

Local 

Published  

Foreign 

1 No. of publications in refereed indexed Journals 2 32 

2 No. of publications in refereed non-indexed Journals 14 - 

3 Conference Proceedings (Full Papers/ Abstracts) 85 12 

4 No. of Book Chapters published 2 - 

5 No. of Books/Text Books published 1 - 
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FACULTY OF DENTAL SCIENCES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Faculty of Dental Sciences (FDS) of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura (USJ) was 

established as the second Faculty of Dental Sciences in Sri Lanka and the ninth faculty of the 

USJ by order of the Gazette extraordinary No. 2257/28 dated 08/12/2021. The FDS was declared 

open by Senior Professor Sampath Amaratunge, Chairman, University Grants Commission and 

Senior Professor Sudantha Liyanage, Vice-Chancellor of University of Sri Jayewardenepura on 

6th January 2022 at the 2nd Floor of the Library Building. In keeping with the University’s vision 

– “PROSPER LIVES THROUGH EDUCATION”, the Faculty hopes to provide a Dental 

education programme of the highest standard for the next generation in the Dental profession, 

who will be skillful, technologically advanced, generously motivated to serve the people with 

compassion, dedication and professionalism. 

 

DEGREES AWARDED BY THE FACULTY 

 

 Bachelor of Dental Surgery 

The Bachelor of Dental Surgery program conducted by the faculty is a five year programme in 

par with global standards of dental education. Synchronized system based curricular delivery 

and subject based assessments are designed to facilitate students to excel according to their 

individual learning styles by providing a platform for learner and student centric experience. 

The preclinical phase (BDS I) will be taught together with the medical students of the Faculty 

of Medical Sciences. 

Aound 30 Dental students as the first Batch going to be enrolled in January, 2022 under the 

UGC intake 2020/21.  

The Faculty has had discussions with the Director General of Health Services (DGHS), Dr. 

Asela Gunawardane and has obtained approval to send students to the National Dental 

Hospital of Sri Lanka (NDHSL) and Colombo South Teaching Hospital for their clinical 

training and these 2 hospitals will be considered as Teaching Hospitals for the FDS.  
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PHYSICAL EDUCATION DIVISION 

  

The formulation & implementation of sport activities for University students, training of 

sportsmen and sports women for 39 sport events and the organization of sport events are the main 

functions of the Physical education Division. Sri Lanka University Games, giving formal training 

for tournaments organized by the National Sports Association or international, the administration 

and maintenance of grounds for different games are the other activities of the Physical Education 

Department. 

  

The present Director of Physical Education is Mrs. N.Nishanthi Vidanage. Mrs. Ramani Kulathilaka, Mr. 

M.G.S.S.Keerthirathna, Mr. H.L.Lahiru Dilankara, Mr.B.N.M.Perera and L.A.D.Priyadarshana serve as 

permanent sports instructors. Mrs. E.D.Priyadarshani, Mrs. N.Karunarathne  and N.L. Wickramadara 

serve as temporary sports instructors. 
 

 OBJECTIVES OF THE PHYSICAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 

 

1. To give an understanding on the values of Physical Education to internal students of the 

University and to give them a physical development through mental development. 

2. To provide an opportunity for improvement of sports activities and skills. 

3. To encourage sports participation by playing tournaments, with internal and external 

sports bodies. 

4. To develop discipline by encouraging sports activities among students. 

 
 

 SPORTS ADVISORY BOARD 

The Sports Advisory Board consists of the following members. 

1. Sixteen permanent academic staff members who are   interested in sports appointed by 

the Vice- Chancellor  

2. Director of Physical Education 

3. Five  members from the permanent physical education instructors (one should be an 

instructress) 

4. Two Co-president of the Sports Council, Secretary and Vice-President and another 

representative (One should be a sports women) 

5. University Chief Medical Officer or his representative (Should be a medical officer of 

the University) 

6. Director, Student affairs 

7. The Senior Assistant Registrar (Student Welfare) or his  or her representative 

8. Bursar or his or her representative 

9. Works Engineer or his representative  

10. Assistant Registrar (Capital Works Division) 

11. Project Engineer ( Capital Works Division) 
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 SPORTS COUNCIL. 

 

The University Sports Council consists of Captains and Vice Captains of different sports teams. 

It consists of two co-president, Vice-presidents in each faculty, Secretary, Assistant secretary, 

Junior Treasurer, two editors and two committee members. 

 

They will be selected at the first meeting of the academic year. 

 

 SPORTS ACTIVITIES AND TOURNAMENTS 

The following Physical Education Instructors of the Physical Education Division of the 

University have provided facilities and training for the following sports under their supervision: 

 

Mrs. N. Nishanthi 

Vidanage 

(Director of Physical 

Education)  

 

 

Mrs. J.M. Ramani 

Kulathilaka 

(Physical Education Instructor)  

 

Volleyball (female/male) 

Chess (female/male) 

Netball (female) 
Yoga 

Mr. M.G.S.S. 

Keerthirathna 

(Physical Education 

Instructor) 

 

Football (male) 

Swimming (female/male) 

Rugby (male) 

Cricket  (male) 

Mr. H.L.Lahiru Dilankara 

(Physical Education Instructor) 

 

Athletes (female/male) 

Road race (female/male) 

Carrom (female/male)  

Basketball (female/male) 

 

Mr. B.N.M.Perera 

(Physical Education Instructor) 

 

Wrestling (male) 

Elle (female/male) 

Weight Lifting (female/male) 
 

 

Mr. L.A.D.Priyadarshana 

(Physical Education 

Instructor) 

 

Tennis (female/male) 

Baseball (male) 

Hockey (female/male) 

 

Mrs.E.D.Priyadarshani 
(Physical Education Instructor) 

 

Karate (female/male)   

Taekwondo(female/male) 

Aeorobics 

Zumba  

 

Mrs.N. Karunarathne        Mr. N.L. Wickramadara 

(Physical Education Instructor)         (GYM Instructor) 

 

Badminton (female/male) 

Table Tennis(female/male) 

  

 

 

The Physical Education Department organizes the following tournaments. 

 

1. Inter Faculty Novices/ Fresher’s Tournaments 

2. Inter faculty meets 

3. Invitational & Friendly tournaments 

Strength training  
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4. Inter University Tournaments 

5. Staff Tournaments 

 

In addition, we organize friendly matches with outside teams inter university championships and 

Combined university Team games. Also our students participate in the Combined University 

Sport Teams selected from all universities, National Championship, World University Games 

and Championships. 

The Inter University Sports Festival organized by a few universities is held every year and the 

Mini Olympics is held every three years, organized by a single university. 

 

Below are the events which we carried out in 2021. 

 

 International Day of University Sports was organized by Sri Lanka University Sports 

association with collaboration of on University of Sri Jayewardenepura at New 

Auditorium   
 

 University of Sri Jayewardenepura also participated on this invitation and other 

Tournaments. 
 

 National Basketball Combine University Trail 2021 

 Inter University Online Chess  Championship  

 National Online Karate Katha  Championship - 2021 

 National Karate  Championship - 2021 

 Inter University Online Karate Katha Championship - 2021 

 Invitational 7s Footbal Tournament 

 Inter University Online Taekwondo Poomsae Championship - 2021 

 

Colours Award 

At the end of each year. A Colours Award Ceremony will be organized by the Physical Education 

Department and the Sports Council. Sportsmen and Sportswomen who reached the required 

standard under the approved criteria will be awarded Colours with the approval of the Advisory 

Board. The criteria for these awards and further details can be obtained from the Physical 

Education Department. In addition, the sportsmen and women who perform well at the Inter 

University   tournaments will be given the Merit Award of Sri Lanka Universities Sports 

Association.  

 

Sports Facilities 

The Department of Physical Education, the governing body of sports, of the prestigious 

University of Sri Jayewardenepura possesses unique sporting facilities. 

 

Out-door Volleyball Courts 

The University outdoor volleyball courts are located near the swimming pool have 

two clay based courts. These are available for university students and staff members.  
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Basketball Court 

The Outdoor basketball court is situated next to the volleyball courts and is mainly 

a hard court made of tar. These are available for university students and staff 

members. 

 

Tennis Courts 

Tennis courts are clay surfaced and well maintained. These are available for 

university students, staff members, and for outsiders as well. 

 

Swimming Pool Complex & New Office Area  

The Swimming pool is a 50m standard size & has 10 lanes. Its shallow end is 1.5 m 

in depth and at the deep end, the depth is 5.5 m. The swimming pool has an adjacent 

two storied- building which consists of changing rooms and wash-rooms for 

swimmers. The pool is available for university students, staff members, and for 

outsiders as well upon their request. 

 

Cricket Ground 

The University cricket pitch is mainly a grass surfaced 65m full length area. This well 

maintained ground has one matting pitch & two clay pitches. The ground has an 

adjacent one storied- pavilion & changing rooms with attached wash-rooms for 

players & referees. This ground is located in a very picturesque environment. The 

pitch hosts Inter University matches, University intra-mural competitions, and as well 

as other community club tournaments.  

CAREER GUIDANCE UNIT 

 

The Career Guidance Unit has successfully conducted the following tasks from 1st January to 

15th December 2021 with the leadership and the guidance given by the Director, Prof. Sudath M. 

Amarasena, Career Advisers Sameera Jayawardane, and Chathurangani Tennakoon in 

collaboration with Career Skills Development Society and the Gavel club to develop the 

employability and the capability of the undergraduates. The following activities were conducted 

during this year.  

 

Main Activities conducted by CGU throughout the year  

Career Counselling sessions  

Career counseling sessions were conducted over the phone and zoom platform according to the 

request made by the students due to the Covid 19 pandemic and students were educated about 

the services provided by the Career Guidance Unit in the faculty wise orientation programs 

conducted for newly enrolled students. Apart from that, students were guided to prepare their 

CVs and to prepare for interviews by career advisers according to the students’ requests. 
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Career Consultancy Service through CGU website 

Career consultancy service was introduced by CGU through its’ website to help undergraduates 

to solve their career-related issues through the zoom platform.  Google form was introduced to 

prior registration to obtain this service. Students can find new job opportunities and internship 

opportunities through this website.    

 

Education Portal  

An education portal was developed including higher education opportunities in Sri Lanka. 

Mainly three areas were covered in this portal such as state universities, private and semi 

government universities and vocational institutions. This will guide the students to the higher 

educational opportunities which are available for the students who have studied up to O/L 

examination. Most of the students face many difficulties when they are going to select the ideal 

subject stream for their A/L examination after completing the O/L examination successfully. 

This portal is a good solution for these students to plan their future.  

 

Career Orientation Course Unit (Credit / Non- Credit) 

 

CGU conducted 5-course units in collocation with the Faculty of Applied Sciences, Faculty of 

Technology, Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences, and Faculty of Allied Health Sciences.  

 

1. Career Skills Development Course Unit, 3rd Year, Semester 01 

Genetics and Molecular Biology Unit, Faculty of Applied Sciences 

2. Course module on Career Development, 3rd Year, Semester 01 

Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences 

 

3. Career Orientation Course Unit, 1st year- 2nd Semester / 3rd year- 2nd Semester 

Sports Sciences Degree Program, Faculty of Applied Sciences 

4. Career Development for a Technology Graduate, 3rd year- 2nd Semester 

Faculty of Technology 

 
5. Career Guidance Course Unit (non-credit programme) for Department of Nursing & 

Midwifery - Faculty of Allied Health Sciences  
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The club activities conducted monthly throughout the year are given below in detail. 

 

Month Event Topic Resource Person 

Janurary 

Virtual workshop 

series (phase III) 

Enlighten your foreign 

career & higher studies 

with IELTS 

Mrs.Chintha Ellawala, the 

former head of the English 

language teaching unit, 

University of Peradeniya 

Virtual workshop 

series (phase III) 

Bringing purpose into 

action 

Ms. Keshavi Puswewala the 

HR business partner-corporate 

finance and R&D brand lead at 

Unilever Sri Lanka Ltd. 

February 

Virtual workshop 

series (phase III) 

INVEST IN YOUR 

FUTURE - Do you 

have a plan in place to 

succeed? 

Ms.Harini Indiketiya, learning 

and organization development 

manager at Fonterra 

SHADOW OF 

SUCCESS 

(PHASE 07) 

success in the co-

operate world through 

experience 

Ms. Kasturi Chellaraja, the 

present CEO of Hemas 

Holdings PLC as the guest 

speaker 

CV writing 

workshop  

A webinar on CV 

writing  

Organized by Unilever Sparks 

Ambassadors of our university 

Workshop 

CAREER 

DEVELOPMENT 

WORKSHOP 2021 

Dr. (ENG) Ranil Sugathadasa 

,Mr. Kumara Galhenage ,Mrs. 

Chintha Ellawela 

Virtual Workshop 

Series (Phase 3)  

“Survive, Adapt and 

Grow’’- Building 

Resilience during 

Uncertain Times 

Mrs. Chalini Guneratne 

Virtual Workshop 

Series (Phase 3)  “Ahasin Eha’’ 

Hosted by a well-known artist, 

a veteran songwriter, Mr. Nilar 

N Kasim  

WORD SLINGER 

- Article Writing 

Competition 

“Creativity Driven 

Magical Pen”  
  

March How to select 

Subjects for A/L  

 Awareness programs 

for O/L students  
Mr. Sameera Jayawardane  

Virtual Workshop 

Series (Phase 3)  

“Career in Sales & 

Marketing’’ 

Mr.Mustafa Turra, General 

Manager, and Asian Paints 

Lanka 

April 

Virtual workshop 

on Entrepreneurial 

Ventures 

Touch the Peak' 

Annual Job Fair & 

Mr.Anushka Gunasinghe and 

Mr.Ravin Abesundera 
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Entrepreneurial 

Ventures 2021. 

May 

CSR projects 

The ‘Sathkara’ 

program is one of the 

CSR projects 

organized by the 

CSDS 

Dr. J.S.Fernando, Senior 

Lecturer, Department of 

Business Economics, Faculty 

of Management Studies and 

Commerce,  

CSR projects 

“Arunella” is one of 

the main CSR projects 

organized by the 

Career Skills 

Development Society 

of the University of 

Sri Jayewardenepura 

  

Patibhana 

Sadaham 

Kathikawath 

It was held under the 

theme ''Power of 

Mind''  

Rev. Udairiyagama 

Dhammajeewa Maha Thero 

June 

 “6 Kanisama”  

Empowering your 

creativity to improve 

yourself and your 

future journey 

Mr. Mahinda Prasad 

Masimbula  

Thunmansala 

'Thunmansala' is an 

entertaining virtual 

program series  

Mr. Somarathne Dissanayake 

July 

Mindfulness 

Programme 

Sith Dahana 

Ven. Athurugiriye 

Dhammavihari there, the Chief 

Instructor of Mindful School 

Kaduwela 

CV Writing 

Workshop  

“Touch the Peak” 

Annual Job Fair 

(Online) – FEO 

Episode 2021 

by Mr.Sadharu Fernando, the 

senior executive of strategic 

communications at MAS 

Holdings (Pvt) Ltd. Bodyline 

(Pvt) Ltd 

Interview Facing 

Workshop  

“Touch the Peak” 

Annual Job Fair 

(Online) – FEO 

Episode 2022 

Ms.Dinusha Jayamanne, the 

General Manager of Human 

Resources, Brandix Apparel 

Solutions 

Personal 

Grooming 

Workshop 

  “Touch the Peak” 

Annual Job Fair 

(Online) – FEO 

Episode 2021 

Ms.Keshavi Puswewala, the 

HR business partner of 

Unilever, Sri Lanka 

Awareness 

Programme 
Green Hopes  

prof. Hemanthi Ranasinghe, 

Senior Professor of the 

Department of Forestry and 

Environmental Sciences at the 

University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura.  

Speak Station 2021 
“Your Voice Matters”  

Ms. Sharon Mascarenhas  
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August 

JESA Workshop 

series 

“Corporate view of 

employability skills 

and JESA”.  

Ms.Nirupa Wijeratne who is 

the HR country Head of GSK 

Sri Lanka and Ms.Rangana 

Rathnagoda who is a customer 

finance manager in Unilever 

JESA Workshop 

series 

“How to write a 

business proposal and 

create the perfect 

business pitch 

Mr. Sandharu Fernando, the 

Senior Executive, Strategic 

Communications in MAS 

holdings (Pvt)Ltd. 

JESA Workshop 

series 
The introductory 

workshop for the CSR 

award  

Dr. Janaka Fernando, the 

Senior lecturer in the 

Department of Business 

Economics at the University of 

Jayewardenepura. 

September  

Virtual Seminar 

Series: 

“Enriching O/L 

students’ knowledge 

with seminar series to 

achieve the highest 

results through their 

future examinations”. 

Mr. Danushka Lakmal, Mr. 

Thilina Peris, Mr. Banuka 

Ekanayake & Sakya Academy 

October  Career Guidance 

Course Unit for 

Department of 

Nursing & 

Midwifery - 

Faculty of Allied 

Health Sciences  

Developing a 

curriculum vitae 

,Writing official letters 

,Conducting meetings 

,Portfolio 

Development  

Sameera Jayawardane 

,Chaturangani Tennakoon , 

Sathi Pasala 

"Nirawul manasakin 

Suwabara 

Diwiyakata",  

Mr. Manoj Jayasuriya,  

Virtual Session  “ආවර්ජනා” Mr. Ravi Roister  

Sith Dahana     
“Mindfulness” 

Programme 
Mr. Duleen  Dharmaratne  

November 

Infinitum 

Celebration of the 10th 

anniversary of the 

Gavel Club of the 

University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura    

Perawadana 

 'Perawadana' the 

entertaining virtual 

program series was 

held successfully 

through zoom 

Mr. Chulananda Samaranayake 
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CENTRE FOR IT SERVICES (CITS) 

 

The Centre for IT Services (CITS) is the core entity of the University that manages the Campus-

wide IT Infrastructure, Internet & Email facilities, Server Administration and maintains e-

Services & Applications while providing IT Technical Support and Solutions for university 

students and staff. Apart from these, CITS develops and maintains the university websites and is 

also fortified with a fully equipped media team. 

 

Mr. Harsha Munasinghe led the CITS as the Information Systems Manager and Mr. Vajira 

Premadasa & Mr. Nethsiri Jayaweera served as Computer Instructors. Mr. Suresh Nanayakkara 

was the Assistant Network Manager. Ms. Ashela Nilmini was recruited as the Programmer cum 

System Analyst. Mr. Ranuka Edirisuriya served as Computer Programmer with newly recruited 

four new Computer Programmers. Three new ICT Technical Officers replaced the previous three 

Technical Officers. Ms. H.M.M.S. Nisansala was the Management Assistant and Mr. Bandara 

Yapa contributed as Lab Attendant. Works Aid Mr. Shantha Kumara and several temporary 

employees served at the CITS, Media Centre and Web Team to accomplish the tasks throughout 

the year.  

 

The core services provided by the Centre for IT Services are as follows. 

 Managing the University E-Mail Service 

 Managing and Providing the Internet Facility 

 Server Administration and maintenance of e-Services & Applications  

 Designing & Developing Management Information Systems 

 Software Development and e-Solutions 

 Maintain the Private Cloud System   

 Development and Maintenance of the Fiber Optic Backbone  

 Designing & Implementing Local Area Networks  

 Development and Maintenance of the Wi-Fi Network  

 Development and Maintenance of the University Web Sites  

 Providing Digital Media Coverage and Media Productions  

 Overseeing the Installation, Operation and Maintenance of the Intercom System 

 Administrating the Installation, Operation and Maintenance of the VoIP System 

 Troubleshooting and Maintenance of ICT Equipment 

 Installation of Software and Providing Security Software  

 Preparing Specifications and Technical Evaluations  

 Conducting Special Training Programmes for University Staff  

 Assisting the University Staff for their ICT Requirements  

 Providing Advisory Services and Technical Support for Students 
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LIBRARY 

 

Under the direction of the Librarian, Dr. (Mrs.) Nayana Wijayasundara, 01 Deputy Librarian, 03 

Senior Assistant Librarians (Gr. I), 03 Senior Assistant Librarians (Gr. II) , 04 Assistant 

Librarians, 01 Assistant Registrar/Library Services, 01 Assistant Network Manager, 01 

Temporary Demonstrator  and 53 non-academic staff were engaged  in duties in the Library in 

the year 2021. 

During the year, 434 book titles (including 793 copies) were purchased at a cost of Rs. 5.99M 

from the annual allocation. Further 200 book titles (including 999 copies) were purchased 

through the STHRD (Science and Technology Human Resource Development) project by the 

Faculty of Engineering to the Engineering faculty library. Eleven foreign and local periodical 

titles both in electronic and print format were purchased at a cost of Rs. 0.64M. Two full-text 

electronic databases; JSTOR (at a cost of Rs. 1.28M) and Research4life (at a cost of Rs. 0.294M) 

and a citation database Scopus (at a cost of Rs. 3.81M) and MacPro Video.com at a cost of Rs. 

28,532.95 were purchased. Additionally, CrossRef DOI registration facility was purchased at a 

cost of Rs. 78,712.37. Two Palm-leaf manuscripts were purchased at a cost of Rs. 200,000. Two 

hundred and twenty two (222) book titles (valued at Rs. 1116721.85), 195 foreign and local 

periodical titles (valued at Rs. 55,295.00) were received as donations. In addition, access to 04 

other electronic databases; Emerald, Taylor & Francis, Oxford Journals, Oxford Medicine Online 

including Medical Handbooks Collection was provided to patrons through the UGC consortium, 

CONSAL. Also, Document Delivery Service through British Library was provided through 

CONSAL for the readers. Further, access to EBSCO database was provided by the AHEAD 

project of the Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce. 

 

During the year 2021, 772 book titles and 2211 copies were processed by the Processing Division 

and faculty libraries. The amount consisted of 40 copies to Ceylon Room (CR), 122 copies to 

Permanent Reference (PR), 342 copies to Scheduled Reference (SR) and 1707 copies to Lending 

(L) books. 61 Palm-leaf manuscripts were accessioned after conservation by the end of 2021.  

 

About 1308 readers were registered including Academic Staff (17), Non-academic staff (12), 

Undergraduate students (1179) and Diploma and Postgraduate students (50) during the year 

2021. With that, the total number of registered users was 18,356. 
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The rate of fulfillment of inter-library loan requests was 91.7%. Laptop lending service was used 

by 64 users in 2021.  The library had 30 laptop computers allocated for this service. 14 ISBN 

numbers and 09 ISSN numbers were issued as per the request for university publications. 

Total number of entries in the Scholar Bank (Digital Repository) was 8324, and the database of 

newspaper articles consisted of 3540 selected newspaper articles by the end of 2021. 213 palm 

leaf manuscripts were entered into the digital repository during the year. Twenty three workshops 

were conducted by the staff of the library for the academics and students in order to enhance 

awareness of information resources and information literacy skills.  

 

During the year 2021, 01 Assistant Librarian completed Masters in Library and Information 

Science and 02 staff members completed Bachelor’s Degree. One PhD, two Master’s Degrees, 

one Bachelor’s Degrees and six Diplomas were carried out by the library staff. 

EXTERNAL DEGREE & EXTENSION COURSES UNIT 

 

External Examinations Division of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura established in 1979 

with the commencement of the External Degree Programme in Bachelor of Commerce. 

Subsequently Bachelor of Arts General External Degree Programme was commenced. In 1997 

the General External Degree programmes of B.Sc Business Administration and Public 

Administration were also introduced. The B.A General External Degree and the B.Sc Business 

Administration General External Degree Programmes have become very popular among the 

students.  

According to the Commission Circular No 932 dated 15th October 2010 issued by the University 

Grants Commission, the External Examinations unit has been structurally changed as External 

Degrees & Extension Courses Unit. 

The Composition of the Management Committee of the External Degrees & Extension Courses 

Unit can be described as follows. 

i. Vice Chancellor (Chairman) 

ii. Nominee from the UGC 

iii. Two members appointed by the Council from among the UGC appointed members 

iv. Deans of Faculties (Deans of Faculties of Humanities & Social Sciences and 

Management Studies & Commerce)  

v. Members of Boards of Study 

vi. Registrar 

vii. Bursar 

viii.    Director of External Degrees and Extension Courses Unit 
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ix. Senior Assistant Registrar External Degrees and Extension Courses Unit 

x. Senior Assistant Bursar External Degrees and Extension Courses Unit 

 

The External Degrees & Extension Courses Unit introduced following degree programmes under 

the new syllabus from year 2014.  

Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences 

 Bachelor of Humanities and Social Sciences (General) External Degree  

 Bachelor of Arts in English (General) External Degree 

 Bachelor of Social Sciences (General) External Degree in Environmental & 

Development  Studies 

 

Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce 

 

 B.Sc Business Administration (General) External Degree 

 B.Sc Management (Public) General (External) Degree 

 Bachelor of Commerce (General) External Degree 

 B.Sc Business Studies (General) External Degree 

 

New Registrations for the Academic year 2020: 

 

Bachelor of Arts (General) External Degree                                                              4001 

Bachelor of Arts in English (General) External Degree      268 

Bachelor of Social Sciences (General) External Degree in  

Environmental & Development Studies        245 

B.Sc Management (Public) General (External) Degree    1524 

Bachelor of Commerce (General) External Degree     1318 

            B.Sc Business Studies (General) External Degree                                                      223 

            

 Total number of students who have registered for 2021                                        =      7579.  
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The number of students’ feedback Seminars and Examinations conducted for each degree 

program during the year 2021 as follows. 

 

Degree Program Number of Seminars
Number of 

Examinations

2 2

2017 Batch- Part II, 2014 Batch- Part III

2015 Batch – Part III 2018 Batch- Part I

3 1

2019 Batch - Part I Part Ι Repeat (Old)

2018/2019 Batches -  Part II

2020 Batch - Part I

5

2017 Batch – Part II

2017 Batch – Part III

2018 Batch – Part II

2020 Batch – Part I

2018/2019 Batches -  Part II

6 1

2017 Batch – Part III,

2018 Batch – Part III 2017 Part ΙΙΙ

2018 Batch – Part II,

2019 Batch – Part I,  

2019 Batch – Part II

2020 Batch – Part I

4 1

2020 Batch – Part I 2019 Batch 

2019 Batch – Part II

2018 Batch – Part II

2018 Batch  –  Part III

5 2

2020 Batch – Part I Sinhala 

2020 Batch – Part I English 2018 (2014/2015) 

2019 Batch – Part II 2017 (2014/2015) 

2018 Batch – Part II

2018 Batch – Part III

2 2

2017 Batch – Part III 2016/2017  – Part I

Part I seminars 2016/2017 – Part II

4 1

2020 Batch – Year  I Semester 

2020 Batch – Year I Semester 2020 Batch – Year  I 

2020 Batch – Year  I Semester 

2020 Batch – Year I Semester 

Bachelor of Commerce (General) 

External Degree

B.Sc Business Administration 

(General) External Degree

B.Sc Business Studies (General) 

External Degree

Bachelor of Humanities and Social 

Sciences (General) External 

Degree

Bachelor of Arts (General) 

External Degree (Old syllabus) 

Bachelor of Arts in English 

(General) External Degree
-

Bachelor of Social Sciences 

(General) External Degree in 

Environmental & Development 

Studies

B.Sc Management (Public) 

General (External) Degree
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Online seminars commenced from March 2020 due to the Covid pandemic situation in the 

country. 

 

A Quality Assurance Cell was established by the Management Committee of the External Degrees 

and Extension Courses Unit to address to following discipline. 
 

 Governance and Management 

 Program Design and Organization, Course Design and Organization. 

 Infrastructure and Learning Resources, Learner Support and Progression. 

 Evaluation, Learner Assessment and Awards 

 

 

Committee Meetings of EDECU were conducted in year 2021 as follows. 

 

Management Committee Meetings                                                           -11 

Study Board of Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences                    - 10 

Study Board of Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce             -10 

 

 UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTRE 

 

The Medical Centre of the University takes care of the medical problems of the University 

community. These include seeing patients on an outpatient basis, treating and referring for further 

care. Further, the medical center, organized and carried out vaccination programs against Covid 

19 for staff and students. The center staff quickly adopted to the new normal and is involved in 

taking swabs for RAT. 

PHI staff is carrying out Anti Dengue, Anti Rabies campaign, pest control and food quality 

control in the university. 

In December 2021, the center inaugurated the installation of Hospital Health Information 

Management System which is a product of Information and Communication Technology Sri 

Lanka (ICTA). Now the center is equipped with fully fledged electronic health record service 

ranging from patients registration, appointments and drug dispensing. This is the first University 

Medical center to be digitalized. 

During the year 2021 Dr.(Mrs.) S.De.Silva served as the Medical Officer Incharge. Dr.(Mrs.) 

D.M.L.R.H.Perera served as a Medical Officer and Dr. D.P.D.Asalage served as Dental Surgeon. 

Dr.K.G.N.Senevirathne, Dr.K.A.M.Handakmbura and Dr.S.M.D.G.S.Perera served as Locum 

Medical Officers. 
 

No. of General 

Medical patients  

PCR testing RAT testing No of 

prescriptions 

sent to pharmacy 

No. of Dental 

patients 

1576 443 177 1438 250 
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Vaccination programmes against Covid 19 conducted during year2021 

Date Category Dose 
USJ 

Staff/Family 

USJ 

Students 

Other 

Students 
Others Total 

20th May 2021 Over 30 1st  722 27   275 1024 

22nd Jun 2021 Over 30 2nd 684 24   258 966 

11th to 15th  Oct 

2021 

Below 

30 
1st 64 211 134 2 411 

12th to 15th Nov 

2021 

Below 

30 
2nd 46 215 7   268 

6th  and 7th  Jan 

2022 
Over 30 3rd 507 5   55 567 

     Grand Total 3236 

 

RESEARCH COUNCIL 

 

INTRODUCTION 

The Research Council of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura (RC-USJ) was established in 

2016 to facilitate high-quality research, promote the dissemination of knowledge generated 

nationally and internationally, and contribute significantly to national development. The 

activities of the RC-USJ are aimed at encouraging the academics, executive officers and students 

of the University to engage in high-quality research. RC-USJ aims to achieve this by facilitating 

the development of infrastructure, making the funds available for research, facilitating the 

dissemination of knowledge and encouraging national and international collaboration, which will 

induce the development of a research culture in the University. RC-USJ also aims at promoting 

researchers through recognizing and rewarding their work by research award system. 

 

MISSION 

Foster research and development through widening the access to funds and infrastructure by 

facilitation and creation of an enabling atmosphere to achieve excellence and successful research 

and development based advancements to uplift the quality of the environmental, social, economic 

bases, while nurturing sustainable partnerships with local and international stakeholder 

institutions by the research community at USJ for the well-being of the present and future 

generations. 
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OBJECTIVES 

Promote research that has national and international significance catering to national and global 

requirements  

1. Cultivate a conducive research culture in the university 

2. Establish self-sustainable centres of excellence in research 

3. Facilitate researchers to collaborate and perform quality research 

4. Enhance the skills of the researchers 

5. Smoothen the research process  

6. Facilitate researchers in disseminating their knowledge nationally and internationally  

7. Promote industry links and facilitate research consultancies  

8. Promote high-quality student research  

9. Improve the effectiveness of research operations at RC-USJ member institutions  

10. Establish and maintain liaison with other organizations concerned with research and its 

administration 

 

OFFICIALS  

  

 Executive Chairman : Vice Chancellor  

 Co-Chairpersons : Snr. Prof. Pathmalal Manage 

Prof. Roshan Ajward   

 General Secretary : Dr. Sujeewa Hettiarachchi 

   

 Advisory Board (The Deans of the Faculties)   

Prof. Shirantha Heenkenda     - Dean, Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences 

Prof. S M C U P Subasinghe  - Dean, Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Prof. P D Nimal  - Dean, Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce 

Prof. Aloka Pathirana   - Dean, Faculty of Medical Sciences 

Snr. Prof. M M Pathmalal  - Dean, Faculty of Graduate Studies 

Dr. Nilmini Liyanage   - Dean (Acting), Faculty of Technology 

Dr. K M C Konthasinghe  - Dean, Faculty of Engineering 

Prof. D M S Fernando  - Dean (Acting), Faculty of Allied Health Sciences 

Prof. Surangi Yasawardene    - Dean, Faculty of Dental Sciences 
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 Faculty Representatives 

Dr. Varuni Tennakoon   - Representative, Faculty of Medical Sciences 

Snr. Prof. R L S Fernando  - Representative, Faculty of Management Studies &      

Commerce 

Prof. K P L Chandrasena  - Representative, Faculty of Management Studies &   

Commerce  

Prof. T S M Amarasena - Representative, Faculty of Management Studies & 

Commerce  

Prof. Charmalie Nahallage - Representative, Faculty of Humanities & Social 

Sciences 

Rev. (Prof.) Pinnawala Sangasumana - Representative, Faculty of Humanities & 

Social Sciences 

Snr. Prof. B G D N K De Silva - Representative, Faculty of Applied Sciences 

Dr. Akila Subasinghe             - Representative, Faculty of Engineering  

Dr. U K Wijenayake  - Representative, Faculty of Engineering  

Dr. S D Udayanga  - Representative, Faculty of Technology 

Dr. Lasanthi Jayathunga - Representative, Faculty of Technology  

Dr. N R Samaranayake - Representative, Faculty of Allied Health Sciences 

Prof. Hiran Amarasekara        - Head/ University web Team 

Prof. S T W S Yapa  - Director, Staff Development 

Snr. Prof. P P M Jayaweera - On Invitation 

Snr. Prof. H H D N P Opatha - On Invitation 

Snr. Prof. K D Gunawardena - On Invitation 

Prof. Meththika Vithanage - On Invitation 

Dr. Vikum Premalal  - On Invitation 

Dr. Dilantha Gunawardena     - On Invitation 

Dr. A K L Jayawardena          - On Invitation/PIM  

 

 Director/ PIM – Dr. W G S Kelum 

 Registrar - Mr. A B Weliwita 

 Acting Librarian – Dr. G D M N Samaradiwakara 

 Bursar – Mrs. K T C Priyangan 
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UNIVERSITY RESEARCH GRANTS 

 

No. of Research Grants Awarded during the Year 2015 - 2021 

 

 

Funds allocated for the Research Grants during the Year 2015 - 2021 

           (Rs. Million) 

Faculty/Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2021 

Humanities and Social Sciences 05 10 09 12 09 05 

Applied Sciences 16 31 32 36 27 38 

Management Studies and Commerce 13 04 10 07 08 11 

Medical Sciences 21 33 26 19 17 11 

Technology _ _ 06 01 07 19 

Engineering _ _ 01 _ 01 02 

Allied Health Sciences _ _ _ _ 04 06 

Library _ _ _ _ 01 _ 

Total 55 78 84 75 74 93 

 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2021 

Humanities and Social Sciences 7.24 19.51 13.67 17.37 15.42 8.96 

Applied Sciences 38.07 63.22 78.29 85.14 60.69 89.56 

Management Studies and Commerce 8.92 3.23 9.06 3.33 9.28 10.34 

Medical Sciences 24.95 45.53 40.63 47.03 35.21 25.53 

Technology _ _ 19.21 1.49 19.18 47.75 

Engineering _ _ 2.14 _ 2.46 5.9 

Allied Health Sciences _ _ _ _ 7.41 9.36 

Library _ _ _ _ 0.53 _ 

Total 69.18 131.49 163 154.35 150.18 197.79 
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REIMBERASEMENT OF OPEN ACCESS AND PUBLICATION FEES (2016-2021) 
 

 

 

 

 

Language Editing Fees (2016-2021) 
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PUBLICATIONS DONE BY UNIVERSITY ACADEMIC STAFF MEMBERS WHO 

HAVE APPLIED FOR RESEARCH AWARDS (2015-2020)  

 

 

  
Publications 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

 

2020 

1 
An Abstract Published in local/foreign 

Conference proceedings or symposium 
400 706 791 942 801 

 

50 

2 
A full paper published in local foreign 

conference proceedings or symposia 
- 50 76 118 96 

 

62 

3 A full paper published in University journal - - 8 41 - 
 

- 

4 Full articles published in non-refereed journals 123 - - - - - 

5 Articles published in a refereed journal 18 124 99 149 
289 

 

209 6 Articles published in any indexed journal - 173 174 226 

7 

A Full paper published in indexed journals (SCI 

expanded, SSCI, Arts and Humanities Citation 

Index, Elsevier Scopus, Emerald Insight, Cabell's 

International) 

141 91 122 174 173 

 

 

238 

Total 682 1144 1270 1650 1359 559 

(Source: Research Awards – University of Sri Jayewardenepura) 

 

RESEARCH CENTRES 

Twenty three Research Centres are currently operated under the Research Council. These 

centres have been founded within the respective faculties by committed and enthusiastic 

academics with strong research backgrounds. With the establishment of the RC-USJP, all 

such centres have been brought under its purview, creating a common research and 

development innovation platform for the convergence and cooperation.The Research Centres 

are as follows: 

 

 Research Centre Director 

1 Centre for Water Quality and Algae Research Snr. Prof. M M  Pathmalal 

2 Centre for Kidney Research (CKD – Research) Prof. P P R Perera 

3 Centre for Dengue Research (CDR) Prof. G N Malavige 
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4 
Interdisciplinary Centre for Innovation in 

Biotechnology and Neuro Science 
Dr. M R P H Liyanage 

5 Centre for Multidisciplinary Research Dr.H A G.Sujeewa 

6 Centre for Management Studies and Commerce Prof. K P L Chandralal 

7 Centre for Cancer Research (CCR) Dr. K L M D Seneviwicrama 

8 
Centre for Advanced Materials Research 

(NANOTECHNOLOGY) 
Dr. T N B Etampawala 

9 Centre for Biotechnology Snr. Prof. B G D N K De Silva 

10 Center for Forestry and Environment   Prof. S M C U P Subasinghe 

11 
Innovation centre for Robotics and Intelligent 

system 
Dr. P R S de Silva 

12 Apple Research and Development Centre Prof. R G N Meegama 

13 
National Centre for Primary Care and Allergy 

Research 
Dr. J M K C Jeewandara 

14 Centre for Real Estate Studies (CRES-EMV) Prof. K G P K weerakoon 

15 Research Centre for Governance and Public Policy Snr. Prof. R L S Fernando 

16 
Plant Materials and Herbal Products Research 

Centre 
Dr. D H H Munasinghe 

17 Centre for Ecosphere Resilience Research  Prof. M S Vithanage 

18 
Non Communicable Diseases Research Centre 

(NCDRC) 
Dr. B C V Senarathne 

19 
Centre for Mindfulness-based Research and 

Practices 
Dr. Sanath Mahavithanage 

20 Centre for Advanced Forensic Research   Dr. Sanjaya Hulathduwa 

21 
Centre for Marine Science and Technology 

(CMST)  
 Prof.. R R M K P Ranatunga 

22 
Centre for Scientific Computing and Advanced 

Drug Discovery 
Dr. R S Jayakody 

23 Centre for Nanocomposite Research  Prof. N M S Sirimuthu 
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RESEARCH AWARDS 2020 

List of Awards  

Category Awards 

1 An abstract published in local/foreign conference proceedings or symposium 

(only the applicants in the grades of lecturer-probationary and lecturer could 

apply) 

2 A full paper published in local/foreign conference proceedings  

3 A full paper published in a refereed/any indexed journal (Any indexing service 

other than listed in category 4 below) 

4 A full paper published in Indexed Journals. * Recognized Index Journals are 

listed at http://www.isinet.com/journals under: 

a. Science Citation Indexed Expanded (™) (Web of Science) 

b. Social Sciences Citation Index® (Web of Science) 

c. Arts and Humanities Citation Index (Web of Science) 

d. Elsevier SCOPUS 

e. Emerald Insight 

f. Cabell’s International 

5 Researchers having the highest h-index for the year  

 To be considered for the category 5 awards the researcher should 

have an h index of 5 or more 

 Three awards per each faculty will be awarded 

 1st  ,2nd   and 3rd   places will be awarded once in five years for the 

same candidate  with effect from 2016 

6 Researchers having published 5 or more full papers in recognized indexed 

journals (Listed under section 4 above). Must cite University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura as the institutional affiliation. 

7 Early Career Researcher award 

 h-index should be 5 or more than 5 

 Researcher should be in Senior Lecturer Grade II 

 Researcher has to be less than 40 years by the deadline for the Research 

Award Applications 

 First author of the published articles 

 University of Sri Jayewardenepura should be the corresponding author’s 

affiliation and the University’s email address should be on the research 

article 

 Award will be given to the candidate who has the highest cumulative 

impact factor for the full papers published in Index 

Journals(SCI/SSCI/AHCI/Elsevier SCOPUS/ Emerald Insight/ Cabell’s 

International) 
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9 Vice Chancellor’s Award (Follow CVCD guidelines) (Two awards will be 

awarded based on the Science stream and the Social sciences and humanities 

stream using the criteria of the respective CVCD guidelines) 

 Applicants has to be in permanent service at University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura for last five years 

 No faculty member may receive the award more than once every five 

years. 

10 Researchers who have obtained external research grants 

 

*All the Publications should have the name of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura as the 

author’s Institutional Affiliatio 
 

World Bank funded accelerating higher education 

expansion and development (ahead) operation 

 
 

1. Introduction: 

  
The development of the higher education sector is of central importance to enable Sri Lanka to 

make the transition from a Lower-Middle Income Country (LMIC) to an Upper Middle-Income 

Country (UMIC). Recognizing this, the Government of Sri Lanka (GoSL) and the World Bank 

have agreed to support the higher education sector through a Bank funded Accelerating Higher 

Education Expansion and Development (AHEAD) operation. 

 

Total grant was 100 million USD sponsored through the two main financing sources: 67 million 

USD from International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) and 33 million 

USD from International Development Association (IDA). The total estimated project period 

was six years.  

 

2. Beneficiaries: 
 

The main and direct beneficiaries of AHEAD operations are students (around 600,000), 

academics (around 5000), managers, and technical staff members of the higher education 

sector. They are benefited from AHEAD over its operation life span and also beyond it. There 

will also be many indirect beneficiaries from AHEAD.  

 

3. Implementation: 

 
The implementing agency of AHEAD is the Ministry of Education (MoHE).  The national level 

coordination is done by the University Grants Commission (UGC) and Sri Lanka Institute of 

Advanced Technological Education (SLIATE) Advanced Technological Institutes (ATIs.  The 

Operations Monitoring and Support Team (OMST) coordinates and supports all AHEAD 

activities between the MoHE, UGC, and all fifteen (15) Universities. The university level 
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coordinating, monitoring, implementing and facilitating are done by the Operations Technical 

Secretariat (OTS) of each university.   

 

 

4. Operations Technical Secretariat (OTS): 
 

The task of the OTS is to organize regular capacity-building activities for the relevant staff of 

the University, including procurement, financial management, and contract management, 

throughout the program implementation, with the support of the Operation and Monitoring 

Support Team (OMST). 

 

The OTS Office of University of Sri Jayewardenepura (USJP) is operated under the 

Director/OTS, Prof. Harendra Kariyawasam, Head of the Department/Accounting, Faculty of 

Management Studies and Commerce. Ms. M.N.Suraweera as Deputy Director/Procurement, 

Ms. K.T.C.Priyangani as Deputy Director/Finance, Mr. O.A.W.Karunarathne as Deputy 

Director/ Engineering, Ms. R.M. Gunaratna as Senior Administrative Officer, Ms. 

W.D.S.S.Premathileke as Secretary and Ms. K.A.D.S.T.Kuruppuarachchi, Ms.K.A.D.Nipuni 

Rangika, Ms. S.D. Ganesha Madhushani and Ms.I.K.M.I.A.K Ilangasinghe as Technical 

Assistants continues to work at the OTS Office, to support the AHEAD activities.  Mr. 

R.K.R.Chathuranga, Technical Officer (Civil) works under the OTS Office, to supervise the 

Construction of Pathology Building.  

 

 

5. Organizational Framework of OTS: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



University of Sri Jayewardenepura 121 Annual Report 2021 
 

6. Three Result Areas: 

 

The three Results Areas the AHEAD Operation will focus on the following.  

 

(a) Increasing enrollment in higher education with special emphasis on study  

programs required for an aspiring upper middle-income economy  

(b) Broadening and deepening modern teaching and learning approaches  

that combine academic excellence with high quality socio emotional skills  

(c) Promoting a vibrant research and innovation culture that can support  

economic development, especially the growth of higher value industries  

and services.  

 

6.1  Result Area 1 
        (Increasing Enrolment in Higher Education in Priority Disciplines for Economic 

        Development) 

The objective of Results Area 1 is to increase enrolment in higher education 

programs of strategic importance for economic development. The GoSL will 

promote the expansion of enrolment in state universities and ATIs, with a focus on 

Sciences, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics (STEM) degree programs. 

It will take place both in existing and new STEM faculties and ATIs. The strategy 

will promote the use of teaching-learning methods based on open educational 

resources and learning software to enable large numbers of students, regardless of 

their location, to set up interactive teaching sessions.  

The Program will enable the strategic planning and development of the higher 

education sector. The strategic plan will be used to monitor progress in 

implementing the targets, including the targets for the expansion of enrolment in 

the universities and ATIs, and to fine-tune this over time.  

Diagram 1. 

 

                                                                 

 

 

 
 

 

Expansion in 

enrolment 

STEM 

Degrees 

Sciences 

Technology 

Engineering 

Mathematics 
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Total allocation and utilization by the Faculties in 2021: 
 
With the main focus on expansion of enrollment in universities, the World Bank 

allocated funds, under STEM. USJP received three non-competitive grants to 

Faculty of Medical Sciences, Faculty of Technology and Faculty of Applied 

Sciences.  Allocated amounts and expenditure in the year 2021 are given in the 

Table below.  

 
Allocations and Expenditure in 2021: 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2  Result Area 2- Introduction: 
       (Improving the Quality of Higher Education) 

 
The Results Area 2 aims to improve the quality of degree programs specifically 

focused to develop universities which deliver degree programs that promote a 

combination of academic excellence with high quality socio-emotional skills, such 

that students are well prepared for the world of work and for wider civic and social 

life. This program allocates funds to the faculties and departments on competitive 

basis for modernizing teaching-learning and quality improvement programs called 

ELTA- ELSE.  

 

It is also intended to provide funds for a scholarship program for young academics 

to obtain postgraduate degrees. This is extremely important because there is a 

scarcity of qualified academic staff in HEIs. Many PhD scholarships are offered to 

academic staff members of universities Under AHEAD. These PhD scholarships 

are for overseas programs and split programs. 

 

 

SN 

Category 

of funds 

received 

for the 

Grant 

Funds 

balance as 

at 

01.01.2021 

Funds 

received 

Expenditure 

in 2021 

Utilization 

in 2021 % 

Procurement 

Progress 

Faculty of Medical Sciences - STEM 

1 
Civil 

Works 

 156 

million 
0   59 million 38% On going 

Faculty of Technology - STEM 

1 
Civil 

Works 

10.6 

million 

10.6 

million 
10.6 million 100% Completed  

2 Goods 
31.4 

million 

65 

million 
   49 million 50.80% On going 

Faculty of Applied Sciences - STEM 

1 Goods 0 
20 

million 
19.4 million 97% On going 
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Diagram 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total allocation and utilization by the Faculties in 2021: 
 

Three faculties of USJP, Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences, Faculty of 

Management Studies and Commerce and Faculty of Applied Sciences were able 

to win the competitive grant from Result Area 2, and were able to secure Rs. 120 

million for each faculty. The total allocation and the expenditure in the year 2021 

are given in the Table below.  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total allocation and utilization by the Departments in 2021: 
 

Under the Department Level Competition, USJP was able to win 5 department 

level grants. Each department was allocated Rs.18 million. In the first round, 

Department of Anthropology, Department of Geography, Department of Decision 

Sciences won the allocations.  In the second round, Department of Marketing 

Management and the Department of Sport Science won the allocations. The total 

allocation and the expenditure in the year 2021 are given in the Table below.  

ELTA-ELSE Faculty Level Grants: 

Faculty Total 

Allocation 

Expenditure 

in 2021 

Utilization 

in 2021 % 

Procurement 

Progress 

Faculty of 

Humanities 

and Social 

Sciences 

120 million 45 million      37.5 % On going 

Faculty of 

Applied 

Sciences 

120 million   58 million      48.3 % On going 

Faculty of 

Management 

Studies and 

Commerce 

120 million 20 million       17 % On going 
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HRD Grant - Ph.D. Scholarship Awardees: 
 

Under the PhD scholarship program USJP staff members were awarded 40 PhD 

Grants, each worth of Rs.9 million. Due to various reasons, only 23 staff members 

were able to commence their PhD studies. Due to non-compliance of the OMST 

guidelines rest of the scholarships were canceled.  The expenditure in the year 2021 

are given in the Table below.  

 

HRD Grant for Ph.D. Scholarships - Expenditure in 2021: 
 

ELTA-ELSE Department Level Grants: 

Dept. of Anthropology 18 

million 

5.2 

million 

   29 % On going 

Dept. of Geography 18 

million 

3.0 

million 

   17 % On going 

Dept. of Decision 

Science 

18 

million 

2.6 

million 

14.4 % On going 

Dept. of Marketing 

Management 

18 

million 

   4 

million 

22.2 % On going 

Dept. of Sports Science 18 

million 

11.2 

million 

62.2 % On going 

 Name of the 

candidate 

Faculty and 

dept. 

Country 

of study, 

University 

Utilisation 

in 2021 

Utilisation 

in 2021 % 

Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences 

1 

Ms.Disna 

Darshani 

Nanaykkara 

Badungodage 

Humanities and 

Social Sciences/ 

English Language 

Teaching 

Australia,  

Monash 

University 

  

 15.7 million       43.6 % 

2 

Ms. Irosha 

Udayangani 

Chandrasekere 

Humanities and 

Social 

Sciences/Dept. of 

Languages, 

Cultural Studies 

and Performing 

Arts 

New 

Zealand,  

The 

University 

of Auckland 

 

3 

Ms. Waruni 

Iresha 

Ekanayaka 

Humanities and 

Social Sciences / 

English Language 

Teaching 

Australia,  

Curtin 

University 

 

4 

Ms. Dilini 

Chamali 

Walisundara 

Humanities and 

Social 

Sciences/Dept. of 

English and 

Linguistics 

 

 

New 

Zealand,  

The 

University 

of Auckland 

 

Faculty of Applied Sciences 

1 

Ms. Peella 

Kankanamge 

Chamika 

Buddhinie 

Applied Science/ 

Botany 

Australia,  

University 

of Southern 

Queensland  

 

  11.3 million      41.9 % 
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2 

Ms. Godagama 

Gamachchige 

Wajra 

Nandanee 

Applied Science/ 

Botany 

Australia,  

Western 

Sydney 

University 

3 

Mr. Kaushal 

Pradeep 

Manawadu 

Applied 

Science/Sports 

Science 

UK,  

Loughborou

gh 

University 

 

Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce 

1 

Ms. Kankanige 

Yeshika 

Jayathri 

Somarathna 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce/ 

Entrepreneurship 

New 

Zealand,  

AUT 

University  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30.4 million 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24.13 % 

2 

Ms. 

Welamedde 

Gedare 

Vishaka 

Gunasekara  

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce/ 

Business 

Economics 

New 

Zealand,  

University 

of Waikato 

 

3 

Mr. Amila 

Nuwan 

Wicrmasekera 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce/ 

Decision Sciences 

New 

Zealand,  

University 

of Auckland  

 

4 

Mr. Sampath 

Deepthi Lanka 

Kongahawtte 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce 

/Finance 

New 

Zealand,  

University 

of Otago 

 

5 
Ms. Sachithra 

Somasiri 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce 

/Information 

Technology 

Resource Centre 

New 

Zealand,  

Massey 

University  

 

6 

Ms. Nithya 

Piumi 

Parameshwara 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce 

/Decision Science 

Thailand,  

Asian 

Institute of 

Technology 

 

7 

Ms. 

Galwalagama 

Arachchige 

Thilini 

Kaushalya 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce/Dept. 

of Commerce 

New 

Zealand,  

University 

of Otago 

 

8 

Ms. 

Ranawakage 

Dona Nayoma 

Vaijanthi 

Management 

studies & 

Commerce/ 

Commerce 

Australia,  

RMIT 

University 

 

 9 

Mr. Dilan 

Tharindu 

Rathnayake 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce/ 

Marketing 

Management 

UK,  

University 

of 

Strathclyde  

 

10 

Mr. Widana 

Hewage 

Terans 

Gunawardhana 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce/ Estate 

Mgt. & Valuation 

Australia,  

RMIT 

University 
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6.3  Result Area 3- Introduction: 
       (Promoting Research, Development, Innovation and Commercialization 
       (RDIC) 
 

The objective of Results Area 3 is to develop a culture of research and 

development, innovation and commercialization (RDIC) in universities. RDIC 

activities are an extremely important next step in the development of higher 

education in the country. A three-pronged strategy is been followed, as given 

below. 

First, a system of competitive, performance-based research programs for 

Development- Oriented Research (DOR) in universities and non-state HEIs will 

be developed and implemented for Sciences, Technology, Engineering, and 

Mathematics (STEM) subjects, Humanities, Education, Management, and Social 

Sciences (HEMS) subjects, and STEM-HEMS (interdisciplinary) research. 

Second, competitive, performance-based Research and Innovation 

Commercialization (RIC) programs will be developed and implemented for 

universities undertaking innovation activities of direct relevance for industrial and 

11 

Gajanayaka 

Mudiyanselage 

Channa 

Jayampathi 

Bandara 

Gajanayaka 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce/ 

Commerce 

New 

Zealand,  

University 

of Waikato 

 

12 

Mahamarakkal

a patabadige 

Shanika 

Rangani Perera 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce/ 

Entrepreneurship 

New 

Zealand,  

University 

of Waikato 

 

13 

Mr. Hewa 

Matharage 

Pethum 

Manidu 

Kodikara 

 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce/Busine

ss Administration 

UK,  

University 

of 

Manchester 

 

14 

Ms. 

Amarasirige 

Vasana 

Kaushalya 

Management 

Studies & 

Commerce/Busine

ss Administration 

UK,  

University 

of York 

 

Faculty of Medical Sciences 

1 

Dr. 

Gunasekara 

vidana 

Mestrige 

Chamath 

Fenando 

Medical Sciences/ 

Family Medicine 

UK,  

Lancaster 

University 

 

7.8 million 43.3% 

2 

Dr. Prassana 

Varun 

Logenthiran 

Medical 

Sciences/Physiolog

y 

UK,  

Linacre 

College, 

University 

of Oxford 
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service sector development. The RIC programs will be available for STEM and 

HEMS subjects, as well as for STEM- HEMS combinations. In addition, under the 

Program, assistance been given for a set of Innovation Commercialization 

Enhancement (ICE) grants to assist a set of university programs that have 

demonstrated success in this area in the past (under HETC) to scale up their 

activities further. 

 

Third, the Program will support the development of University-Business Linkage 

(UBL) Cells. The UBL Cells will assist university academics in increasing 

collaboration with professional expertise in technology transfer and business 

model development, establishing open innovation spaces and business incubators, 

and enabling academics and students to obtain professional business advice and 

training. 
 

 
Diagram 3: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total allocation and utilization by the Faculties in 2021: 
 

Objective of the Result Area 3 was to promote Research, Development and 

innovation culture within the Universities. Under this result area, universities were 

eligible to receive two types of commutative research grants and non-competitive 

grant. 

 

(i) RIC Grants: 

Under the competitive category, Faculty of Applied Sciences won Rs.45 million, 

Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences won Rs.45 million and Faculty of 

Technology won Rs. 25 million, for Research and Innovation Commercialization 

(RIC) grant.   

 

(ii) DOR Grants: 

Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce won Rs.10 million and Faculty of 

Medical Science won Rs. 35 million for Development Oriented Research (DOR) 

grant.    
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(iii) ICE Grant: 

In addition to the DOR and RIC grants, results area 3 promotes, a set of innovation 

commercialization enhancement (ICE) grants to assist a set of university programs 

that have demonstrated success in this area in the past under the HETC project to 

scale up their activities further. Center for Sustainability, Department of Forestry 

and Environmental Science, Faculty of Applied Sciences of University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura was able to receive Rs.40 million as ICE Grant.  

 

(iv) UBL Cell: 

Under Results Area 3 provision has been made to assist universities to develop 

relevant intellectual property (IP) policies consistent with the definition of IP by 

the World Intellectual Property Organization (WIPO). In this context UBL helps 

to;  

 

 Enable academics and students to obtain professional knowledge, advice, and 

training relevant for commercialization of research  

 Increase collaboration with professional expertise in technology transfer and 

commercialization of research  

 Enable academics to engage with industry to develop and utilized research and 

innovation products for commercial potential  

 Work with the university IP policies in interaction with private firms and 

industries. The program also provides a platform for networking among 

researchers engaged in innovation and commercialization of research and 

companies interested in transforming research results into marketable goods and 

services. Further to that, Rs. 13 million was given for the development of 

University-Business Linkage (UBL) Cells. The total allocation and the expenditure 

in the year 2021 are given in the Table below.  

 

Research and Innovation Commercialization (RIC) Grants: 

SN Faculty  Total 

Allocation 

Expenditure 

in 2021 

Utilization 

in 2021 % 

Progress 

i Faculty of 

Humanities and 

Social Sciences 

45 million   9.5 million 21.1 % On going  

ii Faculty of 

Applied Sciences 

45 million   3.7 million 8.2 % On going 

iii Faculty of 

Technology 

25 million   5.6 million 22.4 % On going 

Development Oriented Research (DOR) Grants: 

i Faculty of 

Management 

10 million   2.9 million 29 % On going 
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Studies and 

Commerce 

ii Faculty of 

Medical Sciences 

35 million   6.6 million 18.9 % On going 

Innovation Commercialization Enhancement (ICE) Grant: 

i Faculty of 

Applied Sciences 

40 million   8.5 million 21.3 % On going 

University Business Linkage Cell (UBL Cell): 

i USJP 15 million     2 million 15.4 % On going 

 

Conclusion: 

 

The Government restrictions on social distancing, and the countrywide lock down to avoid the 

spread of Covid 19 Pandemic, disrupted most of the scheduled activities of each Grant.  

Procurements got delayed due to the import restrictions on some items and manufacturing 

problems at the mother companies. Unavailability of the required strength of the workforce 

hindered the completion of Civil Works at the scheduled dates.   Physical workshops could not 

be conducted. Most of the workshops were conducted using the Zoom Technology. 

 

Although the prevailing health situation in the country as well as in the whole world are not 

yet improved, staff of AHEAD Operation, OTS Office and all the Grants, work together as a 

Team, to achieve the targets and complete all the scheduled tasks.    

 

CENTER FOR QUALITY ASSURANCE (CQA) 

 

The University of Sri Jayewardenepura (USJ) being a public institution has to exercise its 

responsibility to maintain its quality and standards. Quality assurance is the means by which a 

university can guarantee with confidence and certainty that standards of its awards and quality 

of its education provision and knowledge generation are being maintained.   

  

In this context, the Centre for Quality Assurance (CQA) of the University is responsible for 

carrying out the quality assurance activities and coordinating these activities in line with the 

national quality assurance framework laid down by the Quality Assurance Council (QAC) of 

the University Grants Commission (UGC). Although, maintaining the expected standards of 

quality assurance in the University is a massive task, the Director/CQA of the University, 

Senior Professor Samanthi Senaratne, continued to work on part time basis, to fulfill the 

academic and administrative tasks involved with the CQA. 
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The activities conducted by CQA during the year 2021, are stated below.  

Curriculum Review Committee (CRC): 

 

The establishment of the Curriculum Review Committee (CRC) of University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura (USJ) as a senate sub-committee was approved at the Senate Meeting held 

on 27.08.2020 and the formats prepared to submit documents to CRC was approved at the 

Senate on 27.01.2021.  The establishment of this sub-committee is identified as a best practice 

in quality assurance.  Further, the Review Report of the Institutional Review (IR) of USJ held 

in 2017 has also proposed to establish such a committee in the University. 

 

The following study programs were reviewed by the CRC during the year 2021. 

 

SN Name of the study Program SLQF 

Level 

Relevant Faculty Date of 

CRC 

Meeting  

1 Master of Science in Industrial 

Organic Chemistry 

10 Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 

22.02.2021 

2 Master of Science in Industrial 

Organic Chemistry 

10 Faculty of Graduate Studies 20.05.2021 

3 Master of Industrial Organic 

Chemistry 

9 Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 

22.02.2021 

4 Master of Industrial Organic 

Chemistry 

9 Faculty of Graduate Studies 20.05.2021 

5 Master of Criminal Justice and 

Corrections 

9 Faculty of Graduate Studies 19.11.2021 

6 Postgraduate Diploma in 

Industrial Organic Chemistry 

8 Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 

22.02.2021 

7 Postgraduate Diploma in 

Industrial Organic Chemistry 

8 Faculty of Graduate Studies 20.05.2021 

8 Postgraduate Diploma in TESL   8 Faculty of Graduate Studies 21.10.2021 

9 Bachelor of Laws Honours  6 Faculty of Humanities and 

Social Sciences 

22.04.2021 

10 Bachelor of Computing Honours 

in Computer Science  

6 Faculty of Computing 22.04.2021 

11 Bachelor of Computing Honours 

in Software Engineering  

6 Faculty of Computing 22.04.2021 

12 Bachelor of Computing Honours 

in Information Systems  

6 Faculty of Computing 22.04.2021 

13 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Accounting 

6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 

14 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Business Administration 

6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 

15 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Business Administration in 

Business Economics 

6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 

16 Bachelor of Commerce Honours 6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 

17 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Operations and Technology 

Management  

6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 
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18 Bachelor of Science in 

Entrepreneurship 

6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 

19 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Estate Management and 

Valuation 

6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 

20 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Finance  

6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 

21 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Human Resource Management 

6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 

22 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Business Information Systems  

6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 

23 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Marketing Management  

6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 

24 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Management (Public)  

6 Faculty of Management 

Studies and Commerce 

22.07.2021 

25 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Polymer Science and Industrial 

Management 

6 Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 

19.08.2021 

26 Bachelor of Arts Honours in 

Japanese 

6 Faculty of Humanities and 

Social Sciences 

19.08.2021 

27 Bachelor of Arts Honours in 

Chinese 

6 Faculty of Humanities and 

Social Sciences 

19.08.2021 

28 Bachelor of Arts Honours in 

French 

6 Faculty of Humanities and 

Social Sciences 

19.08.2021 

29 Bachelor of Engineering 

Technology Honours 

(Focus area in Geotechnology)  

6 Faculty of Technology  23.09.2021 

30 Bachelor of Science Honours in 

Computational Chemistry 

6 Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 

20.12.2021 

31 Diploma in Software Engineering 3 Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 

20.05.2021 

32 Diploma in Applied Tamil 

Language  

3 Faculty of Humanities and 

Social Sciences  

21.10.2021 

33 Diploma in ICT and Economics 

for Development  

3 Faculty of Humanities and 

Social Sciences  

21.10.2021 

34 Advanced Certificate in Eco 

Tourism, Wild Life and Nature 

Interpretation 

2 Faculty of Applied 

Sciences 

22.02.2021 

35 Advanced Certificate in Makeup 

Artistry  

2 Faculty of Humanities and 

Social Sciences  

21.10.2021 

36 Certificate in Cell Culture 1 Faculty of Medical 

Sciences 

23.09.2021 

37 Certificate in Molecular 

Diagnostics 

1 Faculty of Medical 

Sciences 

23.09.2021 

38 Certificate in Sequencing 1 Faculty of Medical 

Sciences 

23.09.2021 

39 Certificate in Fundamentals of 

Computer Hardware and 

Networking 

1 Faculty of Humanities and 

Social Sciences  

21.10.2021 
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CQA Annual Work Plan - 2021: 

 

 

SN. Activities Planned and Progress Made Related Recommendation of IR 

Review 

Quality Assurance Strategic Plan and Action Plans: 

1 Implement the strategic plan (SP) for CQA 

and develop action plans (AP) for Faculty QA 

Cells 

 

Progress: SP of CQA is in the process of 

implementation and faculties of Humanities 

and Social Science, Management Studies and 

Commerce, and Medical Sciences are also in 

the progress of implementation. 

Expand and strengthen the activities of 

the QA Cells and CQA to evaluate, 

analyze, recommend and monitor 

programs/functions of the university 

and advise the Dean/Faculty Board as 

well as the Vice-Chancellor/Senate 

and Council in all the academic and 

administrative affairs, as relevant 

 

Policy Documents and Operating Manuals  

 

2 Develop the following policies for the 

University: 

 Policy on Health and Safety 

 Policy on Community Engagement 

and Outreach 

 Student Engagement on QA 

Progress: All these policies have been 

developed and approved at the Senate and 

Council of the University. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Develop manuals of procedures and 

standard operational procedures for all 

major functions of the divisions/units  
3 Develop a Management Guide for the 

University 

Progress: The final draft has been presented 

at the SSCQA meeting held on 27.01.2022. 

4 Develop SOPs on Finance and Examination 

for the University 

Progress: It is in the progress developing the 

SOP on Finance. 

5 Complete the preparation of the University 

Calendar 

Progress: The University calendar is prepared 

and obtained the approval of Senate on 

27.01.2022 and Council on 10.03.2022. 

6 Develop a policy and procedures for the 

production of learning materials of EDECU 

Progress: EDECU is working on developing 

this policy. 

7 Develop a directory of resources provided for 

work-based and industry placement 

assignments of faculties 

Progress: The faculties offering 

undergraduate degree programs are working 

on this. 
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Management Information System of the University 

8 Integrate the information systems operated 

separately in faculties and divisions and 

establish a MIS for the University   

 

Establish MIS without further delay 

Academic Accountability and Work Norms for Academic Staff 

9 Revise existing academic accountability 

document, and the establishment of work 

norms 

Progress: The final draft of Policy on 

Academic Ethics and Accountability has been 

developed by a Committee Chaired by Prof. 

Rasika Perera.  It was presented at the Senate Sub 

Committee on Quality Assurance (SSQA) meeting 

of the University held on 06.12.2021. Thereafter, 

it was sent again for the comments of the Deans 

and the QA Cell Coordinators of the faculties of 

study. The comments received at this stage was 

also incorporated into the final version of the 

policy document submitted for the approval of the 

Senate. 

Develop work norms and calculate the 

workload of staff in all faculties  

10 Develop a code of conduct for academic staff 

Progress: This is incorporated into the policy 

on academic ethics and accountability. 

Develop a code of conduct for staff 

11 Review the existing performance appraisal 

system for academic staff 

Develop an appropriate performance 

appraisal system for each category of 

staff considering their role and 

responsibilities 

12 Develop a mechanism for recognizing and 

awarding creative and innovative teaching 

Develop a mechanism for recognizing 

and awarding creative and innovative 

teaching 

 

Non-academic Staff Training and Work Norms 

13 Develop a code of conduct for non-academic 

staff 

Progress: This is covered within the 

Management Guide of USJ. 

Develop a code of conduct for staff 

14 Provision of continuous training to non-

academic staff through Staff Development 

Centre of the University 

Provide more career specific or job-

related training to non-academic staff 

15 Review the existing performance appraisal 

system for non-academic staff 

Develop an appropriate performance 

appraisal system for each category of 

staff considering their role and 

responsibilities 

 

 

Monitoring and Progress Review 

16 Monitor the progress of QA activities of the 

University, PIM, faculties of study and 

EDECU at the QA Standing Committee of 

USJ  

 

 

Discuss the recommendations of 

reviews at the department level, 
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Progress: The progress as to the 

implementation of IR action plan is 

considered at the SSCQA meeting of USJ. 

PIM and faculty level progress in QA 

activities at the IQAC meeting. 

faculty level, and at the Senate with 

the support of CQA and QA Cells.  

17 Carry out periodic internal reviews by the 

CQA for the next round of IR and by Faculty 

QA Cells for the next round of PRs 

Progress: It was in the progress of 

developing a concept paper in this regard. 

18 Include QA as an agenda item of academic 

and administrative officers’ meeting 

Progress: Request has been made in this 

regard. 

Conduct regular review of programs 

and functions of all divisions, by staff 

from other divisions/units 

19 Develop a repository of minutes of faculty 

QA cells at CQA 

Progress: Developed the repository and 

updating regularly. 

Conduct regular meetings of QA Cells 

of all faculties 

20 Share the best practices at QA Standing 

Committee of USJ and CQA Websites 

Progress: Working with USJ web team in 

this respect. 

Direct the efforts of CQA to 

internalize, monitor and to improve 

best practices at all levels of the 

University 

 

 

Guidelines to introduce a common course code structure:   

 

(a) For undergraduate degree Programs of USJ: 

 

At the request of the Vice Chancellor, Director/CQA conducted an evaluation of the 

existing course codes in all faculties of the University. A comparison of the course 

codes in the existing undergraduate degree programs of the University, was presented 

to the Senate Sub Committee on Quality Assurance on 29.07.2021.  Based on the 

analysis, Director/CQA presented the common and distinguishing features of these 

course, codes and observations as to the development of a common code structure for 

the undergraduate degree programs.  Thereafter, another discussion was held at the 

Deans’ Committee on 04.08.2021, regarding this.  As a result, a set of guidelines was 

developed by CQA for the introduction of a common course code structure. This 

guideline was approved at the 396th Senate meeting held on 07.10.2021.   

 

(b) For postgraduate study programs: 
 

A set of guidelines has been developed by the CQA to introduce a common code 

structure for the postgraduate degree programs of USJ, after the evaluation of the 

existing course codes of the postgraduate study programs offered by the University. 

These guidelines were presented at a meeting held on 21.09.2021 with the 

participation of the Director, Postgraduate Institute of Management (PIM), and the 

Chairpersons of Study Boards and Coordinators of both FGS and FMSC. It was 

decided to revise this proposed scheme based on the observations and suggestions 

made by the participants of the meeting.  Subsequently, the final version was 



University of Sri Jayewardenepura 135 Annual Report 2021 
 

developed by the Faculty of Graduate Studies of the University with the concurrence 

of the CQA and it is pending the approval of the Senate.  

 

Concerns regarding Institutional Review (IR) and Program Review (PR) Manuals: 

 

According to the discussion on the revision of IR and PR Manuals, at the UGC Standing 

Committee on Quality Assurance, the QAC of UGC has requested the comments of universities 

for this revision process and consequently, the CQA has requested the comments of the 

faculties. Based on these comments received from Faculty of Management Studies and 

Commerce, Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences and the Faculty of Allied Health 

Sciences, and the experience in the IR process, the Director/CQA has identified the following 

limitations as to IR and PR manuals and the review processes. 

  

 Too many standards, in both in the IR Manual and the PR Manual, which create 

unnecessary burden to the academic staff as they have to spend a considerable time on 

the preparation of the self-evaluation report (SER), and the collection and the 

organization of the evidences to substantiate the claims made in the SER. 

 Repetition of standards in both manuals under several criteria with subtle differences.  

This sometimes leads the reviewers to provide different marks for the same aspect under 

different criteria. 

 The lack of clarity in standards as most standards have been presented in an abstract 

manner. This results in different interpretations to these standards and the evidences 

could be given based on the interpretation.  

 The reviewers consider evidence given as examples for standards in the IR/PR manuals 

as mandatory requirements and they tend to search for exact evidences in the 

universities/study programs that they review. Too many standards lead to an increase 

in evidences to be produced under each criterion and the reviewers are not in a position 

to review all those evidences within the limited time available during the review period. 

Further, it is not clear whether the evidence is accepted in electronic form by the 

reviewers. There is no clear guideline available in this respect in the IR/PR manuals.  

 It was observed in some instances that the reviewers expect the universities to follow 

the standards to the letter of law without considering the substance of the matter.  

 The standards relating to areas such as curriculum, teaching, learning and assessments 

have been largely developed by focusing on disciplines that fall under natural sciences. 

A limited attention has been placed on social sciences and humanities in the standard 

setting process.  

 The explanation provided to scale of 0 to 3 used in marking criteria for standards needs 

to be strengthened and the reviewers should be required to provide remarks to justify 

the marks assigned to each standard by them.  

 The selection process of reviewers and the reviewer training process need to be 

reviewed and revised to ensure that suitable academics are selected as reviewers and 

the selected persons to understand their role and responsibilities clearly. 

 

 

Development of Policies: 

 

(a) Policy on Student Engagement in Quality Assurance:  

 

The Policy on Student Engagement in Quality Assurance of USJ has been developed 

in alignment with the Quality Assurance Policy and the By-Law of USJ and the 
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circular issued in this regard by the Quality Assurance Council (QAC) of the 

University Grants Commission (UGC). The initial draft of this policy document was 

shared among the faculties of study and requested comments. The detailed comments 

had been received from FHSS, FMS and FOE in this respect. Thereafter, the final 

policy document was prepared considering these comments and tabled at the Senate 

Standing Committee on Quality Assurance (SSQA) held on 28.10.2021. This Policy 

was approved by the Senate on 25.11.2021 and Council on 13.01.2022. (Refer Annex 

VI).   

 

Engaging students in quality assurance is an essential aspect of education to improve 

the students’ learning experience in a university. Engaging with students and 

responding to their opinion allows the academics to improve the learning and teaching 

activities of a university. Further, the views and opinions of students will provide 

valuable information for the academic staff and the administrators of a university to 

take informed decisions that will improve the students’ learning experience.  

 

USJ recognizes the importance of student engagement in quality assurance and this 

policy is devised to provide a basis for the current activities in the USJ in this respect. 

Accordingly, this policy elaborates the USJ commitment to engage students in quality 

assurance activities and the mechanisms by which students could participate in 

quality assurance activities 

 

(b) Policy on Gender Equity and Equality: 

 

USJ Policy on Equality has been developed by the Centre for Gender Equity of USJ. 

It was approved by the Senate and uploaded to the CQA Website under ‘Policies’. 

Refer to the web link http://cqa.sjp.ac.lk/policies/. This Policy was approved by the 

Senate on 25.11.2021 and Council on 13.01.2022.  (Refer Annex VII). 

 

(c) Policy on Academic Ethics and Accountability:  

 

The final draft of the Policy on Academic Ethics and Accountability prepared the 

committee headed by Prof. Rasika Perera was presented at the Senate Sub Committee 

on Quality Assurance (SSQA) meeting of the University held on 06.12.2021.  This 

Policy was approved by the Senate on 24.02.2022 (Refer Annex VIII). This policy 

covers principles of ethics and accountability for academic staff of USJ.   Ethics and 

accountability are key factors that the society at large expects from any individual 

and more specifically from an academic in the University system. It is also of 

importance as students derive the basic tenets of ethical behavior and accountability 

in their educational experience and in their pursuit of knowledge taking the academic 

staff members as role models.  

 

This policy document has been prepared as a generic document, which could be 

applied to any faculty of USJ.  Upon reaching consensus of the faculties and the PIM 

for the main areas identified in this document, specific details would be discussed 

thereafter and added at the faculty level. Hence, the expectation of the Centre for 

Quality Assurance (CQA) is to develop a generic document where all could agree 

upon on the Principles of Academic Accountability.  Thereafter, each faculty based 

on their specific requirements could suggest further improvements to this document.  

Accordingly, this policy will undergo three stages, as follows:  

http://cqa.sjp.ac.lk/policies/
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 Firstly, a common policy will be developed for the whole university  

 Then specific details will be prepared by each faculty.  

 Finally, a software will be developed for work load computation 

 

This Policy covers the following areas.  

 Ethics in the profession 

 Ethical principles in university teaching 

 Ethical principles in research 

 Academic freedom and accountability 

 Workload and work norms model  

 

Workload and Work Norms Model: 

 

The Policy presents workload and work norms model in detail, which incorporates 

Teaching, Research and Contribution to University and National Development.  

Accordingly, all academic members of the University should be accountable for the 

workload carried out and the contribution made to research, university and national 

development and these should be reported annually to the Faculty/University. 

 

 Workshops conducted on Quality Assurance: 

 

The workshops conducted on Quality Assurance during the year 2021 are given in the Table 

below. 

 

Date Topic Resource Person Target group No of 

participants 

08.04.2021 Proposed Manual 

for Postgraduate 

Study Programs 

covering the 

areas: Criteria, 

Best Practices 

and Standards; 

Examples of 

supporting 

evidence; 

Scoring and 

grading system, 

Clustering of 

programs for 

review, and the 

Verification of 

Sri Lanka 

Qualification 

Framework 

(SLQF) Level  

Team Leader: 

Prof. Kalyani Perera, QA 

Consultant and Emeritus 

Professor, Faculty of 

Agriculture, University 

of Peradeniya   

Members:  

*Prof Janaka de Silva, 

Senior Professor of 

Medicine, University of 

Kelaniya and former 

Director, Postgraduate 

Institute of Medicine, 

University of Colombo  

*Prof Udith Jayasinghe, 

Senior Professor of 

Agribusiness 

Management and Vice-

Chancellor, Wayamba 

University                         

*Dr Upali Mampitiya, 

QA Consultant and 

Director PIM, 

Dean- FGS, 

Quality 

Assurance 

(QA) 

Coordinator –

FGS, 

Chairpersons 

of Board of 

Study, 

Coordinators 

of 

Postgraduate 

Degree 

Programs of 

USJ 

 

 

 

 

 

125 
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Senior Lecturer Grade I, 

Dept. of Mathematics & 

Computer Science, 

Faculty of Natural 

Sciences, The Open 

University of Sri Lanka  

*Prof Charmalie 

Nahallage, Professor in 

Anthropology, Dept. of 

Anthropology, Faculty of 

Humanities and Social 

Sciences, University of 

Sri Jayewardenepura  

*Dr B D Nandadeva, QA 

Consultant and former 

Professor, Dept. of Fine 

Arts, Faculty of 

Humanities, University 

of Kelaniya                    

*Prof Lal Thilakerathne, 

Professor, Department of 

Accounting, Faculty of 

Commerce & 

Management Studies, 

University of Kelaniya 

04.05.2021  

Draft Manual of 

Postgraduate 

Program Review 

 

Senior Professor 

Samanthi Senaratne, 

Director/CQA, USJ 

Dean -FGS, 

QA 

Coordinator -

FGS, Study 

Board 

Chairpersons, 

and 

Coordinators 

of 

Postgraduate 

Programs of 

USJ 

 

54 

11.05.2021 22 

17.05.2021 21 

20.05.2021 Awareness 

Session on 

Program Review 

for Postgraduate 

Degree Programs  

Resource Person: 

Senior Professor 

Samanthi Senaratne, 

Director/CQA, USJ 

Panel Discussion: 

* Senior Professor 

Jayantha Wijeyaratne, 

Consultant, Quality 

Assurance and 

Accreditation  

* Senior Professor 

Kalyani Perera – Former 

Director, Quality 

Academic 

Staff of 

Postgraduate 

Institute of 

Management 

(PIM)  

 

 

18 
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Assurance Council 

(QAC), UGC 

21.05.2021 Components of 

the Sri Lankan 

Quality 

Assurance 

Framework 

specifically 

focusing on 

internal QA 

Senior Professor 

Samanthi Senaratne, 

Director/CQA, USJ 

 

Participants of 

Certificate 

Course in 

Teaching in            

Higher 

Education 

(CTHE) 

Program-2021 

 

 

83 

25.06.2021 Application of 

components of 

the Sri Lankan 

quality assurance 

framework 

specifically 

focusing on the 

outcome-based 

education, 

assurance vs. 

accreditation and 

quality assurance 

reviews. 

Senior Professor 

Samanthi Senaratne, 

Director/CQA, USJ 

 

Participants of 

Certificate 

Course in 

Teaching in            

Higher 

Education 

(CTHE) 

Program - 

2021  

 

 

 

 

78 

14.07.2021 Quality 

Assurance in 

Higher Education 

and the 

implementation 

of the action plan 

prepared based 

on the program 

review of the 

Business 

Economics 

Degree Program. 

Senior Professor 

Samanthi Senaratne, 

Director/CQA, USJ 

 

Academic 

staff of 

Department of 

Business 

Economics of 

USJ 

 

 

15 

16.07.2021 Requirements 

and application 

of SLQF in the 

design of study 

programs - in 

curriculum 

development, 

module/course 

design, and 

internal and 

external quality 

assurance. 

Senior Professor 

Samanthi Senaratne, 

Director/CQA, USJ 

 

 

Academic 

Staff of 

Faculty of 

Medical 

Sciences 

(FMS) of USJ 

 

 

 

31 

16.11.2021 Introduction of 

QA in SL higher 

education and 

Senior Professor 

Samanthi Senaratne, 

Director/CQA, USJ 

Academic 

Staff of 

20 

17.11.2021 20 
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current 

procedures of 

QA in USJ 

 Faculty of 

Technology 

22.12.2021 Preparation of 

SER of External 

Degree Programs 

Senior Professor 

Samanthi Senaratne, 

Director/CQA, USJ 

 

Academic 

staff members, 

DR, AR and 

Management 

Assistants 

attached to 

EDECU 

 

25 

 

 

Evaluated study programs - 2021: 

 

 The CQA evaluated the proposals of the following study programs, before submitting for the  

 Approval of the University Senate and the QAC of UGC.               

 

Advanced Certificate 

17.02.2021 Advanced Certificate in Eco-tourism, Wildlife and Nature 

Interpretation (First review before submitting to the 

Curriculum Review Committee) 

 

 

 

Level 02 18.02.2021 Advanced Certificate in Eco-tourism, Wildlife and Nature 

Interpretation (Final review before submitting to the 

Curriculum Review Committee) 

Diploma 

01.01.2021 Diploma in Cosmetic Technology (Second Review)  

 

 

 

 

Level 03 

 

04.01.2021 Diploma in Cosmetic Technology (Final Review) 

04.05.2021 Diploma in Software Engineering 

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

10.05.2021 Diploma in Software Engineering 

(Second review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

12.05.2021 Diploma in Software Engineering 

(Final review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

20.09.2021 Diploma in Applied Tamil Language  

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

Bachelors Honours Degree  

05.02.2021 Bachelor of Arts Honours in Financial Economics (Final 

review after receiving comments from QAC of the UGC) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

09.02.2021 Bachelor of Laws Honours (First review before submitting to 

the Curriculum Review Committee) 

15.02.2021 Bachelor of Arts Honours in Mindfulness and Buddhist 

Counseling (First review before submitting to the QAC of the 

UGC) 

02.03.2021 Bachelor of Entrepreneurship (Special) (First review before 

submitting the QAC of the UGC) 
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04.03.2021 Bachelor of Laws Honours (Second review before submitting 

to the Curriculum Review Committee) 

 

 

Level 06 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Level 06 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24.03.2021 

Bachelor of Computing Honours in Computer Science  

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

Bachelor of Computing Honours in Software Engineering 

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

Bachelor of Computing Honours in Information Systems 

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

29.03.2021 Bachelor of Laws Honours (Final review before submitting to 

the Curriculum Review Committee) 

 

 

 

 

18.03.2021 

Bachelor of Computing Honours in Computer Science  

(Second review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

Bachelor of Computing Honours in Software Engineering 

(Second review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

Bachelor of Computing Honours in Information Systems 

(second review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

 

 

 

 

19.04.2021 

Bachelor of Computing Honours in Computer Science  

(Final review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

Bachelor of Computing Honours in Software Engineering 

(Final review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

Bachelor of Computing Honours in Information Systems 

(Final review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

22.06.2021 Bachelor of Science Honours in Polymer Science and 

Industrial Management  

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee)  

24.06.2021 Bachelor of Arts Honours in Mindfulness and Buddhist 

Counseling 

(Second review before submitting to the Quality Assurance 

Council of the UGC) 

27.06.2021 Bachelor of Arts Honours in Buddhist Management  

(First review before submitting to the Faculty Board/FHSS) 

29.06.2021 Bachelor of Business English and Information Technology 

(External)  

(First review before submitting to the Faculty Board/FHSS)   

02.07.2021 Bachelor of Arts Honours in Buddhist Management  

(Second review before submitting to the Faculty 

Board/FHSS)   

03.07.2021 Bachelor of Business English and Information Technology 

(External)  
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(Second review before submitting to the Faculty 

Board/FHSS) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Level 06 

 

07.07.2021 Bachelor of Arts Honours in Chinese  

(First review before submitting to the Faculty Board/FHSS)   

10.07.2021 Bachelor of Arts Honours in Japanese 

(First review before submitting to the Faculty Board/FHSS)   

13.07.2021 Bachelor of Arts Honours in Chinese 

(Second review before submitting to the Faculty 

Board/FHSS)   

14.07.2021 Bachelor of Arts Honours in Japanese  

(Second review before submitting to the Faculty 

Board/FHSS)   

15.07.2021 Bachelor of Arts Honours in French  

(Second review before submitting to the Faculty 

Board/FHSS)   

09.10.2021 Bachelor of Science Honours in Entrepreneurship  

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee)   

16.12.2021  Bachelor of Science Honours in Computational Chemistry 

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee)   

Postgraduate Certificate  

23.01.2021 Postgraduate Certificate in Data Science and Artificial 

Intelligence (Final review before submitting to the QAC of 

the UGC) 

 

 

Level 07 

Postgraduate Diploma 

06.01.2021 Postgraduate Diploma in Industrial Organic Chemistry 

(Second Review) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Level 08 

 

07.01.2021 Postgraduate Diploma in Anthropology (Third Review) 

19.01.2021 Postgraduate Diploma in Industrial Organic Chemistry (Final 

review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

23.01.2021 Postgraduate Diploma in Data Science and Artificial 

Intelligence (Final review before submitting to the QAC of 

the UGC) 

05.02.2021 Postgraduate Diploma in Teaching English as a Second 

Language (First review after receiving comments from QAC 

of the UGC) 

17.05.2021 Postgraduate Diploma in Industrial Organic Chemistry 

(Final review before resubmitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee)  

28.09.2021  Postgraduate Diploma in Biodiversity Conservation and 

Ecotourism  

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee)   

15.10.2021 Postgraduate Diploma in TESL  

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee)   
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31.10.2021 Postgraduate Diploma in Biodiversity Conservation and 

Ecotourism  

(Second review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee)  

 

 

 

 

Masters by Course Work 

06.01.2021 Master of Industrial Organic Chemistry (Second Review)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Level 09 

19.01.2021 Master of Industrial Organic Chemistry (Final review before 

submitting to the Curriculum Review Committee) 

20.01.2021 Master of Criminal Justice and Corrections (First review 

before submitting to the Curriculum Review Committee) 

22.01.2021 Mater of Sociology (First review before submitting to the 

QAC of the UGC) 

23.01.2021 Master of Data Science and Artificial Intelligence (Final 

review before submitting to the QAC of the UGC) 

04.02.2021 Master of Sociology (Second review before submitting to the 

QAC of the UGC) 

11.02.2021 Master of Sociology (Final review before submitting to the 

QAC of the UGC) 

01.03.2021 Master of Commerce (Final review before submitting to the 

QAC of the UGC) 

17.05.2021 Master of Industrial Organic Chemistry  

(Final review before resubmitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

24.05.2021 Master of Criminal Justice and Corrections  

(Second review before submitting to the Curriculum Revision 

Committee)  

28.09.2021 Master of Biodiversity Conservation and Ecotourism  

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee)   

31.10.2021 Master of Biodiversity Conservation and Ecotourism  

(Second review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee)   

 

 

17.11.2021 Master of Criminal Justice and Corrections  

(Final review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee) 

 

 

Level 09 

Masters by Course Work and Research 

22.12.2020 Master of Commerce (Final Review before submitting to the 

Senate) 

 

 

Level 10 06.01.2021 Master of Science in Industrial Organic Chemistry (Third 

Review) 

07.01.2021 Master of Arts in Anthropology (Third Review) 

Doctor of Philosophy   
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27.08.2021  Doctor of Business Administration  

(Second review after receiving comments from QAC, UGC)  

 

 

Level 12  

 
02.09.2021  Doctor of Business Administration (Third review after 

receiving comments from QAC, UGC) 

Establishment of Departments  

 

 

 

27.04.2024 

Proposal for the establishment of Department of Information 

Systems Engineering at Proposed Faculty of Computing 

(First review before submitting to the Senate) 

 

Proposal for the establishment of Department of 

Communication and Knowledge at proposed Faculty of 

Computing 

 (First review before submitting to the Senate) 

 

Proposal for the establishment of Department of Scientific 

Computing at proposed Faculty of Computing  

(First review before submitting to the Senate) 

 

 

 

 

28.04.2021 

Proposal for the establishment of Department of Information 

Systems Engineering at Proposed Faculty of Computing 

(Final review before submitting to the Senate) 

 

Proposal for the establishment of Department of 

Communication and Knowledge at proposed Faculty of 

Computing  

(Final review before submitting to the Senate) 

 

Proposal for the establishment of Department of Scientific 

Computing at proposed Faculty of Computing  

(Final review before submitting to the Senate) 

 

02.12.2021  Proposal for the establishment of Department of Dance and 

Theatre Arts  

(First review before submitting to the Quality Assurance 

Council of the UGC)   

 

Establishments of Faculties:  

24.03.2021 Proposal for the establishment of Faculty of Computing (First 

review before submitting to the QAC of the UGC) 

 

19.03.2021 Proposal for the establishment of Faculty of Computing 

(Second review before submitting to the QAC of the UGC) 

 

Curriculum Revision  

10.07.2021 Curriculum Revision of the 12 existing study programs of 

Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce (FMSC) 

(First review before submitting to the Curriculum Review 

Committee)  

 

Level 06 
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  SUSTAINABILITY PROGRESS REPORT 2021 

 

UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA, CENTER FOR 

SUSTAINABILITY 
 

Throughout the year of 2021 we continued to adapt to the new normal of living with the 

COVID-19 virus. Despite the challenges faced by all of us here in the University, sustainability 

remained a high priority and efforts continued to progress towards achieving the University 

goal of Net Zero. While assessing efficacy of projects and reporting on sustainability we always 

work towards the 17 UN SDGs and in 2021 the CFS was able to successfully report on and 

achieve accreditation in a wider range of goals than ever previously attempted. The results and 

progress updates on projects are detailed in the following report. 

As in the previous year the report follows the methodology featured in the ‘Future Prospects 

on Sustainability: 2019’ Vision and Mission Statement, which outlines 6 key strategic 

sustainability area goals: 

 

1. Learning and Education 

2. Research & Development: Research, Publications, Public Engagement, Creativity 

and Innovation 

3. People 

4. Infrastructure 

5. Outstanding Student Experience 

6. Lifelong Community, Social Responsibility, National Development & Global/Regional 

Impact 

 

All 7 of the strategic goals are aimed at covering one or more of the 17 UN SDGs. This report 

will provide evidence and examples of achievements within key objectives from each of the 7 

strategic goals in addition to providing updates on UI Green Metric University Rankings in 

addition to other ways in which we, as a university, are on track to meet targets for 2021. 

 

1.    LEARNING & EDUCATION 

 

To inspire students to develop as competent global citizens with a pioneering, innovative, and 

independent personalities. 
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Selected key Objectives: 

1.1 Update our curricular on a regular basis incorporating graduate attributes and 

employability skills to strengthen our students to be globally competitive. 

1.2 Ensure quality in all aspects of education and obtain world-class accreditation. 

1.3 Develop each student’s capacity to learn through enquiry and active learning approaches. 

How these were achieved: 

1.1 – New Faculty and Course: The Faculty of Urban and Aquatic Bioresources (FUAB), 

University of Sri Jayewardenepura is looking forward to welcoming the first batch of students 

to the faculty, for the academic year 2020/2021. The FUAB at University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura hopes to cater to the needs that will arise in the bioeconomy by creating 

graduates who will be capable of facing challenges presented by evolving environmental 

transformations, through sustainable utilization of urban and aquatic bioresources. 

With this Faculty, the University comprises a total of ten Faculties. Snr. Prof. Pradeep 

Jayaweera, Acting Dean, FUAB, and the faculty staff members extend sincere thanks to 

everyone who contributed to making this a reality, especially, former Vice Chancellor, USJ, 

and the present Chairman, University Grants Commission, Snr. Prof. Sampath Amarathunge, 

Vice Chancellor, USJ, Snr.Prof. Sudantha Liyanage, Emeritus Prof. Gamini Senanayake, Lead 

Consultant for the FUAB, and other distinguished academics and officials for facilitating the 

establishment of this Faculty. 

 

1.2 – Accreditation: The CFS has continued its efforts regarding sustainability ranking and 

accreditation. Focusing on 2 major international ranking organisations 

 UI Green Metric Ranking 

 Times Higher Education (THE) Impact Rankings 

 

 

UI Green Metric University World Rankings 

 

The University achieved a world 

ranking of 538 out of 956 

participants from 84 countries. 

The USJ has increased its overall 

ranking by 61 places since 2020. 

The 2021 ranking was based on a 

score of 5,250 points (4,525 in 

2020) which is broken down into 

6 categories. The scoring system 

allows us to analyse performance 

by category and identify areas for 

future improvement. 
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UI Green Metric Data 

2021 is the first year in the past 3 years where USJ rankings had improved, in addition to our 

national ranking increasing from 6th to 5th in the country for sustainability. Our position in the 

rankings continues to increase as a further 44 institutions took part in the rankings in 2021. 

 

Higher rankings can be attributed to the university’s dedication to the Net Zero carbon project 

which aims to offset the carbon produced on campus. Achievements have been made in this 

area through the continued reforestation works at the university’s 3 main forest projects. 

Yagirala – Wet zone Tropical Rainforest, Ittapanna – Mangrove Forest and Karugalagaswewa 

– Mixed Dry Evergreen Forest.  

The Center for Sustainability of University of Sri Jayewardenepura has also made significant 

developments in the process of achieving the ISO 14064 certification, while still ongoing, the 

initial audit has been completed and the process is well underway.  
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A further help towards improved rankings was 

the creation of the Carbon Management Team 

and the publication of the University’s first 

annual Sustainability Report. 

 

Times Higher Education Impact Rankings 

The Times Higher Education Impact Rankings are the only global performance tables that 

assess universities against the United Nations’ 

Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). Using 

carefully calibrated indicators to provide 

comprehensive and balanced comparisons 

across four broad areas: research, stewardship, 

outreach and teaching. 

In 2020 the USJ participated in 4 goals for the 

THE Impact Rankings: No Poverty, Zero 

Hunger, Good Health and Wellbeing and 

Partnerships for the goals. In 2021 the CFS 

participated in an additional 4 goals bringing the 

total to 8. As a university we scored in the same group for overall even though we participated 

in 4 additional goals, this represents a great achievement. 

The additional goals reported on were: Clean Water and Sanitation, Sustainable Cities and 

Communities, Climate Action, Life Below Water. 

USJ is currently ranked 801-1000 out of a total of 1406 participating institutions. 
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1.3 - Active approaches to learning: Among the many examples of active learning on display 

at the USJ a primary example of this are the numerous workshops that were conducted online 

during 2021. Workshops were held on a broad range of topics to excite and entertain students 

and community members with active participation being encouraged. One example of a 

successful workshop in 2021 was the “How to manage a successful community service project” 

 

SDGs covered under section 1 key objectives: 

        

 

2. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT 

To foster a vibrant, successful, and interactive research culture that creates, discovers, and 

disseminates new fields of knowledge and artefacts in different disciplines for the sustainable 

development of Sri Lanka, Asia and thereby the Global communities. 

Selected key Objectives: 

2.1 Enhance the research capabilities and competencies of the researchers to establish a 

quality research culture. 

2.2 Publish, popularize, commercialize, and apply generated knowledge through research and 

innovation. 

2.3 Establish effective collaborations with industry, national and international entities for 

research activities and finding grants. 

 

How these were achieved: 
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2.1 - MOU between the USJ Faculty of Technology and CodeGen International (Pvt) 

Limited 

The Faculty of Technology at the University of Sri Jayewardenepura and CodeGen 

International (Pvt) Limited, has signed a memorandum of understanding (MOU) to collaborate 

on joint advanced research projects. These projects will include the development of high-

performance construction infrastructure and novel energy harvesting devices. The 

collaboration is conducted at the Center for Industrial Technology Development Research at 

the Faculty of Technology. The MOU was signed at the Vice-Chancellor’s Office on March 

19, 2021, under the patronage of Senior Professor Sudantha Liyanage, Vice-Chancellor, 

University of Sri Jayewardenepura and Dr. Harsha Subasinghe, CEO, CodeGen International 

(Pvt) Limited and the founder of Vega Innovations. Professor Renuka Nilmini (Dean, Faculty 

of Technology), Dr. Asanka Weerasekara (Head, Department of Civil and Environmental 

Technology), Dr. Vikum Premalal (Department of Civil and Environmental Technology), Dr. 

Rohan Dassanayake (Department of Biosystems Technology), and Ms. Dinusha 

Mohanasunderam (Legal officer, CodeGen International (Pvt) Limited) also graced the 

occasion. 

CodeGen is a world-renowned Technology company with the vision of “Transforming 

Tomorrow’s World with cutting-edge Innovations.” CodeGen ventures into emerging markets, 

to optimize the travel and tourism industry at large, agriculture, transportation, education, 

automotive, energy, healthcare, retail, gaming and AI based applications to provide high-

performance technology solutions that are sustainable to power tomorrow’s world. 

 

2.2 - Innovative Research:  

USJ Researchers published 45 Scopus Indexed papers in December 2021 

Researchers from Science, Medical, Technology, Engineering, and Graduate Studies Faculties 

published 45 research papers in Journals indexed by Elsevier Scopus during December 2021. 

52 researchers from USJ contributed to this achievement. 

SDGs covered under section 2 key objectives: 

         

   

3. PEOPLE 

 

To value, support, develop, and utilize the full potential of the staff to make the university a 

facilitating and a stimulating place to work. 
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Selected key objectives: 

3.1 Attract, reward and retain the best people, accessing talents from around the world. 

3.2 Enhance the knowledge, capabilities, and skills of our whole staff to enhance quality of 

both new and established research. 

3.3 Create a supportive and collegial environment, which is underpinned by dignity, respect, 

diversity, health and wellbeing. 

 

How these were achieved: 

 

3.1 Sudarshana Suspension ayurvedic drug invented by USJ and UoC researchers 

commercialized by Japura UBL Cell 

The University of Sri Jayewardenepura (USJ) and the University Business Linkage Cell (UBL) 

made a giant stride towards research commercialization by commercializing its first research-

based invention in its history, by transferring the technology through an exclusive license 

agreement to the industry.  The product itself is a revolutionary ayurvedic medicine which will 

serve to improve the health and wellbeing of citizens across the country. It marks a great step 

forward in the commercialization of research and is the first of its kind for the USJ. 

The pioneering collaboration between USJ and University of Colombo researchers, who 

worked tirelessly on the invention of “Sudarshana Suspension” for several years, ensuring the 

medicine met and exceeded all drug safety and efficacy standards. In a landmark partnership 

with Beam Hela Osu Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, the front running company in the field of ayurvedic and 

herbal drug manufacturing and distribution in Sri Lanka for more than 35 years, the drug will 

be brought to market and soon be available for use by the general public. The USJ Tech 

Transfer office (UBL Cell) facilitated the transition to market represents the first of its kind for 

both parties. 

The transferring of IP through an exclusive licensing agreement between the two parties was 

held on 9th March 2021 at Vice Chancellor’s Office of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura. 

Present at the signing were Vice-Chancellor; Snr Prof. Sudantha Liyanage, The UBL Cell 

Director; Dr. Priyan Perera, Research Team members; Dr. Saroja Weerakoon (University of 

Colombo), Dr. Kamal Perera (University of Colombo), Prof. Thusharie Sugandhika (USJ), 

Prof. Dulanie Gunasekera (USJ), and the Executive Directors of Beam Hela Osu Lanka (Pvt) 

Ltd. 

 

 

3.2 - International Conference on Innovation and Emerging Technologies 2021 (ICIET 

2021) 

The Faculty of Technology (FOT) at the University of Sri Jayewardenepura (USJ) held their 

First International Conference on Innovation and Emerging Technologies 2021 (ICIET 2021) 

on November 25-26, 2021 under the theme “Technological transformation towards a smart 

future.” It was the first technology-based conference organized by USJ, providing an excellent 
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platform for students and researchers from Science, Technology and Engineering fields to 

showcase their research and innovations in front of a broader scientific community. 

The ICIET 2021 featured highly reputed internationally renowned speakers who shared and 

discussed new developments and technological advancements that will impact the future of 

their fields of study. The opening keynote speaker for the ICIET 2021 was Dr. Mahesha 

Ranasoma, the CEO of Global Rubber Industries (GRI), Sri Lanka. The other two keynote 

speakers of the conference were Professor Keitaro Naruse, Robot Engineering Laboratory, 

School of Computer Science & Engineering, University of Aizu, Japan and Mr. Thomas 

Muller, Senior Vice President [Technical], Nestle Lanka PLC. 

 

3.3 – Counselling Service 

Department of Psychiatry, FMS, USJ provides counselling and mental health support, both at 

the clinical unit at CSTH and at the Department. Dr Ramani Perera, Clinical Psychologist and 

Senior Lecturer is available for counselling two days a week and students and staff can get 

services either by visiting the department on Tuesdays and by appointment. This of particular 

use during the ongoing restrictions placed upon society by the COVID-19 pandemic, in a time 

like this the need for mental health awareness is more prominent than ever before. 

SDGs covered under section 3 key objectives: 

 

     
 

4. INFRASTRUCTURE 

To provide a modern, state-of-the-art, efficient, and stimulating learning and working 

environment to sustain world class academic and support activities. 

Selected key objectives: 

4.1 Pursue consistency and continuity in quality and experience across all elements of our 

physical, library, information technology and other infrastructure considering the green 

concept.  

4.2 Assess the scale and sustainability of our location whilst managing existing space and 

building new important facilities, including iconic buildings, which form a key part of our 

heritage. 

How these were achieved: 

4.1 Waste, Energy Consumption and Other On-Campus Sustainability Efforts:  

 

Through the CFS the university is now regularly reporting on its water, waste and energy 

consumption in the annual sustainability report. After 2 years of collecting data, we can now 
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start to make comparisons to previous years and identify areas of inefficiency, excess losses or 

positive trends in our consumption.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2021 will mark the third year for publishing water, waste and energy statistics and the 

sustainability report for 2021 aims to conform with international GRI reporting standards. 

4.2 New Building: 

New Building Opening Ceremony of External Degrees and Extension Courses Unit at 

Ellawala Building 

New Building Opening 

Ceremony of External Degrees 

and Extension Courses Unit at 

Ellawala Building was held on 

04th of January 2021 at 9.45 am. 

Honorable Maha Sangha, the 

Vice-Chancellor of USJ; Senior 

Prof. Sudantha Liyanage, deans 

of the faculties, heads of 

departments, registrar of the 

university, academic and non-

academic staff members 

participated in the ceremony. 

The building contains a number of sustainability features which are designed to reduce 

energy consumption such as large, ventilated areas to keep temperatures naturally cool and 

Glass panel walls to allow maximum natural light. 

 



University of Sri Jayewardenepura 154 Annual Report 2021 
 

Department of Forestry to Develop Mangrove Resource Center at Ittapana using 

Citizens Development Business Finance Funding. 

The Citizens Development Business Finance PLC has come on board to support the 

establishment of the new Mangrove Resource Center of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura. 

Accordingly, an MoU was signed on 27-12-202 between the Citizens Development Business 

Finance PLC and the Center for Sustainability of the Department of Forestry and 

Environmental Science, the University of Sri Jayewardenepura to set up this new Mangrove 

Resource Center at Ittapana, Kalutara District under the financial assistance of CDB Finance 

PLC. The new Mangrove Resource Center will be established in the 2-acre property donated 

by Dr. B.M.S. Batagoda. 

The funding, which totals LKR 2.5 million, will contribute to a new, state of the art, research 

center built with green designs and technologies, which will serve the local and international 

community alike and spread awareness about the fragility and importance of mangrove 

habitats.  

SDGs covered under section 4 key objectives: 

    

 

5. OUTSTANDING STUDENT EXPERIENCE 

 

To create opportunities for the students to have an exceptional, distinctive, and quality 

experience to prepare themselves for life beyond their studies. 

Selected key objectives: 

5.1 Revitalize our academic and pastoral support framework. 

5.2 Promote student mental and physical health, well-being, and safety.  

5.3 Promote regional and global exposure. 

How these were achieved: 

 

5.1 – Faculty of Technology receives a Norwegian grant for the development of research-

based education for renewable energy technology in the circular economy 

 

Norwegian Directorate for Higher Education and Skills allocates approximately NOK 178 

million to 26 projects, including NOK 23 million for 67 full degree master scholarships. It is a 

pleasure to inform that one of the project proposals from Department of Civil and 

Environmental Technology, Faculty of Technology, has been accepted for NORPART-2021. 

NORPART-2021/10175 
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Project Title: Instituting of research-based education systems for the development of 

renewable energy technology in circular economy; A joint project among the Universities in 

Norway, Nepal, Bangladesh and Sri Lanka. 

The main goal of the project is to strengthen the research-based education system in higher 

education emphasizing circular economy and renewable energy technology through the Global 

–North and Global South-South-South Partnership. The partners in project are University of 

South-Eastern Norway (USN), Kathmandu University (KU), Nepal, University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura (USJ), Sri Lanka and Shahjalal University of Science and Technology 

(SUST), Bangladesh. 

The expected results from project are 3 research-based elective courses, 1 MSc program, 

student mobility of 28 master and 6 PhD students from south-north and 8 master and 2 PhD 

students from north-south (50% females), 20 guest lecturing, 20 staff motilities, 30 joint 

publications, 24 joint master’s thesis supervision, 2 online training courses. 500 students will 

be benefitted during the project period. 

5.2 – Alumni association of USJ provide necessities to students in hostels due to Covid 

travel restrictions 

The necessities of the students in USJ hostels due to Covid travel restrictions are constantly 

being provided by USJ Alumni members. They continue to help students with dry food and 

hygiene requirements. 

Especially Mr. Mahinda Ranasinghe, Dr. Ravi Liyanage, Mr. Supun Weerasinghe (CEO of 

Dialog), Manusath Derana and Snr. Prof. Sudantha Liyanage (Vice Chancellor of USJ) must 

be appreciated for all their effort and help. This activity was coordinated by Mr Rajith 

Iddamalgoda, National Organizer Alumni Association of the University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura (AAUSJP). USJ extends special thanks to all those who supported in various 

ways. 

 

5.3 – National and International Sports Achievements by USJ Students in 2021 

Ms. Srimali Samarakoon from the Department of Sports Science, Faculty of Applied Sciences 

won the gold medal (women’s 45kg weight class) in Commonwealth Weightlifting 

Championship Uzbekistan in 2021.  She is ranked ninth in the world weightlifting rankings. 

 

Athletic 

Ms. Amasha De Silva from the Department of Sports Science, Faculty of Applied Science 

broke Susanthika Jayasingha’s Army record and won the gold medal in 200m (24.08 sec) 

while securing the silver medal in the women’s 100m event with a time of 11.59 seconds 

at the 60th Annual Interstate senior athletics championship 2021 held in Patiala, India. 

Ms. Tharika Fernando from the Department of Sports Science, Faculty of Applied 

Science won the gold medal in Shotput (13.47m) at 99th National Athletic Championship. 



University of Sri Jayewardenepura 156 Annual Report 2021 
 

Ms. Tharindu Dasun from the Department of Sports Science, Faculty of Applied Science 

won the silver medal in High Jump (2.08m) at 99th National Athletic Championship. 

Football 

Mr. Jude Supun was selected to represent the National Football team of Sri Lanka who 

will be participating in the qualifying rounds of the FFFA world cup 2022 and the AFC 

Asian cup 2023. 

Gymnastics 

Ms. Amaya Kalukottage from Department of Sports Science, Faculty of Applied Science 

won the bronze medal in Gymnastic at the South Asian Games 2021 held in Bangladesh. 

SDGs covered under section 6 key objectives: 

     

 

6. LIFELONG COMMUNITY, SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY, NATIONAL 

DEVELOPMENT & GLOBAL/REGIONAL IMPACT 

 

To contribute to national, regional, and global development through uplifting lifelong 

community and mutually beneficial relations with the stakeholders.  

Selected key objectives: 

6.1 Make our resources and expertise widely available and be a responsible and influential 

adviser, neighbour, and employer. 

6.2 Maintain quality standards and create the conditions to facilitate our community and 

inspire to contribute towards social responsibility and sustainability across the University and 

beyond. 

6.3 Enhance our engagement in national development with our work, strong collaboration 

with policy- makers, and national bodies and bring about change. 

How these were achieved: 

6.1 – Dean’s Award for the Community Leader of the Year- 2021 

The Dean’s Award for the Community Leader 2021 is intended to recognize the leadership 

qualities of the undergraduates in the Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences (FHSS). The 

whole process was jointly organized by the FHSS and the Career Guidance Unit (CGU) of 

USJ. An open invitation was sent to the FHSS students for registration. Three workshops were 

organized to give a sound understanding of a community project, portfolio writing and to 

enhance their presentation skills. 
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Dr. Janaka Fernando, Senior Lecturer, Department of Business Economics conducted the 

workshop on ‘How to manage a successful community service project’, Mrs. Chathurangani 

Thennakoon, Career Advisor, CGU conducted a workshop on ‘Portfolio Preparation’ and Mr. 

Sameera Jayawardene, Career Advisor, CGU conducted a workshop on ‘Presentation 

Techniques’. 

Eight portfolios were selected for the final competition. The final selection was done by Dr. 

Janaka Fernando, Senior Lecturer, Department of Business Economics with the presence of 

Prof. Shirantha Heenkenda, Dean, FHSS, Prof. Sudath Amarasena, Director, CGU, Dr. Nelum 

Kanthilatha, Coordinator of the event, and Dr. Tharaka Ananda, Compere of the event. 

Congratulations to the 2021 Community Leaders of the Faculty. 

6.2 – AIESEC in University of Sri Jayewardenepura Emerges Champions in Asia Pacific 

AIESEC in University of Sri Jayewardenepura was able to emerge as the champions of Asia 

Pacific Region in the global awarding ceremony of AIESEC – International Congress 

Electrolux Excellence Awards 2021 organized by AIESEC International. This indeed 

establishes a great milestone in the history of AIESEC Sri Lanka as this marks the highest 

achievement ever in the history of AIESEC Sri Lanka to have been secured by a Local 

Committee. 

AIESEC is the world’s largest youth run organization which has an extensive presence 

worldwide in more than 120 countries. Each year, this international awarding ceremony is held 

in order to recognize the most successful accomplishments made by the AIESEC entities on a 

global scale. All the AIESEC entities in the world compete for these awards and being 

recognized as champions at this widely reputed global platform is in fact a truly commendable 

achievement. AIESEC in University of Sri Jayewardenepura was recognized as the overall 

Champions of the Asia Pacific region for its excellence, bagging two of the most prestigious 

awards; Excellence Award for Local Committees – Asia Pacific Region and the Outgoing 

Global Talent Award – Asia Pacific Region. 

Furthermore, the Local Committee was nominated for the following awards representing the 

Asia Pacific Region; Engage with AIESEC Award, Finance and Legal Award, GTe 

Collaboration Award, Network Engagement Award. AIESEC in University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura has truly set the bars high in excellence and glorified the impactful youth of 

Sri Lanka by giving credibility to the efforts of its valuable membership. It is truly admirable 

how AIESEC in University of Sri Jayewardenepura still initiated productive engagement in the 

youth and fostered growth through various projects and initiatives despite the hardships of the 

Covid 19 pandemic that has threatened the world community at large. 

The President of AIESEC in University of Sri Jayewardenepura, Vikum Wijekoon along with 

his Executive Board would like to deem this opportunity to extend the sincere gratitude to the 

Vice Chancellor Prof.Sudantha Liyanage, Staff advisor of AIESEC in USJ Prof. Prasad 

Jayaweera, the Career Guidance Unit of the university and most importantly, the beloved and 

hardworking membership of the Local Committee who have contributed massively to secure 

this remarkable accomplishment. AIESEC in University of Sri Jayewardenepura, now more 

than ever, is determined to progress forward with refreshed ambition and enthusiasm to create 

a positive impact in the young community of Sri Lanka, while inspiring thousands of young 

lives globally. 
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6.3 – The 5th International Conference on Real Estate Management and Valuation 

(ICREMV 2021) 

The 5th International Conference on Real Estate Management and Valuation (ICREMV 2021) 

organized by the Center for Real Estate Studies (CRES), the research arm of the Department 

of Estate Management and Valuation, Faculty of Management Studies and Commerce, 

University of Sri Jayewardenepura was successfully held on 7th and 8th of October 2021 via 

Zoom as a virtual conference, under the theme of “SMART Real Estate: Towards Unmet Socio-

Economic Needs”. The conference was chaired by Dr. Prathap Kaluthanthri, and the co-

secretaries of ICREMV 2021 were Prof. (Rtd). Janakie Edirisinghe and Dr. Chameera 

Udawattha. The conference was well-received by an audience of 500 plus participants 

including practitioners, academics and students. 

 

The key events of ICREMV 2021 were the Inauguration, Academic Session, Industry Dialog, 

and Real Estate Talk. The conference was reinforced in organizing with the collaboration of 

both academic and industry partners. The academic partner of the conference was the School 

of Architecture and Design, King Mongkut’s University of Technology, Thonburi, Thailand. 

The collaborative partners were the Government Valuation Department, Urban Development 

Authority, Colombo Municipal Council, Institute of Valuers of Sri Lanka, Royal Institution of 

Chartered Surveyors Sri Lanka, EMV RCB Club and EMV Crew. 

 

25th Silver Jubilee International Forestry and Environment Symposium 2020 

Distinguished as the oldest and most renowned Forestry and Environment Symposium in South 

Asia, the International Forestry and Environment Symposium, organized by the Department of 

Forestry & Environmental Science, Faculty of Applied Sciences, USJ for the 25th consecutive 

year was held online under 4 sessions on 22nd and 23rd January 2021 at University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura, Sri Lanka. This is one of the premier events where researchers, academia, 

professionals, policymakers and the industry meet to network, discuss and learn about the latest 

developments in forestry and environment in the region. The theme of this year’s symposium 

was “Post Covid -19 Environment and Society”. 

Key research findings and details under the themes of Impacts of COVID -19 on Society and 

Environment, Forest and Natural Resource Management, Biodiversity and Sustainable 

Tourism, Climate Change and Water Resource Management, Biomass and Sustainable Energy, 

Waste Management and Pollution Control, Wood Science, Wood and Non Wood Industry, 

Environmental Economics in Resource Management, Geology, Soil and Disaster Management 

and Environmental Engineering and Green Technology were discussed by the scholars, local 

and foreign participants including key government officials, academics, researchers and 

business leaders in Forestry and Environment Sectors. 

SDGs covered under section 6 key objectives: 
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OVERALL FINANCIAL REVIEW 

 

Bursar –Mrs. K.T.C. Priyangani 

The Financial statement of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura for the financial year ending 

31st December 2021 have been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector 

Accounting Standards. The systems of financial controls have been maintained as far as 

practicable to ensure propriety of transactions and efficiency in expenditure. 

In 2021, the University of Sri Jayewardenepura had been allocated 949 Mn (2020: 1919 Mn) 

as the capital grant and Rs.5395 Mn (2020:4975 Mn) as the recurrent grant. We were able to 

utilize and manage the limited funding allocation to achieve the goal of the university when 

adhering to the financial management regulations. 

Opportunity, Risk and Challenges 

In 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic has provided enormous challenges and opportunities to the 

university in responding and adapting to an environment of online delivery of courses, small 

numbers of students on university. Since 2020, COVID-19 Outbreak has created disruption for 

our operation and our key stakeholders such as Students, Suppliers and others. As a result of 

closure of universities and impose of the curfew we have face various challenges. University 

admission, examination, graduation ceremony, recruitments were temporally postponed. In 

that Context University started academic and other administrative activities with the help of 

technologies and applications and university has moved more into digital work to provide a 

value-added services to its stakeholders. 

Online meetings, becoming paperless and digital management systems, resulted in improved 

efficiency, transparency, and flexibility. Recognizing the benefits of remote working, adopting 

healthy practices, promoting innovation to address Covid-19, staff development in digital 

literacy skills for re-structuring teaching, learning and assessment were executed concurrently. 

Looking back, the year 2021 has not been at all what we would have imagined. The COVID- 

19 pandemic has marked everything. We have lived through unimaginable experiences. 

However the advance in the digital competencies has increased and thanks to technologies we 

have been able to fulfil the requirement of our stakeholders through digital transformation.

      

Achievements & Recognitions 

 Best Annual Reports and Accounts 

The University of Sri Jayewardenepura was declared for Best Annual Report and Accounts 

Awards for public Sector and it was organized by the Association of Public Finance 

Accountants of Sri Lanka (APFASL), the Public Sector Wing of CA Sri Lanka while 

continuous achievement since year 2017 
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Best Annual Report and Accounts-2017 Winner 

Best Annual Report and Accounts 2018 -Overall 2nd Runner-up of the Competition  

Best Annual Report and Accounts 2020-Silver Award 

 

ERP System  

The Enterprise Resource Plan System is introduced to the University in the year2020 and the 

primary activities of this plan have been completed. In the year 2021 most of financial module 

has been introduced and the service provider is carried out the training to all officers and 

relevant staff members through online. This will be most important to university since most of 

university activities can be carried out efficiently. 

 

 E-Government Procurement (e-GP) 

   

PROMISe is introduced to the University. PROMISe is the Procurement Management Information 

System which is the single Web based interactive Government Procurement System introduced under 

the initiative of the Department of Public Finance of the Ministry of Finance and Mass Media. 

The primary activities of this have been commenced .The Department of Public Finance of the 

Ministry of Finance and Mass Media carried out the training to all officers and relevant staff 

members through online. This will be most important to university since the procurement 

activities can be done transparency, accountability and value-for-money. 

Fixed Assets Register 

The Finance Division commenced the revaluation of Fixed Assets. Updating and maintaining 

the Fixed Assets Unit of the University is done by the Fixed Assets Unit with the consultation 

of Department of Valuation of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura 
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT  

DETAILS OF RECURRENT EXPENDITURE 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Rs '000 

  

 

Subject  

 

Amount 

  

Personnel Emoluments 
                                          

4,591,970  

Traveling 
                                                

3,864  

Supplies 
                                              

81,237  

Maintenance Expenditure 
                                              

38,462  

Contractual Services 
                                            

442,433  

Other  
                                            

387,103  

Capital Grant - Recurrent nature expenditure 
                                            

250,727  

Total  

                                        

5,795,796  

4,591,970 

3,864 

81,237 
38,462 

442,433 

387,103 
250,727 

Recurrent Expenditure

Personnel Emoluments Traveling
Supplies Maintenance Expenditure
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS – COST PER STUDENT FACULTY WISE 

2021 (UNDERGRADUATE INTERNAL STUDENTS) 

 

 

DETAILS OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE: 2018 - 2021 

 

Faculty 

Total 

Expenditure 

(Rs) 

Total No of 

Students 2021 

Cost Per  

Student (Rs) 

a. Applied Science 

      

1,128,978,190  2678 

         

421,575.13  

b. Humanities & Social Sciences 

      

1,104,076,534  3565 

         

309,698.89  

C. Medical Sciences 

         

826,108,602  1174 

         

703,670.02  

D. Management Studies &  Commerce 

      

1,423,009,809  4966 

         

286,550.51  

E. Faculty of Engineering 

         

276,024,144  540 

         

511,155.82  

F. Faculty of Technology  

         

473,417,381  1438 

         

329,219.32  

G. Faculty of Allied  Health Science  

         

211,367,518  395 

         

535,107.64  

H. Faculty of  Urban & Aquatic 

Bioresourse 

               

818,157                         -                          -    

  

     5,443,800,335                 14,756    

    Rs'000 

 

Subject  

 

2018 2019 2020 2021 

a.  Acquisition of Assets 
               

724,950  

               

300,926  

              

211,156  

            

98,638  

b.  Acquisition of Building &   

     Structures 

             

1,395,075  

               

787,141  

           

1,364,228  

          

500,118  

c.  Library Books  
                 

30,914  

                 

21,304  

                

11,231  

            

10,263  

d.  Knowledge Enhancement  

     Grant 

                        

-                           -    

                      

-    

                   

-    

e.  Human Capital Development  

     Project 

                   

9,253  

                 

12,937  

                 

3,601  

              

3,847  

f.   Strengthening Research 
               

369,062  

               

168,857  

              

100,794  

            

99,759  

g. Other(Rehabilitation) 
               

127,597  

               

234,210  

              

223,455  

          

240,665  

Total  

           

2,656,851  

          

1,525,375  

         

1,914,465  

         

953,290  
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS - 2021 

   Rs '000  

Subject  Formula  Expenditure Per 

Student  

a.Recurrent Expenditure per Student (RE)  RE/ No of Students                      393  

b.Capital  Expenditure per Student (CE)  CE/ No of Students                         65  

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS IN THE PRECEDING 05 YEARS (FIGURES IN RS. ‘000) 

      

Subject 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

1.  Personnel 

Emoluments      2,384,967      2,989,044     3,875,309      4,362,927  

     

4,591,970  

2. Traveling           32,170           41,015          30,504            3,757             3,864  

3. Supplies 
        117,133         126,643        142,706           98,479  

          

81,237  

4. Maintenance 

Expenditure           35,884           74,378          28,070           32,441  

          

38,462  

5. Contractual Services 
        496,041         577,564        652,018         548,886  

        

442,433  

6. Other  
        385,306         377,922        547,760         292,028  

        

383,178  

7. Research & 

development               293             1,682              979            1,902             3,925  

8. University Township 

Project & Other         259,834         391,920        414,833         396,948  

        

250,727  

Total     3,711,628     4,580,168   5,692,179    5,737,368     5,795,796  

 

RECEIVED FINANCIAL GRANTS HIGHLIGHTS IN THE PRECEDING 05 YEARS 

(FIGURES IN RS. ‘000) 

      

Subject 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Capital Grant 
     1,139,312      2,653,700     1,510,156      1,919,000          949,000  

Recurrent Grant 
     2,907,750      3,590,000     4,589,000      4,975,000       5,395,000  
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FINANCIAL EXPENDITURE HIGHLIGHTS IN THE PRECEDING 05 YEARS 

(FIGURES IN RS. ‘000) 

 

 

 

Subject 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

Capital Expenditure 
     1,135,182      2,656,851     1,525,375      1,914,465          953,290  

Recurrent Expenditure 
     3,711,628      4,580,168     5,692,179      5,737,368       5,795,796  
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST 

DECEMBER 2021 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL, POSITION AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2021 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST DECEMBER 2021 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 

2021 
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT POLICIES TO THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS – 2021 

 

1. Reporting Entity 

 

University of Sri Jayewardenepura (The University) has been incorporated under 

the Universities Act No.16 of 1978 and subsequent amendments thereto. The 

University has eight faculties and External Extension Course unit. The Main 

Administrative location of the University is at Gangodawila, Nugegoda, Sri 

Lanka while Faculty of Technology and Faculty of Engineering are located at 

Mahenwatta, Pitipana, Homagama and No 41, Lumbini Mawatha, Rathmalana, 

Sri Lanka respectively. The University is under the purview of Ministry of 

Education and University Grants Commission of Sri Lanka. Financial operation 

are decentralized within the faculties while Financial Statements are preparing 

amalgamating all faculties’ financial information.  

1.1.  Date of authorization for issue 

The Financial Statements of the University were authorized for issue by the 

Council dated on 24.02.2022. 

1.2. Reporting period 

The financial period of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura (University) 

represent from 01st January 2021 to 31st December 2021. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 

2.1 Statement of compliance 

 

The Financial Statements of the University have been prepared and presented in 

accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards (SLPSAS’s). 

However Sri Lanka Accounting Standards also have been used in the areas where 

no Public Sector Accounting Standards are available. These Financial Statements 

comprise the statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial 

Performance, Statement of Cash flows, Changes in equity and Notes to the 

Financial Statements. 

 

2.2 Basis of measurement 

 

The Financial Statements of the University have been prepared on the accrual 

basis and apply consistently. No adjustments have been made for inflation 

factors. The financial transaction are recorded on historical cost convention 

except subsequent g recognition of the Assets  on revaluation basis , reported in 

2.12 and retirement benefit obligation reported in 2.19 of Summary of significant 

accounting policies to the financial statements.  
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2.3 Comparative information 

All accounting policies adopted by the University are applied consistently with 

those of the previous year, where necessary comparative figures have been 

adjusted to conform to the changes, in presentation of current year figures. 

 

2.4 Materiality and aggregation 

Each material class of similar items have presented separately in the financial 

statements. Items of dissimilar nature or function have presented separately 

unless they are immaterial. 

2.5 Offsetting 

Assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset unless required 

or permitted by SLPSAS. 

2.6 Going concern 

The University has assessed the ability to continue as a going concern. The 

council of University has a reasonable expectation that the University has 

adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

University does not foresee a need for liquidation or cessation of operations, 

taking into account all available information about future. Accordingly the 

University continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial 

statements. 

2.7 Events  after the reporting period 

Event After the reporting date are those events, both favorable and unfavorable, 

that occur between the reporting date and the date when the Financial Statement 

are authorized for issue. Two types of events can be identified. 

a. Those events provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting 

(adjusting events after reporting date) 

b. Those are indicative of the condition that arose after the reporting date (non 

adjusting events after reporting date) 

 

All material events after reporting date have been considered and where 

appropriate adjustments or disclosures have been made in the Financial 

Statements. 

 

2.8 Functional & presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of the University are measured using 

the currency of the primary economic environment in which the University 

operates (the functional currency). These financial statements are prepared and 

presented in ‘Sri Lankan Rupees’ (Rs.), which is the University’s functional and 

presentation currency.  

2.9 Transaction of foreign currencies and balances 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using 

the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where 

item are re measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the 

settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange 
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rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 

recognized in the income statement.  

2.10 Rounding 

 

The amounts in financial statements have been rounded-off to the nearest rupee, 

except otherwise indicated as permitted by the Sri Lanka Public Sector 

Accounting Standards. 

 

2.11 Budgetary Controls 

 

The program budget of the University has been prepared in line with the financial 

regulations and guideline issued by the Treasury and University Grants 

Commission (UGC). University strictly restricted to the block allocation given 

by the treasury instead of the actual requirement according to the corporate plan 

of the University. University has not been given actual requirement of the funds 

for a particular year. Therefore, additional budgetary allocation may arise during 

the year or commitments for the expenditure may arise for the end of the financial 

year. 

 

Budgets covers the fiscal period of 1st of January 2021 to 31st December 2021 

prepare accordance with the guidelines issued by the UGC. Statement of 

compression of budgets and actual amounts has been attached in the schedule.   

 

2.12 Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) 

The University’s Property Plant & Equipment (PPE) includes Land, Buildings, 

Laboratory and Teaching Equipment, Office Equipment, Furniture& Fittings, 

Library Books and Periodicals, Motor Vehicles, Cloaks, Sport Goods and Other 

Assets. 

a. Basis of recognition 

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future 

economic benefits associate with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of 

the item can be reliably measured. 

i) Initial recognition 

 

Property, Plant & Equipment are initially recognized at cost including the cost of 

purchase with any incidental expenses incurred in bringing the assets to its 

working conditions, for its intend use, Subsequent to initial Recognition and PPE 

are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 

losses.  

 

ii) Subsequent expenditure on existing Property, Plant & Equipment 

 

Expenditure incurred on tangible PPE is charged to the Statement of Financial 

Performance in the period it is incurred, unless it meets one of the following 
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criteria, in which case it is capitalized and depreciated over the relevant useful 

life time. 

 

 Increase in the capacity of the asset. 

 Substantial improvement in the quality of output or reduction in operating 

cost. 

 Significant extension of the life of the asset beyond that confirmed by 

repair and maintenance. 

 Market value of PPE has subsequently increased. 

 Expenditure incurred on repairs or maintenance of property, plant and 

equipment in order to restore or maintain the future economic benefits 

expected from originally assessed standard of performance, is recognized 

as an expense when incurred. 

 

iii) Measurement after recognition 

      Cost model 

 After recognition all the PPE except the classes of Land, Buildings, Motor 

Vehicles, Laboratory and Teaching Equipment, Sports Goods, Other Equipment 

and Furniture & Fittings are carried at its cost less accumulated Depreciation. 

Revaluation model 

After initial recognition below classes of PPE whose fair value can be measured 

reliably has been carried at revalued amounts, which is fair value at the date of 

revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent 

accumulated impairment losses. The University policy is to revalue the below 

assets through department of Valuation  of Sri Lanka, Valuation Department of 

the University of Sri Jayewardenepura or by independent committees appointed 

by the University. 

Land & Buildings,  

Motor Vehicles,  

Office equipment,  

Lab & Teaching Equipment,  

Furniture & Fittings,  

Computer & Accessories, 

Sports goods & Other Assets, 

 

Carrying value of PPE and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date 

to determine whether there is any indication of impairment if any such 

indications exist, then the assets recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment 

loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 

amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of financial 

performances. 

 

iv) Library Books & Cloaks 

Cost of Library books and Cloaks are depreciated on the straight line basis over 

a period of 5 years.  

 

v) Intangible assets  

Computer software and online journals and E- books have been recognized as 

intangible assets when it is probable that future economic benefits that are 
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attributable to the assets will flow the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be 

measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired are stated at cost less accumulated 

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. These costs are amortized over 

their estimated useful lives. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each 

reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 

vi) Buildings rented out for outside parties. 

The University has rented out part of the some of the buildings to outside parties 

to operate student cafeteria and other. These properties are not classified as 

investment properties since these properties are not held either to earn rentals or 

capital appreciation. Accordingly, these properties are also classified as PPE in 

the statements of financial position. 

b. Depreciation 

  

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of Financial Performance on the 

straight line basis on each component of an item of PPE other than freehold land. 
 

Depreciation of an asset begins when it is available for use and ceases at the 

earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale and the date that the 

asset is de-recognized. 
 

The estimated useful life periods are as follows. 
 

Assets Category             Estimated useful life 

Buildings       20 years 

Furniture & Fittings      10 years 

Laboratory and Teaching Equipment    05 years 

Office Equipment      05 years 

  Motor Vehicles       05 years 

  Computer & Accessories     05 years 

  Sports Goods       05 years 

  Other Assets (Including Water, Telephone & Electricity Scheme) 10 years 

                       Partitions and interior works   05 years 

                       Land Scape       05 years 

  Online Journals       01 Year 

Computer Software      05 years 

Library Books       05 years 

Cloaks        05 years 

E-Books       Validity of the Key 

 

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if 

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period, assets carrying amount is written 

down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 

greater than its estimated recoverable amount.  

 

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with 

the carrying amount and gain / (Loss) is recognized in the statements of 

comprehensive income. 
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c. Derecognition 
 

The carrying amount of PPE is derecognized at the disposal or when no future 

economic benefits or service potential is expected from its use or disposal. The 

gain or loss arising from the derecognition shall be included in surplus or deficit 

when the item is derecognized. 

 

 

2.13 Financial Assets  

 

Investment  
 

Investments represent investment in fixed deposits and savings accounts. These 

investments have been accounted in compliance with SLFRS 09. The 

investments in fixed deposits and savings accounts have been classified at 

amortized cost as per SLFRS 09. They are initially measured at fair value and 

subsequently measured at fair value less amortized cost by using effective 

interest rate as required by SLFRS 09. 

 

Staff Loan 
 

The staff loan includes distress loan, computer loan, publication loan, vehicle 

loan and other staff loans. The staff loans have been classified as financial assets 

at amortized cost as per SLFRS 09. Impairment losses in any staff loan have been 

recognized on expected lost method as stipulated in SLFRS 09. Loans given from 

the University provident fund to the employees are directly administered by the 

University Grants commission. Therefore, it is not included in the University 

account.  

 

2.14 Capital work-in-progress 
 

Capital expenses incurred on PPE which are not completed as at the reporting 

date are shown as Capital Work-in-Progress and cost incurred on Capital Work-

in-progress is transferred to PPE when it is available for use. Mobilization 

advances paid for the Construction of these buildings are shown as advances till 

the set off from progressive bills.  

 

2.15 Current assets 

Current Assets classified in Statement of Financial Position are those which are 

expected to be realized in, or consumption in, in the University’s normal 

operating cycle, expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting 

date or cash or a cash equivalent. 

2.16 Inventories 

Inventories which are for consumption and not for resale are stated at cost and 

determined on First in First out (FIFO) basis.  

2.17 Advances to staff and receivables 

Advances to staff and receivable comprise, festival advance and book 

allowances.  

2.18 Cash & cash equivalents  
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Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash in hand, demand deposits and short 

term highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 

subject to insignificant risk of change in value. For the purpose of cash flow 

statement, cash & cash equivalent includes cash in hand and deposits in banks. 

Investments with short term maturity of three months or less from the date of 

acquisition are also treated as cash equivalents. The cash flow statement is 

prepared based on the indirect method. 

2.19 Revenue Recognition – Treasury and Other Grants 

The Government grant for recurrent expenditure, income of research grant and 

projects, other academic assignments have been recognized as revenue when 

they are received and other revenue are recognized on accrual basis. 

2.19.1 Accounting for government grants 

Grant Received form the treasury and the other agencies have been recorded 

and accounted in accordance with Lanka accounting standard (LKAS) 20 

accounting for government grants. 

 

2.19.2 Recurrent grant 

Recurrent grants are recognized in the Statement of Financial Performance on 

cash basis. In addition to that grants received and spent for rehabilitation of 

PPE, research and human capital development also recognize as recurrent grant 

in the statement of financial performance. 

2.19.3  Contribution to capital outlay from outside grants 

The value of PPE purchased out of generated funds & various project funds 

have been shown as “Contribution to Capital Outlay from outside Grants”. 

Balance of the capital outlay account is ammonized over the useful life of the 

assets purchased.   

2.19.4 Capital grants and Donations 

Grants and Donations received by the way of treasury and other lending 

agencies to purchase Property Plant and Equipment have presented in the 

Financial Statements in accordance with the Lanka (LKAS) 20 Government 

Grants. Accordingly it has been recognized as deferred income in the statement 

of financial position and amortized over the useful life of the asset. Capital 

grants for construction and new works are recognized either as work in 

progress or Capital Assets where necessary. Capital grants received to 

purchase assets for research purpose also recognize as deferred income. 

2.19.5 Internally restricted funds 

Internally restricted funds include funds committed for specific purpose. 

Faculty Development Funds represent the cumulative position of 

Faculties/Departments Funds with net unspent balances at the year end. 

 

2.19.6 Endowment fund 

Endowment funds include restricted donations received by the University. 

Investment returns generated from endowment funds are used in accordance 

with the various purpose established by the donors.  

2.19.7 Outside Research Grants 
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Various Grants received for research activities are recorded and considered. As 

a separate project. Funds are utilized as per the agreement with donor agency 

and the governing board of the University.  Research projects have been 

disclosed under liability in the financial statements. When the research is 

completed remaining funds will be remitted to donor or in the case of not 

acceptance the balance, the  amount will  be consider as University income 

after three years of completion. 

 

2.20 Employee benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

Employees are eligible for University Provident Fund (UPF) Contributions, 

Employees’ Trust Fund (ETF) and University Pension Fund. Contributions is in 

line with the respective statutes and regulations. The University pays fixed 

contributions on basic emoluments plus Cost of Living allowances, academic 

allowances and monthly compensation allowances of employees to the 

University Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund, University Pension Fund 

and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. This 

obligation falls within the scope of the defined contribution plan SLPSA 19 on 

employment benefit. Obligation for contribution to define contribution plan are 

recognized in the Statement of Financial Performances as the related service is 

provided. 

Defined benefit plans 

Defined benefit plans are post-employment plans other than defined contribution 

plans.The University is liable to pay gratuity in terms of the Payment of Gratuity 

Act No. 12 of 1983. 

2.21 Liabilities and provisions 

 

Current liabilities 

Current Liabilities are stated at their book value. 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the University has present obligations (legal and 

constructive) as a result of a past event, where it is probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation 

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

2.21.1 Define benefit obligations  

In accordance with the Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, a liability arises for a 

defined benefit obligation to employees. Such defined benefit obligation is a 

post-employment benefit obligation falling within the scope of Sri Lanka 

Public Sector Accounting SLPSAS 19 Employee Benefit. The liability 

recognized in the Statement of Financial Position is the present value of the 

defined benefit obligation at the reporting date. The calculation is performed 

annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method (PUC). 

Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial 
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gains and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of financial 

performances. The University recognizes the increase in defined benefit 

liability attribute to the services provided by employees during the year 

(current service cost) in profit or loss together with interest expenses. The 

discount rate has been derived considering the yield of government bonds. 

 

Accounting Estimate  
 

The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, 

expected rates of return on assets, future salary increase and mortality rates, 

due to the long term nature of the obligation, such estimates are subject to 

significant uncertainly.  

 

2.21.2 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Contingent assets and liabilities have been accounted in accordance with 

SLPSAS8. Accordingly a contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises 

from past events whose existence will be continued by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the 

program or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable 

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. 

A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a 

liability that cannot be measured reliably. The uncertainty does not recognize 

a contingent liability but disclose its existence in the financial statement. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events whose 

existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 

more uncertain future events beyond the control of the University. The 

University does not recognize contingent asset but discloses its existence 

where inflow of economic benefits are probable but not virtually certain. 

 

2.22 Revenue recognition 

 

2.22.1 Income from fee levying courses 

Income from fee levying courses and other activities are recognized on accrual 

basis over the period of the course and degree programmes.  

2.22.2 Finance income 

Interest income is recognized on accrual basis using effective interest rate 

method according to SLFRS 09 due to the absence of SLPSAS for accounting 

of interest income. 

2.22.3 Recoveries from Violation of Bonds 

Amounts received from bond violators and amount recovered from their UPF 

and Gratuity are recognized as income on cash basis and create respective fund 

of bond violation. The fund will be utilized for research activities and 

innovation, staff development as per the direction of the University Grants 

Commission 
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2.22.4 Expenditure recognition 

Expenses incurred in carrying out all activities of the University are recognized 

on an accrual basis and charged to the statement of Financial Performance 

2.23 Taxes 

 

Income Tax 

University is not liable to pay income tax on its income of the ordinary course of 

the business as University is considered as an exempt organization as per the 

Inland Revenue at no.24 of 2017 and amendments there to. 

 

Advance Personal Income Tax (APIT)/Advance Income Tax 

 

The University deduct Advance Personal Income Tax (APIT) as per the consent 

of the employee on primary income and secondary income and remit the 

deducted amount to the Department of Inland Revenue. Further Advance Income 

Tax (AIT) is deducted from rent payment or any other services on the request of 

the rent owners or suppliers and remit deducted amount to the Department of 

Inland Revenue 

 

Stamp Duty 

Stamp Duty is deducted on payments as per the Stamp Duty act and remint the 

deducted values to the Department of Inland Revenue. 

 

The University add here to the changes in tax laws in the country and tax is 

charged accordingly. 

  

2.24 Statement of cash flows 

The cash flow statement has been prepared by using The Indirect Method in 

accordance with the SLPSAS 2 whereby gross cash receipts and gross cash 

payments of operating activities, finance activities and investing activities have 

been recognized. Cash and cash equivalents comprise short term, highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject 

to an insignificant risk of changes in value.  

 

2.24.1 Accelerating Higher education Expansion Development Operation 

(AHEAD) and Science and Technology Human Resource Development 

Project (STHRD) 

AHEAD project is operated by the University for which funds are allocated by 

the Ministry of Higher Education under the World Bank funding and STHRD 

project is operated by the University for which funds are allocated by the 

Ministry of Higher Education under the Asian Development Bank. Funds 

allocated for the projects are not included in the annual budget of the University 

and directly disburse through the ministry. Therefore financial transactions of 

this project are not included in the financial statements of the University other 

than the disclosed in notes to the financial statements. 
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NOTES 

 

UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA 

CAPITAL GRANT - RECURRENT NATURE 

       Note 01  

Serial 

No 
Project Name  

2021 2020 

 Rs.   Rs.  

1  Rehabilitation Expenses          138,000,000          267,797,471  

2  Strengthening Research             86,152,800            89,521,992  

3 
 Competency Building & Capacity 

enhancement   
                       -                1,177,475  

4  Postgraduate/Doctoral Projects               3,847,200              2,473,050  

5 
Accreditation Project- Faculty of Management 

Studies & Commerce 
                       -                1,860,282  

Total          228,000,000          362,830,270  
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UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA 

PROFIT ON DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY PLANT & EQUIPMENT & LIBRARY BOOKS 

         Note 03  

Description   Amount  Rs.    Amount  Rs.   

  2021 2020 

 Sale Proceed    
                   

7,436  
  

      

3,133,319  

 Total    
                   

7,436  
  

      

3,133,319  

 Less - Net Carrying Value          

 Cost  
             

7,436  
  

    

10,778,927  
  

 Accumulated Depreciation    
             

7,436  
                        -    

    

10,284,023  

         

494,904  

 Balance   
                   

7,436  
  

      

2,638,416  
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UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA 

CAPITAL GRANTS - OTHER RECURRENT EXPENDITURE  

    Note 05 

Description  

2021 2020 

 Rs.   Rs.  

Rehabilitation & Improvement of Capital Assets  
        

147,064,118  

        

281,607,359  

World Class University Status Programme                        -    
              

663,499  

Strengthening Research 
          

99,385,327  

        

108,565,976  

Post Graduate Doctoral Project  
            

3,847,200  

            

2,473,050  

Competency Building & Capacity Enhancement of the  Staff                         -    
            

1,777,475  

Accreditation Project- Faculty of Management Studies & 

Commerce 
                       -    

            

1,860,282  

Total 
        

250,727,166  

        

396,947,641  
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UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA 

 LIBRARY BOOKS & CLOAKS 

   Note 07 

Description 
Library Books & 

Periodicals  
Cloaks Total  

  Rs. Rs. Rs. 

 Cost / Revalued Balance as at 1st 

January 2021  
        498,715,966            11,697,228          510,413,195  

 Additions             31,138,019              1,123,900            32,261,919  

 Disposals/ Adjustment                    (7,436)                    (7,436) 

 Balance as at 31st December 2021          529,846,549            12,821,128          542,667,677  

Accumulated Depreciation  

Balance as at 1st January 2021 
        474,372,994              9,765,085          484,138,079  

 Depreciation  for the Year            28,097,770                322,979            28,420,749  

 Depreciation for Disposals                   (7,436)                    (7,436) 

 Balance as at 31st December 2021          502,463,328            10,088,064          512,551,391  

Net Carrying amount  as at 31st 

December 2021 
          27,383,221             2,733,064            30,116,286  

Net Carrying amount  as at 31st 

December 2020 
          24,342,972             1,932,143            26,275,115  
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UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 Note 09 

Description Rs. 

 Cost/Revalued Balance as at 1st January 2021               56,944,604  

 Additions during the year               34,577,536  

 Removal of Assets                 (7,627,908) 

 Balance as at 31st December 2021               83,894,232  

Accumulated Amortization  Balance as at 1st January 2021              38,820,741  

 Amortization  for the Year               16,764,955  

 Removal of Asset Amortization                (5,088,822) 

 Balance as at 31st December 2021               50,496,873  

Net Carrying amount  as at 31st December 2021              33,397,359  

Net Carrying amount  as at 31st December 2020              18,123,863  

 Note 09-A 

Removal of Intangible Asset due to impairment  (Cost)                 7,627,908  

Accumulated Amortization               (5,088,822) 

Impairment Loss                 2,539,086  
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 Note 21 

 Balance as at 

31.12.2021  

 Rs. 

1 Fund - Dr. Siromi Samarasinghe Gold Medal for best student in Chemistry Honors Degree            108,672 

2  Hema Wijewardene Scholarship Fund            113,833 

3  G.B. Senanayake Scholarship Fund              27,003 

4  Ganegama Sri Saranankara  Scholarship Fund            183,340 

5  P.L. Perera Scholarship Fund            120,455 

6  S.T. Sinnadore Scholarship  Fund              74,515 

7  A.W. Kaluarchchi Scholarship Fund              93,290 

8  Hema Ellawala Scholarship Fund            117,868 

9  Anulasiri Asilin Dharmawardene Scholarship Fund                  736 

10  Bellanwila Somaratana  Scholarship Fund              68,588 

11  Prof. Linus Silva Swarna Muddrika Fund (Business Administration)              28,215 

12  Baddegama Wimalawansa Scholarship Fund            183,954 

13  Wimal Balagalle Scholarship Fund            797,745 

14  R.M. Dingirimenike Scholarship Fund              29,742 

15  W.A.M. Weerakoon Scholarship Fund              62,586 

16  Sirimathie Wewala Scholarship Fund            304,766 

17  Patric Mendis Scholarship Fund              91,761 

18  Kanthi Silva Scholarship Fund              50,963 

19  W.E. Ratnayake Scholarship Fund            128,783 

20  Wimalendra Waturegama Scholarship Fund              53,934 

21  C.V. Ariyaratne Scholarship Fund                2,725 

22  Hydramani Scholarship Fund             230,882 

23  Nandasena Ratnapala Scholarship Fund              64,713 

24  Gold Medal Fund -  Food Science and Technology - 2010            142,695 

25  Prof. M.M. Karunanayaka Gold Medal Fund            225,495 

26  Prof. Tuley De Silva Scholarship Fund               57,692 

27  Kingsly Silva Scholarship Fund             260,658 

28  Prof. Ariyapala Perera Gold Medal Fund             147,737 

29  Town & Rural Planning Valuation Scholarship Fund              65,755 

30  Senaka Bibile Scholarship Fund             193,010 

31  Department of Management & Valuation Scholarship Fund            204,941 

32  Department of Estate  Management & Valuation Interest  Fund            194,427 

33  Merit Award Scheme Fund            153,217 

34  L.A.C. Allas Scholarship Fund               61,283 

35  R.A.A. Perera Scholarship Fund              89,813 

36  C.I.C. (Colombo) Scholarship Fund              104,700 

 Contd. 

UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA

  ENDOWMENT FUND 

 

Serial 

no 

 Description 
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 Note 21 

 Balance as at 

31.12.2021 

Rs.

37  Jayantha Pathberiya Scholarship Fund               42,592 

38  Weerakoon Matugala Scholarship Fund            248,201 

39  Niroshan Sri Dewa Scholarship Fund            288,375 

40  Prof. Dayasiri Fernando Scholarship Fund            292,000 

41  M.T.M. Jefry Scholarship Fund             264,432 

42  Best Student in Applied Sciences Merit Award Fund              391,889 

43  Clinical Pediatric Medal Fund            241,270 

44  Prof. Dhammika Wanasingha Gold Medal Fund             272,267 

45  Prof. P. Wilson Gold Medal Fund            238,081 

46  Prof. D.L Abeywardana Gold Medal Fund            570,747 

47  Virtusa Academic Excellence Award Fund             224,986 

48  Professor. E.R Jansz Gold Medal in Biochemistry Fund            223,723 

49  Ernst & Young Endowment  Fund           8,349,907 

50  Prof Piyasiri Amilasith Yapa Gold Medal Fund             303,809 

51  N.I.B.M. Business Economics Gold Medal Fund            206,873 

52  Jayewardenepura Canada Alumini Association Scholarship Fund            220,112 

53  Prof. Linus Silva Swarna Muddrika Fund (Public Administration)              32,856 

54  Prof. W.S. Fernando Gold Medal Fund - Statistics Award            200,406 

55  Prof. W.S Fernando Gold Medal Fund - Physical & Inorganic Chemistry            223,801 

56  Prof. H.G. Nandadasa Swarna Mudrika Fund             199,384 

57  Security & Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka Gold Medal Fund              92,932 

58  Bsc. Forestry and Environmental Sciences Gold Medal Fund            249,877 

59  Microsoft  Gold Medal Fund            277,656 

60  Madanwala Sri Dharmodaya Gold Medal Fund              159,226 

61  Prof. S. Thilakarathna Economics Gold Medal Fund            144,680 

62  Prof. P.C.B. Fernando Gold Medal Fund            194,018 

63  Prof. W.A. Jayathissa Gold Medal Fund             158,912 

64  Prof. Upali Wickramasinghe Gold Medal Fund             165,481 

65  Prof. R. A. Dayananda Gold Medal Fund            179,984 

66  Department of Decision Sciences - I T  Management (Special) Gold Medal Fund            115,747 

67  Scholarship Fund from Gangarama Viharaya - Hunupitiya                6,000 

68  Prof.  Arthur Bamunuarachchi Gold Medal Fund            159,606 

69  Ganegama Sri Saranankara Scholarship Fund - II              59,687 

70  Endowed  KPMG Professor in Accountancy Fund         10,037,863 

71  Kalashuree Piyasara Shilpadhipathi Gold Medal Fund             169,691 

72  N.D.W. Lionel Gold medal in Pharmacology Fund             157,735 

 Contd. 

  ENDOWMENT FUND 

 

Serial 

no 

 Description 

UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA
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 Note 21 

 Balance as at 

31.12.2021 

Rs.

73  Ramani Samarathunga Gold Medal Fund             136,565 

74  Sustainability Fund - Dept of Estate Management & Valuation             782,657 

75  Hardship Fund for the students of Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce          3,384,580 

76  Gold Medal Fund - BSc ( Honor) in Applied Science            158,008 

77
 Gold Medal for the Best Performing Students at the Polymer Science and Technology at the BSc. 

Degree 
           159,308 

78  Prof Tuley De Silva Gold Medal Msc Science & Technology            161,808 

79 Hardship Fund- Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences            352,657 

80  Prof A M Abesekara Gold Medal - Faculty of Applied Sciences            158,008 

81  Chartered Institute for Sec . and Inv. Global Gold Medal             160,508 

82 Pro.Mandis Rohanadeera Scholership Fund            125,779 

83 Prof. P. Athukorala Gold Medal Fund - Department of Political Science            137,664 

84 Fund - Rev. Kudakathnoruwe Siddhartha Nayaka Thero Gold Medal            137,464 

85 Fund - Prof. Sunethra Weerakoon Gold Medal            137,464 

86 Fund - Prof. S.C. Wijerathne Gold Medal            137,464 

87 Fund - Nandasena Rathnapala Gold Medal            139,865 

88 Fund - Gold Medal for the Sport Science & Management Degree            141,565 

89 Fund - Rev.Walpola Rahula Gold medal for best perfomance medical student            109,582 

90 Fund - Rev.Walpola Rahula Gold medal for best perfomance FMSC student            111,906 

91 Fund - Department of Entrepreneurship Gold Medal Fund            128,346 

92 Fund - A.V. Suraweera Gold Medal            139,065 

93 Fund - Prof.B.A.Tennyson Perera Gold Medal            128,955 

94 Fund -Dr.T.W.K.Rajapaksha Meomorial Gold Medal Fund            508,116 

95 Fund- Rev. Hikkaduwe Sri Sumangala Gold Medal            136,039 

96 Fund - Prof.Bellanwila Wimalarathana Anunayaka Thero Gold Medal            128,379 

97
Fund - The Gold Medal Awarded by Aquatic Students Association University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura
           115,993 

98 Fund- Prof. Malani Adagama Gold Medal            121,625 

99  Prof. P. Wilson Gold Medal Fund - Faculty of Medical Sciences            167,678 

100  Prof Antoinette Perera Gold Medal - Faculty of Medical Sciences            160,508 

101 Gita Fernando Gold Medal for the Best Student in Pharmacy            136,565 

102 Gold Medal offered by the Pioneer Doctors of Faculty of Medical Sciences - 2018              98,700 

103 Fund - Gold Medal Awarded by Pioneer Doctors                6,754 

104 Fund -Gold Medal for the Best Performance at 2nd Exam for the MBBS            500,000 

    39,314,867 

UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA

  ENDOWMENT FUND 

 

Serial 

no 

 Description 

 Total  
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 Note 22 

1 International Conference on Innovation & Emerging Technology -  2021              96,255 

2 Curricula Enrichment delivered through the Application of Location-based Services to ITS          2,218,711 

3 ERRC- Open University Sri Lanka- Faculty of Applied Science              46,000 

4 ERRC Waste Management Authority -Faculty of Applied Science            190,908 

5 EU grant agreement (610012-EPP-1-2019-1-LK-EPPKA2) on BRITAE          4,969,212 

6 TWAS Research Grants            577,645 

7 Higher Certificate Course in Eco-Tourism, Wildlife and Nature Interpretation            538,100 

8 Consultancy Service for the project Opportunities to improve cooking stives in use on tea plantation          1,026,044 

9
Development of Low Glycemic Cane Sugar and Wheat Bread Incorporated with Natural Plant 

Ingredients
         2,058,031 

10 Norochchole Marine Ecology Survey            209,857 

11
Spatial intensity & wire-snare poaching on non-target threatened mammals in upcountry tea 

landscape
           855,258 

12 Center for Nanocomposite Research -Faculty of Applied Science              66,000 

13 SHIFT Project Ecological Survey Galle            185,107 

14 Technology  transfer of "Sudarshana Suspension"            500,000 

15 TPIC Project Part II          3,210,000 

16 CISRO- Marine debris monitoring program          3,393,285 

17 Environmental and Social Management Systems - Centre for Sustainability            666,750 

18 Kandakaduwa Environmental Impact Assessment  -  Centre for Sustainability              39,801 

19 Common Research Fund-   Faculty of Applied Science          1,155,145 

20 Covid 19- Crisis Inspiring Innovation of University Students            160,000 

21 NARESHA Research Project            188,620 

22 World Health Organization Project          1,610,597 

23 Sri Lanka Natural Resource Energy Authority              20,175 

24 National Institute of Fisheries and Nautical Engineering              24,970 

25 Sida Sarec Research Co-operation Fund - Dr. Deheragoda                4,463 

26 ICBM 2013          1,832,663 

27 DEMEN Research              63,639 

28 Research Promotion Project          1,115,973 

29 Reproductive Health Programme              75,600 

30 The German Society of Dermatology Fund          3,134,841 

31 Research Grant -University Grants Commission              26,808 

32 Ph.D. Research Grant            371,381 

33 Molecular Genetic Analysis & Testing of Genetic Diseases of Muscle            528,389 

34 Swimming Pool & Religious Place Grant - University Grants Commission          1,829,080 

35 Information Technology - Library Services            109,526 

 Contd. 

 Balance as at 

31.12.2021 

UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA

OUTSIDE RESEARCH GRANTS

 

Serial 

no 

 Description 
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 Note 22 

36 Epidemiology and Genetics of Strock project Emperial College              28,115 

37 Age Related Cytoskeletal Pathology in Human Brain -  University of New South Wales              89,381 

38 North East Power Transmission Development  Project             570,138 

39 Ambassador's Grant US - Comprehensive Documentation of Historical Dutch Fort of Gall               10,120 

40 Transmission Line From Puttalam to Anuradhapura              32,031 

41 "Three Languages Sri Lanka"  Programme          1,540,347 

42 Certificate Course in Teaching in Higher Education        11,162,961 

43 Sports Science & Management - Faculty of Applied Science            359,220 

44 Postgraduate Research - Dr. K.M.T.D. Gunasekera - Dept of Chemistry            506,957 

45
Consultancy for Sections of Ecology & Sociology EE 132 KV Transmission Line Project from 

Thulhiriya
           701,260 

46 220 KV Transmission Line from Mannar to Anuradhapura Via Vavunia          1,249,196 

47 132 KV Transmission Line Project from Nadukuda to Mannar            516,335 

48 APN Grant For a Linux Cluster Computer -  Dr. R.S. Lokupitiya              46,381 

49 International Symposium of Forestry & Environment - Faculty of Applied Science            250,000 

50
VET Plan For Environmental Protection Sector to VET Plan Development - Faculty of Applied 

Science
           297,045 

51 Museum Development Income Dept. Of Zoology              34,025 

52 Energy Symposium Sri Lanka 2015              64,000 

53 Center For Sustainability Workshops 1 -Faculty of Applied Science              81,653 

54 Central Expressway Project            985,282 

55 Natural Products Symposium enhancing Global Marketability of Sri Lanka Natural Products            584,975 

56 Center for Kidney Research          5,000,000 

57 Center for Cancer Research          4,478,412 

58 Center for Water & Algae Research          4,377,050 

59 Center for Management Studies & Commerce          5,000,000 

60 Center for Social Sciences & Multidisciplinary Research          4,076,354 

61 International Forestry Symposium 2016            225,000 

62 Control the spread of invasive aquatic plant            545,075 

63 International Industrial Mathematics Conference -Faculty of Applied Science              14,690 

64 Center for Gender Equity/Equality          1,234,062 

65 Forest Restoration Project at Yagirala -Faculty of Applied Science            232,040 

66 Workshop on Polymer CAMR          2,025,689 

67
Consultancy Service for EIA for Reinstatement of Kudawilachchiya Tank at Anuradhapura-

Faculty of Applied Science
           226,751 

68 Indo - Sri Lanka  Joint Research Programme -Faculty of Applied Science              40,000 

69 Vidyodya Undergraduate Research Day -2018 -Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences            250,000 

70 Mapping of Beach Access Project- Dept of Geography            694,414 

 Contd. 

OUTSIDE RESEARCH GRANTS

 

Serial 

no 

 Description 
 Balance as at 

31.12.2021 

UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA
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 Note 22 

71 UNDP Project 2020 -Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences          2,418,200 

72
Monitoring and Mitigation of Environmental Pollution of Karadiyana Controlled  Dump at  

Thumbovila
           164,889 

73
Restoration and Sustainable Management of Madinnagoda Urban Wetland and Diyasaru Wetland 

Park Ecosys
         3,450,255 

74 The International Water Management Institute(IWMI) Water Analysis Project            306,600 

75
Registrar General's Department - Management Assistant Non-Technical 02/Grade 111 Selection 

Test
           326,050 

76 Biodiversity Monitoring of Proposed New Kelani Bridge Construction Site              26,000 

77 Water Quality Analyse of Coastal Conservation Department            213,400 

78 Timber Process Innovation Center          7,785,269 

79 Center for Water Quality & Algae Research Training Program            155,298 

80 Habitat Restoration at Madinnagoda Urban Wetland            815,000 

81 Teacher Training Program - Faculty of Applied Science - 2018            448,579 

82 IAEA Grant-Faculty of Applied Science            106,579 

83 OWSD - ECWS Fellowship -Faculty of Applied Science              77,325 

84 Forest Restoration Project in Yagirala Forest for South Asia Gateway Terminals Ltd.              88,916 

85 ICRP/NSF - NSFC/19/BS/01            601,998 

86 Erasmus + Capacity Building in Higher Education :Master's Curriculum in Data Science          8,560,813 

87 CSR Project on Forest Restoration and Biodiversity Conservation at Yagirala              42,400 

88 Ecological Studies, Surveys & Implementation - Negombo              63,190 

89 Providing Consultancy Services for carrying out the EIA report for proposed Mankulam Town            338,973 

90 Forest Restoration of 400ha in Karuwalagaswewa              37,939 

91
Providing Consultation for Obtaining FSC Certification for DR Manufacturing Co. PVT Ltd 

(Damro)- Faculty of Applied Science
           227,325 

92
The Project Anti-Pyretic drug between USJP & Hettigoda Industries under the Centre for PMHP  

Research
           662,531 

93
Travel Allowance for Meeting in Uppsala , Sweden - Research Project -Faculty of Medical 

Sciences
               1,164 

94 Test conducted from automated Hematology Analyzer in the Dept of Pathology  Fund              52,700 

95 NSF/SCH/2016/01 -Faculty of Medical Sciences            231,792 

96 NHI Grant - Prof. N.Malavige            429,670 

97 HQHSR - Alliance for Health Policy (Prof. Antoinette Perera)              54,883 

98 NSF Grant - SP/CIN/2016/02            469,621 

99 Sri Lanka Institute of Nanotechnology - Dr. Manjula Weerasekera              76,501 

100 CKDU in Sri Lanka -Faculty of Medical Sciences            177,395 

101 Glycemic Index Testing of Vitagen - Faculty of Medical Sciences              96,600 

102 Glycaemic Index Testing of Multigrain Bread Produce by ITI- Faculty of Medical Sciences            329,600 

103 SL- Indo - US Cytometry Workshop - 2018            450,892 

104
Identifying and Documenting Best Practice in Maternal and Child Health Research - Faculty of 

Medical Sciences
           652,717 

 Contd. 

OUTSIDE RESEARCH GRANTS

 

Serial 

no 

 Description 
 Balance as at 

31.12.2021 
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 Note 22 

105 Grants From MOU Chembio USA-Centre for Dengue Research                  829 

106 Symposium of Emerging Viral Infections 2018            109,620 

107 Workshop on Medication Safety for Pharmacists-Faculty of Allied Health Science            206,681 

108 SLINTEC Grant -Centre for Dengue Research            167,566 

109 International Medical Undergraduate Research Conference 2019 -Faculty of Medical Sciences          1,925,000 

110 NSF Research Grant (ICRP/NSF-NSFC/2019/HS/02)          1,765,304 

111
Glycaemic Index Testing "Maliban Malt" distributed by Maliban Product Ltd -Faculty of Medical 

Sciences
           101,880 

112 World Health Organization Research Project -Prof. Sagarika Ekanayake          1,856,100 

113 Compiling and publishing a Caregiver’s guide for disabled elders-Faculty of Medical Sciences            672,600 

114 NIHR Global RECHARGE Project          1,676,271 

115 COVID 19 -Faculty of Medical Sciences              98,781 

116 PCR Testing  - 2020      141,733,329 

117 COVID-19 Outbreak in the Nevel Base, Welisara WHO-Faculty of Medical Sciences        14,818,650 

118 T-Cell Grant-British High Commission-Faculty of Medical Sciences            297,320 

119 Sung Kyunkwan University Research -Faculty of Medical Sciences            841,965 

120 PATH Grant-Prof.Guwani Liyanage            682,697 

121
Asian American Centres for Arbovirus Research and enhanced surveillance (NIH) - Allergy 

Immunology & Cell Biology Unit
       13,485,632 

122
SARS-CoV-2 Antigen detecting rapid diagnostic test implementation project (WHO) - Allergy 

Immunology & Cell Biology Unit
       32,372,201 

123 Glycemic Index Testing of Promalt Diabetic - Faculty of Medical Sciences            176,400 

124 Primary Health Care & Covid 19 WHO-Prof. Antoinette Perera          1,918,604 

125
Association of metabolic parameters and nonalcoholic fatty liver disease -Faculty of Medical 

Sciences
           496,257 

126 Efficiency of Collection of Revenues by the Local Authorities            439,281 

127
Consultancy on Development of Service Quality Management Model for MMT Project 

Makumbura
             13,300 

128 Manage & Conduct of Training Programme (Bus Operators )(Kottawa-Makumbura MMC)              58,995 

129 Techno-Economics-Societal Sustainable Development Training in Sri Lanka Project          4,724,931 

130 International Conference of Real Estate Management 2020          1,305,182 

131 SECRA ERASMUS + Project          7,512,884 

132
Proposal for Conducting Social Survey Residential & Commercial Prosperities for Nawam 

Mawatha - Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce
           300,115 

133
Marketing Initiatives for Traditional and Rural Industrialists - Faculty of Management Studies & 

Commerce
         3,519,102 

134 Research Grant Funded by UK - Prof.Padmalal          4,562,160 

135 Covid  - 19 Water Test Grant by Ministry of Water          2,416,975 

136 Impact of pollution on tropical & temperate forests of South Asia            150,743 

  350,976,205  Total  

OUTSIDE RESEARCH GRANTS

 

Serial 

no 

 Description 
 Balance as at 

31.12.2021 
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Note 23

 As at  

31.12.2021 

 As at  

31.12.2020 

 Rs.  Rs. 

1  Deferred Income - Faculty of Management Studies & Commerce  82,277,882        12,585,896        

2  Deferred Income - Faculty of Graduate Studies  129,779,086      196,676,478      

3  Deferred Income - Faculty of Humanities & Social Sciences  26,787,682        3,518,683          

4  Deferred Income - External Examinations 767,500,107      496,573,070      

5  Deferred Income -Faculty of Medical Sciences  1,583,194          1,094,000          

6  Deferred Income -Faculty of Applied Science 10,268,228        -                   

1,018,196,178 710,448,127    

Note 24

 As at  

31.12.2021 

 As at  

31.12.2020 

 Rs.  Rs. 

1 1,432,083,342    1,312,962,990    

2 90,934,893        90,871,943        

3  Add :  Interest Cost on defined benefit obligation 114,566,667      137,861,114      

4  Less :  Actuarial gain / loss on defined benefit obligation 106,611,112      51,700,476        

5 48,509,475        57,912,229        

1,482,464,315 1,432,083,342 

Note 25

 As at  

31.12.2021 

 As at  

31.12.2020 

 Rs.  Rs. 

1  Sundry Deposit   25.01 6,722,319          12,210,940        

2  Refundable Library & Lab Deposits - Faculty of Graduate Studies  25.02 17,984,700        16,371,700        

3  Refundable Cloaks Fees 11,786,350        6,456,350          

4  Tender Deposit  25.03 3,728,436          2,758,554          

5  Refundable Library  Deposit - FMSC 1,695,000          

41,916,804      37,797,544      

 

Serial 

 no 

 Description 

 Sub 

Schedule 

No. 

 Description 

Total

DEPOSITS REFUNDABLE

UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA

 Less: Payment  during the year  

 Add :  Provision for the year (Current Service  Cost) 

  Balance as at 31.12.2021

 PROVISION FOR DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

 Balance as at 01.01.2021 

DEFERRED  INCOME - EXTENSION PROGRAMMES

 

Serial 

 no 

 Description 

 

Serial 

 no 

Total
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UNIVERSITY OF SRI JAYEWARDENEPURA 

 ACCRUED EXPENSES & OTHER PAYBLE  

         Note 26  

 Serial 

no  
 Description    

 As at 31.12.2021   As at 31.12.2020  

 Rs.   Rs.  

1  Sundry Creditors              163,068,417           323,043,114  

2  Payables              400,432,333           351,364,855  

3  Extension Programmes                35,215,279             54,189,343  

 Total              598,716,029           728,597,312  
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Note 29 

Contingencies and Commitments  

The contingencies and commitments are disclosed below. 

Contingent Liabilities and Assets 

No Description of the case Matter Remark Manage

ment 

Comme

nt 

 Contingent Liabilities  
1 Homagama Labor Tribunal – 33/1400/2018  

Case filed by Mr.J.V.T.U.K.Jayasekara – Plead – 

reinstate  

Next Date: 02.03.2022 

Labour 

Matter 

 

 

Pending Manage

ment is 

having 

constant 

supervisi

on for 

the cases 

to have a 

judgment 

in favor 

of the 

Universit

y of Sri 

Jayeward

enepura 

and 

compens

ation 

value 

cannot be 

estimated 

in the 

ground 

of 

current 

position 

of the 

case. 

2 USAB 969 Appeal filled by Dr. Wijayantha 

Udayakumara in which the University has been cited as 

a respondent regarding on the interview for the post of 

Lecturer Probationary (Department of History) Order 

Pending 

 

USAB 

Matter 

 

 

Pending 

3 Homagama Labor Tribunal – 33/1502/2020  

Case filed by Manoj Upashantha – Plead -reinstate  

Next Date: 26.01.2022  

Labour 

Matter 

 

Pending 

4 Supreme Court – SC/FR/170/2021 

Case filed by Senior Professor D.B.P.H.Dissabandara 

against the University regarding the director post of 

Post Graduate Institute Management (PIM) 

 

Fundamenta

l Rights 

matter 

Pending 

5 Supreme court – SC/FR/283/2020 

Case filed by Dr.Sunethra Kankanmge against the 

University regarding the Professorship interview 

 

Fundamenta

l Rights 

matter 

Pending 

6 Supreme Court –SC/FR/216/2021 

Case field by Pasindu Hirushan against the University 

regarding his accident 

 

Fundamenta

l Rights 

matter 

Pending 

7 Supreme Court –SC/FR/104/2021 

Case field by Mrs.Vishaka Sooriyabandara against the 

University regarding the professorship interview 

 

Fundamenta

l Rights 

matter 

Pending 

8 Contractors of the construction project are requesting 

the price variation to the contract value due to increase 

of the prices of contract materials. Capital commitment 

value will be increased by maximum 20% of the 

contract value for the contracts which has more than 

three months contract period and the University has 

taken step to obtain the approval for the variations. 

 

Requested 

for contract 

price 

variation 

Pending The 

Universit

y has 

taken 

step to 

obtain 

relevant 

approval

s to 

amend 

the 

agreeme

nt 

  Contingent Asset  
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9 Nugegoda District Court - M/3020/2018  

Case filed by University against 

Mrs.B.R.M.N.Rathnayaka (Bond Recovery)  

Value – Rs. 10,762,632.36 

Next Date: 18.01.2022 

 

Bond 

Violation  

 

 

Pending 

Continue

s follow-

up is 

made by 

the 

Universit

y to 

recover 

this 

amount 

10 Nugegoda District Court – 4379/2021/M 

Case filed by University of Sri Jayewardenepura 

against Dr.S.R.N.Colombage 

Next date 10.05.2022 

 

Nugegoda District Court – 4380/2021/M 

Case filed by University of Sri Jayewardenepura 

against Dr. S.R.N.Colombage’s sureties. 

Next date 28.02.2022 

 

Bond 

Violation 

 

 

Pending 

11 Nugegoda District Court M/2949/2018  

New Arts Theater. Case Filed by University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura.  

Amount Rs. 1,065,229.27 

Next Date: 12.01.2022 

 

Termination 

of 

Agreement 

 

 

Pending 

Legal 

Case 

(Pending

) 

12 Nugegoda District Court M/2950/2018  

Chemistry Building. Case Filed by University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura.  

Amount Rs. 720,010.56 

Next Date: 12.01.2022 

 

Termination 

of 

Agreement 

 

 

Pending 
Pending 

13 Homagama High Court – ALT 10/2018  

Case filed by University against the decision of Labour 

Tribunal.  

 

Homagama High Court – ALT 11/2018 

Case filed by Mr.Ranga Prasad against decision of 

Labour Tribunal. The University has been cited as a 

respondent.  

 

Supreme Court – SC/HC/14/2021/LA 

Case filed by Mr.Ranga Prasad against the decision of 

High Court. The University has been cited as a 

Respondent. 

 

 

Appeal 

Matter 

 

Order given – 

awaiting 

reimburse the 

deposit amount 

(around 

Rs.1,600,000/-) 

 

 

 
Pending 

 

Order 

given – 

The 

deposited 

amount 

Rs.1,356,

754 to be 

receivabl

e from 

Homaga

ma High 

Court 

since 

judgment

.  

14 Bond Violation  

S.R.G.S.K.Samarasinghe  

K.A.N.Dilhani 

H.G.Gnanathilaka  

L.R.C.Perera  

A.A.I.S.Pathirana 

P.D.N.G.Weerasooriya 

 

 

Pending to 

file (AG’s 

Department) 

 

Pending 

 

Pending 

to file ( 

AG’s 

Departm

ent)  

15 Violation of Bonds movements in year 2021. 

Total Receivables as at 

01.01.2021 

   

101,278,462.52  

Newly Added Bonds in 2021  

         

28,318,300.12  

 

Bond 

Violation 

 

Pending 

 

Continue

s follow-

up is 

made by 

the 

Universit

y to 
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Capital Commitment  

1. Urban Development Authority handed over the procession of the land Mahahenwatta Pitipana, 

Homagama, 20 acres to the University of Sri Jayewardenepura, to construct a building for the 

Faculty of Technology. Value of the land is Rs. 960 million and payment will be made by the 

Ministry of Higher Education. The land will be recorded as an asset to the Financial Statement 

of the University after the transfer of ownership of the land.  

 

2. Divisional secretariat of Homagama, handed over the procession of the land called 

Kakunagahawatta of No. 587, Maththegoda, Homagama, 10 acres to the University of Sri 

Jayewardenepura, to construct a building for Faculty of Engineering. Value of the land is 

Rs.975 million and paid by the Ministry of Land in year 2020. The land will be recorded as an 

asset to the Financial Statement of the University after the transfer of ownership of the land. 

 

3. The University has deposited Rs.13 million in Kesbewa divisional Secretariat to acquire the 

land at 4th Lane, Egodawatta Road, Borrelesgamuwa. Value of the land is estimated to Rs.52 

million. Process of acquisition is being carried out by the University.    

                                                          

4. Maharagama Divisional Secretariat has handed over the possession of the land of Hemavimana, 

Sorath Mawatha, Gangodawila on 20.03.2014 and The Government Valuer has valued the land 

as Rs.0.5 million per perch. Extent of the land is 167 perches and estimate value is Rs.83.5 

Million. However payment has not been settled due to the pending matter in compensation 

review committee (land acquisition) under the Ministry of Land with the land owner due to the 

disagreement of land value, valued by The Government Valuer. 

 

5. The University has paid of Rs.74 million to the Western Province Council to relocate the 

Methsewana home at Rattanapitiya to Sunflower Village at Mulleriyawa. Out of the land extend 

of 10 Acers of Methsewana Land, 3.5 acres handed over the procession to the University and 

Faculty of Medical Science has been established. The University has taken step to acquire the 

remaining land and the land will be recorded as an asset to the Financial Statement of the 

University after the transfer of ownership of the land. 

 

Total Receipts for the year 2021 
       

(12,241,549.70) 

Total Receivables as at 

31.12.2021 

   

117,355,212.94  

  

41 Bond Violators as at 31.12.2021 

(35 Academic Staff & 06 Non-Academic Staff) 

  

Legal Action Taken 11 

Waiting for Gratuity and UPF 8 

Active Bonds  1 

Letters/Reminders sent 15 

Follow up action taken 6 

 41 
 

recover 

this 

amount 
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6. Project of proposed extension to anatomy building for the department of Pathology Faculty of 

Medical Sciences commenced in year 2021 and contract awarded value is Rs.151 million to the 

GDP Engineering (Pvt) Ltd. Out of the total contract value, Rs.38 million as mobilization 

advance and Rs.21 million as progressive bills were paid in year 2021. The project is funded 

by the AHEAD project operated under the Ministry of Higher Education. 

 

7. Project of Installation of Computer Network System for the Faculty of Technology was 

awarded in year 2021 to the Luminex (Pvt) Ltd. Total project value is Rs.60 million and Rs.13 

million was paid as mobilization advance in year 2021. 

 

8. Project of renovation of Sumangala Reading Hall was awarded in year 2021 to the Mode 

Engineering (Pvt) Ltd. Rs.16 million was paid during the year 2021 out of total award contract 

value of Rs.40 million. The project is funded by the AHEAD Grant and earnings of University 

of Sri Jayewardenepura.  

 

9. Other major rehabilitation projects worth Rs.181 million awarded in year 2021 and capital 

commitment is Rs.122 million as at 31.12.2021. Detail information are attached in sub 

schedules no.27 

 

 

Note 30 

Post Balance sheet Events and Events after the Reporting Date. 

No Circumstances has arisen since the reporting date, but before the Financial Statements are 

authorized to issue which require adjustments to our disclosure in the Financial Statements. 

 

 

 

Note 31 

Related party transactions 

1. Vice Chancellor, Deans of the faculties and two Senate members are members of the Council 

of the University. Remuneration and other income paid to these members during the year of 

2021 was Rs.78,787,563.72. 

 

2. Post Graduate Institute of Management (PIM) located No 28, Lesly Ranagala Mawatha, 

Colombo 08 is a Post graduate institution incorporated under the separate incorporated act and 

affiliated to the University of Sri Jayewardenepura. The Director of the Post Graduate Institute 

is a member to the Senate of the University and authorization of the academic activities are 

carried out by the Senate of the University of Sri Jayewardenepura. Financial operation of the 

institute are governed by the Board of management of the Institute. Accordingly financial 

transactions of the Post Graduate Institute of Management are not recoded to the University of 

Sri Jayewardenepura. 
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3. Mr.Sujeewa Rajapakse a member of council, Finance Committee, and Chairman to the Audit 

and Management Committee of the University is the Chairman of the Peoples Bank which the 

University has invested Rs 2,888,645,654/- on fixed deposits, Rs.9,372,096/- on saving 

deposits and 19 no of current accounts are maintained.  

  

4. University transactions are mainly funded by the General Treasury of Sri Lanka and the amount 

of fund received and expenditure incurred are shown in the Financial Statements. 

Transaction dealt with other government organization were arm’s length transitions and there 

were no direct or indirect interest with the university. 

 

 

 

Note 32 

Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements. 

The statement of comparison of the budget and the actual amount is mentioned below. 

Expenses Summary 

  Actual (Rs.) Budgeted (Rs.) 
Percentage 

Achievement 

Personal Emoluments 4,640,479,346     4,645,000,000  99.90% 

Traveling 3,863,885  10,000,000  38.64% 

Supplies 81,237,369  99,000,000  82.06% 

Maintenance Expenditure 35,075,000  35,075,000  100.00% 

Contractual Services 442,433,094  505,943,000  87.45% 

Other Recurrent Expenses 194,029,756  246,657,000  78.66% 

Total Expenditure 5,397,118,450  5,541,675,000  97.39% 

 

Sum of the expenditure has been reduced because of changes in academic activities due to 

the COVID-19 Pandemic situation of the country. 

 

Note 33 

Other Disclosures  

1. During the year of 2021 amounting to Rs.147,431,200/- has been paid as Mahapola 

scholarship for students of the University from the funds provided by the University Grants 

Commission and Mahapola Trust Fund. Payment was disbursed directly to the students 

based on the amounts recommended by the University. It was not disclosed on the face of 

the statement of Financial Performance for the year end 31st December 2021.  

 

2. Provision on defined obligation has been valued by actuary and management consultant 

using projected unit credit method. During the year valuation was based on the following 

assumptions. 

2020        2021 

Mortality:           1967/70 Mortality Table            1967/70 Mortality Table  
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Disability:           10% of the mortality table        10% of the mortality table 

Staff Turnover:          1% p.a        1% p.a 

Rate of discount:          8%p.a.                  11.50%p.a. 

Salary Escalation rate:      Academic 7%, Non Academic 5       Academic 10%, Non Academic 8% 

                 

The retirement age of the non-academic staff of the University is extended to 62 years as 

per the UGC circular with effect from 01.01.2022. The retirement age of the academic staff 

considered as age of 65. Accordingly provision on defined obligation has been calculated.  

 

3. Asian Development Bank (ADB) has approved the grant of $35 million (Approx. Rs.6 

billion) for the construction of building complex and equipment for the Faculty of 

Engineering under the project of Science and Technology Human Resource Development 

Project operated under the Ministry of Education. An Agreement for the  Design & 

Construction of Building and Infrastructure facility for the faculty of Engineering has been 

signed by the Secretary ,Higher Education with Sanken Consultant (Pvt) Ltd in January 

2021 for the value of Rs.3,625 million (Without VAT) to construct Building Complex for 

the Faculty of Engineering of the University on ADB Funding. Following grant value was 

recognized in year 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4. World Bank grant has been received to the University under the project of Acceleration 

Higher Education Expansion and Development (AHEAD) Programme operated in the 

Ministry of Education to improve the Higher Education Facilities of the University. World 

Bank Grant of Rs.1,630 million has been received from the year 2018 to 2021 to improve 

following areas.  

Result Area 01 - Increasing Enrolment in Higher Education in Priority Disciplines for 

Economic                    Development - Rs. 1,083 million 

Result Area 02 - Enriching Learning, Teaching and Assessment and English Language 

Skills Enhancement & Human Resource Development – Rs. 387 

Result Area 03 - Promoting Research, Development, Innovation and Commercialization - 

Rs. 134 million 

 

 

 

Following are capitalized during the year 2021, 

Items Total (Rs.) 

Assets 108,046,309 

Library Books 23,228,125 

Building Mobilization Payment 716,107,442 

Building WIP 334,421,759 

 1,181,803,636 
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The remaining balance of the grant was received for the different projects and those projects 

are continuing and will be capitalized after the completion of the projects.  

5. Rs.347 Million worth of Land and Building situated in Kalubowila which belongs to the 

University of Sri Jayewardenepura is currently used by University of Visual Art and 

Performing. Action has been taken by the University to get back the said property from the 

University of Visual and Performance.  

 

6. Approval of the Cabinet of Ministry was granted on 13th February 2014 to carryout project 

worth Rs.618 million under the Urban Department Project for the construction of an 

International level Conference Hall, Gymnasium and Sports Complex with a Swimming 

Pool. Rs.5,794,676 payment has been paid in year 2016 to Central Engineering 

Consultancy Bureau (CECB) for consultancy fee and preparation of plans. Budgetary 

allocation has not been received and project could not be able to start. The University has 

made continuous follow up for getting budgetary allocation to implement this project. 

 

7. Revaluation of class of Lab and Teaching Equipment, Office Equipment, Computer 

Accessories, Furniture Fittings and Other Equipment are carried out by the Department of 

Valuation of University of Sri Jayewardenepura to the balance sheet date of 31.12.2021. 

The revaluated assets will be capitalized in year 2022. 

 

8. Impairment loss on intangible asset due to unusable software which was included in the 

intangible assets. 

 

9. Chemicals and Glassware stock verification is carried out by the University to the balance 

sheet date of 31.12.2021 and stock value will be adjusted to the Financial Statements in 

year 2022. 

  

Items Total (Rs.) 

E - Books       17,287,174  

Books          1,540,193  

Equipment     164,788,808  

Software          2,721,279  

Work in Progress     406,966,035  

Mobilization Advance       21,725,548  

Rehabilitation       13,690,961  

Human Resource Development       27,007,683  

      655,727,685  
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 
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AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31.12.2021 
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ANSWERS TO THE REPORT OF THE AUDOTOR 

GENERAL’S ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

Report of the Auditor General on the Financial Statements of the University of Sri 

Jayawardenapura and other legal and regulatory affairs for the year ended 31 December 2021 in 

terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. 

01. Financial Statements  

1.2 Basis for Qualified Opinion 

a)  Although depreciation of an asset begins when it is 

available for use in accordance with paragraph 69 

of Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard 07, 

the depreciation was not calculated and accounted 

for the relevant period for the non-current assets 

which were received as donations with an 

estimated value of Rs.40,885,182 during the year 

under review.  

Assessment of the cost of fixed 

assets received as donations is 

done through the relevant 

committees, and Goods Receipt 

Notes-GRN will be issued 

thereafter. As this process takes 

time, it is not practical to issue 

GRNs as at the date of donation or 

the items becoming ready for use, 

(GRNs can not be backdated). 

Nevertheless, depreciation has 

been brought to accounts in the 

same year in which the items are 

received under a suitable rate of 

depreciation.  

b)  Capital grants amounting to Rs. 949,000,000 

received by the University during the year under 

review, were not identified and measured in the 

financial statements in accordance with Sri Lanka 

Public Sector Accounting Standard 11. 

Accounting process will be done 

in terms of Sri Lanka Public Sector 

Accounting Standard 11.  

c)  A sum of Rs.2,100,434 had been paid in the year 

under review and a sum of Rs.29,694,931 had been 

paid in previous years to the contractor for a 

building which was completed in November 2018 

The said project had been 

implemented as a reconstruction 

and rehabilitation project. As 

such, the project had been 
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had been accounted for as expenses of the 

respective year instead of being capitalized. As a 

result of that the surplus for the year under review 

by Rs. 2,100,434, retained earnings by 

Rs.29,694,931 and building cost as on 31 

December 2021 by Rs.31,795,365 were under 

stated. 

Also, due to the fact that the depreciation of 

Rs.1,589,768 related to the year under review and 

the depreciation of Rs.3,362,468 related to the 

previous years had not been accounted for that 

building, the surplus for the year by Rs.1,589,768 

and retained earnings by Rs.3,362,468 were over 

stated.  

brought to accounts under the 

constructions relating to 

reconstruction and rehabilitation. 

Funds are also received for this 

project under the reconstruction 

and rehabilitation Head of 

expenditure. This project is of the 

reconstruction nature. However, 

action will be taken in due course 

to capitalize those expenses 

under recommendations of a 

technical committee. Building of 

the University are revalued once 

in five years. The capitalized 

buildings are recognized as assets 

during the revaluation process as 

well. 

d)  A sum of Rs. 29,118,440 incurred for the 

construction of 03 buildings during the period 

from the year 2018 to the year under review had 

been accounted as expenses of respective year 

instead of being recognized as work in progress. As 

a result of that, the surplus of the year under 

review by Rs. 8,464,440, retained earnings by 

Rs.20,654,000 and work in progress by 

Rs.29,118,440 were understated. 

The said project had been 

implemented as a reconstruction 

and rehabilitation project. As 

such, the project had been 

brought to accounts under the 

constructions relating to 

reconstruction and rehabilitation. 

Funds are also received for this 

project under the reconstruction 

and rehabilitation Head of 

expenditure. This project is of the 

reconstruction nature. However, 

action will be taken in due course 

to capitalize those expenses 

under recommendations of a 

technical committee. Building of 

the University are revalued once 

in five years. The capitalized 
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buildings are recognized as assets 

during the revaluation process as 

well. 

e)  Instead of debiting Rs. 2,479,747 paid for the 

improvement of the welfare building to the work in 

progress account, the building rehabilitation and 

improvement expense account was debited twice 

and credited to the work in progress account. As 

such, the surplus for the year under review and 

work-in-progress account were understated by Rs. 

4,959,494. 

Corrective measures have been 

taken through the Capital Journal, 

No. 51 of 2022.  

f)  An income of Rs. 2,000,800 received during the 

year under review was not considered as income of 

the year and was stated under current liabilities as 

an unrecognized income. As a result of that the 

surplus and current liabilities of the year under 

review were understated and overstated by same 

value respectively. 

As documentary evidence had not 

been received in order to 

recognize the said cash balance 

received in the year,  as an 

income, that balance has been 

shown as a liability until being 

identified specifically. Once the 

relevant confirmations are 

obtained, the balance will be 

brought to accounts under 

income or deferred income.  

g)  Receipts of Rs. 1,867,110 received by the 

university in the  year under review was stated as 

accrued expenses under current liabilities in the 

financial statements without taking action to 

recognize them as income. As such, Retained 

Earnings and Current Liabilities were understated 

and overstated by same amount respectively. 

This fund had been received to 

the recurrent Fund of the 

University (097-1-001-6-

2315454), but there existed no 

information to recognize the sum 

as an income. Once the relevant 

documentary evidence is 

received, the sum will be 

recognized either as income or 

deferred income. The receipts 

remained unrecognized in such a 
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manner for over 03 years will be 

credited to the income.  

h)  Although depreciation of 02 computer software 

costing for Rs. 7,627,908, which was 03 years 

validity period of the license had expired and had 

removed from use during the year under review, 

should be completed within 03 years, according to 

the depreciation policy followed by the university, 

the impairment loss of Rs. 2,539,086 occurred due 

to depreciation was done considering the effective 

life time as 5 years, as such, the surplus of the year 

was under stated by that amount. 

Although the validity period of 

the license was 03 years, the 

software had been depreciated 

for 05 years in view of updating 

the software as required.  

i)  A part of an old building was demolished in the 

year 2018 for the construction of a new building, 

but the carrying value of the demolished part of the 

building was not eliminated from the books. 

The net value of this building had 

not been eliminated even in the 

year 2018, but the revalued 

amount of the buildings is shown 

after being revalued in the year 

2021.  

j)  The cost of chemicals received by the laboratories 

valued for Rs. 5,180,521 for which payments had 

not been paid as at 31 December 2021, was not 

been accounted for. 

Although purchase orders were 

issued for chemicals, an extensive 

time was spent to complete the 

order. Receipt of chemicals 

further delayed due to corona 

outbreak. It is a condition of the 

order that the chemicals should 

be provided completely. Once the 

order is received in full, the 

completeness will be checked 

thereafter, and the GRNs will be 

issued with payments made or 

accrued. As the said order for 

chemicals was not complete, it is 

not shown as being accrued.   
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02. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements.  

Reference to Laws, 

Rules/Regulation 

Observation  

a) Financial Regulations 

of the Democratic 

Socialist Republic of 

Sri Lanka.  

  

(i.) Financial Regulation 

394 (c). 

Action had not been taken in 

terms of Financial 

Regulations relating to 19 

cancelled cheques valued at 

Rs. 1,226,544 

The sum of Rs. 138,783 being the 

value of expired cheque, will be 

cancelled by taking corrective 

measures in the year 2022. 

Cancellation of cheques valued at 

Rs. 1,226,544 had been done in 

accordance with the Financial 

Regulations. Reminders were 

sent in order for those cheques to 

be collected, and the chques were 

transferred to the cheque 

cancellation register. After a lapse 

of 03 years, action will be taken to 

credit the value of expired 

cheques to the income.  

(ii.) Financial Regulation 

571. 

Action had not been taken as 

per Financial Regulations on 

retention money totaling Rs. 

66,552,132 relevant to 81 

contract works related to the 

period from 2013 to 2018 

and 88 refundable tender 

deposits amounting to 

Rs.1,275,175 over 02 years. 

As businesses had not performed 

well over a period of 02 years due 

to Corona pandemic, the relevant 

request had not been made. 

Nevertheless, the said retention 

monies will be recognized as 

income after 03 years.  

b) Sections 09 and 10.3 

of the Establishments 

The contract period of 05 

non-academic staff officers 

There were instances in which 

applicants with basic 
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Code for the 

University Grants 

Commission and 

Institutes of Higher 

Education.  

who had been appointed on 

contract basis had been 

backdated for a period of 01 

to 05 years contrary to the 

provisions of the 

Establishment Code. 

qualifications had initially been 

recruited on contract basis and 

appointments had been granted 

later after being backdated in 

case of satisfactory performance. 

However, this process has been 

suspended at present.  

2.3 Other Information   

a)  As per the Cabinet decision taken on 29 June 1994 

for the acquisition of 6.5 acres from MethSevana 

land for the Medical Faculty, a total sum of Rs. 74 

million had been paid from the year 1998 to year 

2019 to the Western Provincial Council on 03 

occasions. Another sum of Rs. 2.5 million, which 

was 25 percent of the value of the lands, had been 

paid on 09 October 2013 to the Maharagama 

Divisional Secretariat for the acquisition of 03 

more plots of land. But the acquisition of the lands 

had not been completed even by 31 December 

2021. 

The Department of Social 

Services to which the 

“Methsevana” land belonged, 

agreed to vest the land in the 

University following the 

discussion held with the 

Provincial Chief Secretary on 

2022.04.07.  

01. The University taking over the 

plot in extent of 01 acre and 03 

roods from the “Methsevana” 

land where 01 official quarters 

had been established.  

02. Construction of a block of flat 

comprising 14 houses at the plot 

belonging to the Department of 

Social Services at the 

“Methsevana” land in place of the 

said 14 official quarters.  

03.  As the land named 

“Sunflower” where “Methsevana” 

had been proposed to be shifted 

to, has temporarily been acquired 

by the Sri Lanka Army at present,  

it is necessary to examine the 

possibility of obtaining assistance 
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of the Sri Lanka Army for 

construction of the said complex 

of official quarters.  

Approval had been granted on the 

above matters  at the 526th 

session of the meeting of the 

Council held on 2022.05.19 

b)  Sums of Rs. 6,174,500 and Rs. 29,368,398 had been 

given to the university by the World Health 

Organization for researches related to Covid in the 

years 2020 and 2021 respectively, but the amount 

of Rs. 27,855,947 remaining therefrom had not 

been utilized as at 31 December of the year under 

review. 

The researches should have been 

completed by 2021.11.30 in 

accordance with the agreement, 

but the researches had been 

commenced in August due to the 

unfavorable situation prevailed in 

the country. An extension had 

been given to the project until 

June 2022.  

c)  Although the Allergy Immunology and Cell Biology 

Unit, which was included in the 2019 budget 

proposals and planned to be completed in 2021, 

was not established, but the required medical 

equipment for the unit costing Rs. 376,244,974 

were procured in 2020 and 2021. Those 

equipment was located in different places in the 

faculty of medicine and the work of establishing 

the Allergy Immunology and Cell Biology Unit was 

delayed. 

Equipment had been provided in 

the year 2021 as per budget 

proposals though, such 

equipment had been installed at 

several floors due to lack of space. 

Nevertheless, the equipment is 

used for researches. Procurement 

activities have been commenced 

to construct a new building for 

this unit, and once the 

procurement is complete, the said 

equipment will be shifted thereto.  

d)  A sum of Rs. 31,609,427 maintained under 82 prize 

and scholarship funds as of 31 December 2021had 

not been utilized for the intended purposes. 

The examinations Department of 

the University and Registrars of 

the Faculties relating to the 

annual graduations ceremonies 

are informed in writing on 

accumulated balances in those 
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Scholarship Funds. Accordingly, 

the authority to decide on the 

amount to be utilized from the 

Funds during the year, has been 

vested in the relevant Faculties. 

As such, the amount confirmed by 

them will only be utilized from 

each Fund.  

e)  A total sum of Rs.34,368,284 in 21 research fund 

accounts as at 31 December 2021 for more than 06 

years, a total sum of Rs.36,622,659 in 54 external 

research funds and a total sum of Rs. 562,099,625 

in 37 special funds were not utilized for the 

respective purposes during the year under review. 

Those research funds were 

received on specific purposes, 

and utilization is done in 

accordance therewith. Those 

involved in researches are 

informed thus taking action to 

make adjustments in accounts.  

f)  A sum of Rs. 115,225,177 were collected from the 

students for conducting courses, seminars and 

examinations in the External Degrees and 

Extension Courses unit  in the year 2020, but those 

activities were not conducted. 

The second sessions of seminars 

had been commenced in the year 

2022, and the third session has 

not yet been commenced. It is 

those matters due to which 

receipts from examinations were 

deferred. Course fees are 

collected for the ensuing years as 

well, and those sums are 

recognized as deferred income 

until the relevant lectures are 

conducted. 

g)  Due to the non-reporting of 35 academic staff and 

06 non-academic staff who had gone overseas for 

studies in the university, sufficient action had not 

been taken to recover bonds value Rs.117,355,212 

due on 31 December 2021 due to breach of bonds. 

A sum of Rs. 117,355,212, being 

the total value of bonds remained 

receivable to the University as at 

2021.12.31, but a sum of Rs. 

12,031,120.59 had been 

recovered in the year 2021 

whereas a sum of Rs. 
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24,381,069.78 had been 

recovered in the year 2022 up to 

2022.06.30. 

h)  A sum of Rs. 1,608,200 received for Mahapola 

scholarships and bursaries, for the period from the 

year 2018 to the year 2020 had not been settled. 

Although bursaries for Mahapola 

had been paid for the years 2018, 

2019, and 2020, the funds had 

been returned to the bank due to 

issues on bank account numbers 

of the students. The students’ 

welfare division is attempting to 

obtain new account numbers, 

thus action will be taken to rectify 

those balances. 

 

 

Senior Professor, 

Vice Chancellor. 
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